
 
 

 

 
To: Councillor Allard, Convener; Councillor Bouse, Vice-Convener; and Councillors Brooks, 

Davidson, Hutchison, Kusznir, Mennie, Tissera and Watson. 

 

 
Town House, 

ABERDEEN, 14 March 2024 
 

ANTI-POVERTY AND INEQUALITY COMMITTEE 

 

 The Members of the ANTI-POVERTY AND INEQUALITY COMMITTEE are requested 
to meet in Committee Room 2 - Town House on WEDNESDAY, 20 MARCH 2024 at 

10.00am. This is a hybrid meeting and Members may also attend remotely.  
 
The meeting will be webcast and a live stream can be viewed on the Council's website. 

https://aberdeen.public-i.tv/core/portal/home  

  

 
JENNI LAWSON 

INTERIM CHIEF OFFICER – GOVERNANCE (LEGAL) 
 

 
B U S I N E S S 

 

 DETERMINATION OF URGENT BUSINESS 

 

 1.1. There are no items of urgent business at this time   
 

 DETERMINATION OF EXEMPT BUSINESS 

 

 2.1. Members are requested to determine that any exempt business be 
considered with the press and public excluded   
 

 DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS OR TRANSPARENCY STATEMENTS 

 

 3.1. Members are requested to declare any interests or connections   
 

 DEPUTATIONS 

 

 4.1. There are no requests for deputations at this time   
 

Public Document Pack

https://aberdeen.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 
 
 

 MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

 

 5.1. Minute of previous meeting of 31 January 2024  (Pages 5 - 6) 
 

 COMMITTEE PLANNER 

 

 6.1. Committee Business Planner  (Pages 7 - 10) 
 

 NOTICES OF MOTION 

 

 7.1. Notice of Motion by Councillor Kusznir   
 

  Notes the Scottish Women’s Budget Group ‘Policy Briefing: Childcare Survey 
2023’. 

 
Considers that the cost of childcare, its availability and accessibility can be 

factors in accentuating or leading to poverty, especially for those with children 
who have Additional Support Needs and/or single parent families. 
 

Agrees to instruct the Chief Executive to write to the Minister for Children, 
Young People and Keeping the Promise: 

(i) seeking information on the financial support that will be provided to 

Aberdeen City Council to (a) build additional capacity and (b) pay 

sustainable rates to Early Learning and Childcare (ELC) providers; 

and 

(ii) noting the Education and Children’s Services Committee Report on 

the National Delivery Framework for School Age Childcare and Local 
Delivery Plans of 20 February 2024. 

 

 REFERRALS FROM COUNCIL, COMMITTEES AND SUB COMMITTEES 

 

 8.1. There are no referrals at this time   
 

 COMMITTEE BUSINESS 

 

 9.1. Six monthly update on the Memorandum of Understanding with the 
Department of Work and Pensions - CUS/24/077  (Pages 11 - 30) 
 

 9.2. Fairer Aberdeen Fund Annual Report  - CUS/24/003  (Pages 31 - 66) 
 

 9.3. Integrated Children's Services Plan - Annual Update - CFS/24/042  (Pages 

67 - 146) 
 



 
 
 

 9.4. Report on Committee Visit to Aberdeen Cyrenians on 31 January 2024 - 
CUS/24/085  (Pages 147 - 152) 
 

 EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS 

 

 10.1. There is no exempt business   
 

 

 
Integrated Impact Assessments related to reports on this agenda can be viewed here 

 

To access the Service Updates for this Committee please click here 
 

 
Website Address: aberdeencity.gov.uk 

 

Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Emma 
Robertson, emmrobertson@aberdeencity.gov.uk  

 

https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/services/people-and-communities/equality-and-diversity/equality-and-human-rights-impact-assessments/search-integrated-impact-assessments
https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ecCatDisplayClassic.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13450&path=0
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



 
Anti-Poverty and Inequality Committee 

 
 

 

ABERDEEN, 31 January 2024.  Minute of Meeting of the ANTI-POVERTY AND 
INEQUALITY COMMITTEE.  Present:- Councillor Allard, Convener; Councillor 
Bouse, Vice-Convener;  and Councillors Bonsell (as substitute for Councillor 
Graham), Brooks, Clark, Davidson, Greig, Hutchison, Kusznir, Mennie, Thomson 
(as substitute for Councillor Tissera) and Watson. 
 
External Advisers:- Maggie Hepburn (Chief Executive of Aberdeen Council of 
Voluntary Organisations) and Phil Mackie (NHS Grampian). 
 
The agenda and reports associated with this minute can be located here. 
 
Please note that if any changes are made to this minute at the point of 
approval, these will be outlined in the subsequent minute and this 
document will not be retrospectively altered. 
 

 

URGENT BUSINESS 
 
1.  There was no Urgent Business. 
 
 
EXEMPT BUSINESS 
 
2.  There was no Exempt Business. 
 
 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND TRANSPARENCY STATEMENTS 
 
3.  Members were requested to intimate any Declarations of Interest or 
Transparency Statements in respect of the items on the agenda. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note that there were no Declarations of Interest or Transparency Statements. 
 
 
MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING OF 1 NOVEMBER 2023 
 
4.  The Committee had before it the minute of the previous meeting of 1 November 
2023. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the minute as an accurate record. 
 
 
COMMITTEE BUSINESS PLANNER 
 
5.  The Committee had before it the planner of committee business, as prepared by 
the Interim Chief Officer – Governance (Assurance). 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5.1

https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=683&MId=9134&Ver=4


2 
 

ANTI-POVERTY AND INEQUALITY COMMITTEE 
31 January 2024 

 

 

 

The Committee resolved:- 
to note the Planner. 
 
 
COMMITTEE VISIT TO ABERDEEN CYRENIANS 
 
6.  Members discussed the value of visits to partner organisations.  The Convener 
thanked Councillor Bonsell for her suggestion to visit Aberdeen Cyrenians and 
Members were encouraged to suggest future committee visits. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note that Members would proceed to the visit to Aberdeen Cyrenians - 62 Summer 
Street, Aberdeen. 
- COUNCILLOR CHRISTIAN ALLARD, Convener. 

Page 6



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

A B C D E F G H I

Report Title
Minute Reference/Committee Decision or Purpose of 

Report
Update Report Author Chief Officer Director

Terms of 

Reference

Delayed or 

Recommende

d for removal 

or transfer, 

enter either D, 

R, or T

Explanation if delayed, removed or 

transferred 

Memorandum of 

Understanding between 

Aberdeen City Council 

and the Department of 

Work and Pensions on 

preventing homelessness 

and improving outcomes - 

CUS/24/077

At the Council meeting on 13 July 2022 the Council 

resolved to approve the Memorandum of Understanding 

(MoU); to agree that the Co-Leaders of the Council 

countersign the MoU on behalf of the Council; and to agree 

that update reports for the MoU be submitted on a six-

monthly basis to the relevant committee.

On the agenda Paul Tytler

Early 

Intervention and 

Community 

Empowerment

Customer 2.3

Fairer Aberdeen Fund 

Annual Report  - 

CUS/24/003

To provide members with the Fairer Aberdeen Fund annual 

report for 2022/23
On the agenda Susan Thoms

Early 

Intervention and 

Community 

Empowerment

Customer 1.14

Integrated Children's 

Services Plan - Annual 

Update - CFS/24/042

The statutory requirement for an integrated plan has 

resulted in the Child Poverty Action Plan being integrated 

into the Children's Services Plan, as reported to Education 

& Children's Services (ECS) Committee on 21 March 

2023.  Yearly progress reports will be presented to ECS 

Committee and thereafter for approval by the Community 

Planning Management Board.  Reporting to the Anti-

Poverty and Inequality Committee will therefore align with 

this reporting cycle.

On the agenda. This report was 

originally due on 12 June 2024 but has 

been brought forward to this meeting.

Eleanor 

Sheppard
Education/ICFS

Children's and 

Family Services
1.1

Report on Committee Visit 

to Aberdeen Cyrenians on 

31 January 2024 - 

CUS/24/085

To provide the Committee with a report following the 

Committee visit to Aberdeen Cyrenians on 31 January 

2024. 

On the agenda Paul Tytler

Early 

Intervention and 

Community 

Empowerment

Customer 1.1

Final LOIP and Locality 

Plans

On 21 June 2023 Members agreed: 5(b) to instruct the 

Chief Officer Early - Intervention and Community 

Empowerment, to liaise with the Chief Officer - Data and 

Insights, and align the Committee business planner with 

key Community Planning Aberdeen deliverables.

Jacqui 

McKenzie/ 

Martin Murchie

1.1

ANTI-POVERTY AND INEQUALITY COMMITTEE  BUSINESS PLANNER                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

The Business Planner details the reports which have been instructed as well as reports which the Functions expect to be submitting for the calendar year.

20 March 2024

12 June 2024

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 6.1



2

A B C D E F G H I

Report Title
Minute Reference/Committee Decision or Purpose of 

Report
Update Report Author Chief Officer Director

Terms of 

Reference

Delayed or 

Recommende

d for removal 

or transfer, 

enter either D, 

R, or T

Explanation if delayed, removed or 

transferred 

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

Issues faced by people in 

poverty in relation to 

accessing advice services 

and financial services

On 30 August 2023, Members resolved: to instruct the 

Chief Officer - Early Intervention and Community 

Empowerment, in partnership with the External Advisers,  

to report back to a future meeting of the Committee, no 

later than summer 2024, on the issues faced by people in 

poverty in relation to accessing advice services and 

financial services and the impact this had; on the services 

available in Aberdeen; on the unmet need; and specific 

recommendations for council services and other 

organisations to address this unmet need;

Jacqui 

McKenzie/ Paul 

Tytler

Early 

Intervention and 

Community 

Empowerment

Customer 1.12

Citizens' Assemblies To note detailed plans and costs for a Citizens’ Assembly

Jacqui 

McKenzie/ Paul 

Tytler

Early 

Intervention and 

Community 

Empowerment

Customer 1.2

External Advisers report - 

Food Poverty Action 

Aberdeen - Action Plan

To present the Action Plan

Paul 

Tytler/External 

Advisers

Early 

Intervention and 

Community 

Empowerment

Customer 1.8

Working in Partnership for 

Aberdeen - Supporting 

people with the cost of 

living

To offer recommendations for the allocation of £1million to 

mitigate against the ongoing cost of living crisis and 

contribute to alleviating poverty in the city

Andy MacDonald Customer Customer 1.1

Committee Visit

Annual Committee 

Effectiveness Report
To present the annual committee effectiveness report.

Andy 

MacDonald
Customer Customer GD 8.5

Equality Outcomes 

Progress Report

To provide an update on the progress achieved for 

Aberdeen City Council’s Equality Outcomes for 2021-25. 

Last reported to Committee on 8 March 2023.

Baldeep 

McGarry

People and 

Organisational 

Development

Customer 2.2

2025 and beyond and TBC

28 August 2024

06 November 2024

P
age 8



2

A B C D E F G H I

Report Title
Minute Reference/Committee Decision or Purpose of 

Report
Update Report Author Chief Officer Director

Terms of 

Reference

Delayed or 

Recommende

d for removal 

or transfer, 

enter either D, 

R, or T

Explanation if delayed, removed or 

transferred 

20

21

Memorandum of 

Understanding between 

Aberdeen City Council 

and the Department of 

Work and Pensions on 

preventing homelessness 

and improving outcomes

Six monthly update: At the Council meeting on 13 July 

2022 the Council resolved to approve the Memorandum of 

Understanding (MoU); to agree that the Co-Leaders of the 

Council countersign the MoU on behalf of the Council. Last 

update 20 March 2024.

Paul Tytler

Early 

Intervention and 

Community 

Empowerment

Customer 2.3

Integrated Children's 

Services Plan - Annual 

Update 

Last reported to Anti Poverty and Inequality Committee on 

20 March 2024.

Eleanor 

Sheppard
Education/ICFS

Children's and 

Family Services
1.1

P
age 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 10



 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 

COMMITTEE Anti-Poverty and Inequality 

DATE 20 March 2024 

EXEMPT No 

CONFIDENTIAL No 

REPORT TITLE Six monthly update on the Memorandum of 

Understanding with the Department of Work and 

Pensions on Preventing Homelessness 

REPORT NUMBER CUS/24/077 

DIRECTOR Andy MacDonald 

CHIEF OFFICER Jacqui McKenzie 

REPORT AUTHOR Paul Tytler 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 2.3 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To provide the Committee with an update on work agreed through the 

Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) signed with the Department of Work 
and Pensions on preventing homelessness. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

That the Committee 
 
2.1 Note the report; and 
 
2.2 Instruct the Chief Officer - Early Intervention and Community Empowerment to 

liaise with the Department of Work and Pensions and update the 
Memorandum of Understanding in line with current priorities and submit it 
back to Committee for approval. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 

 
3.1 On the 13th July 2022 Council agreed to approve the Memorandum of 

Understanding with the Department of Work and Pensions. On the same date 
Council agreed that update reports for the Memorandum of Understanding be 
submitted on a six-monthly basis to the relevant committee.  

Page 11

Agenda Item 9.1



 

 
3.2 The table at Appendix 1 sets out progress against each aspect of the 

Memorandum of Understanding. 

3.3 DWP have not identified any risk areas in relation to the MoU and are very 

pleased with how it is working at an operational level.    

3.4 There is a requirement to refresh the MoU with DWP as a result of changes in 

resourcing and to ensure it aligns with current priorities. This will ensure we 

realise strategic value from the partnership. This will be undertaken jointly with 

DWP and reported back to Committee. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from the recommendations of 
this report. 

 
5.  LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
5.1 There are no direct legal implications arising from the recommendations of 

this report 
 
6.  ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

6.1  There are no direct environmental implications arising from the 
recommendations of this report. 

 
7. RISK 
 

Category Risks Primary Controls/Control 

Actions to achieve  

Target Risk Level  

*Target 

Risk Level 

(L, M or H) 

 

*taking into 

account 

controls/control 

actions 

 

*Does 

Target Risk 

Level 

Match 

Appetite 

Set? 

Strategic 

Risk 

 No significant risk 

identified 

 Yes 

Compliance  No significant risk 

identified 

 Yes 

Operational  No significant risk 

identified 

 Yes 

Page 12



 

Financial  No significant risk 

identified 

 Yes 

Reputational  No significant risk 

identified 

 Yes 

Environment 

/ Climate 

 No significant risk 

identified 

 Yes 

 
 

 

8.  OUTCOMES 

COUNCIL DELIVERY PLAN   

 

Aberdeen City Council 

Policy Statement 

Impact of Report 

A PROSPEROUS CITY 

Develop our economy in a 

genuine partnership with the 

private sector, third sector 

and residents. 

A CARING CITY  

Work with partners to 

identify and agree specific 

integrated solutions for 

tackling the health and 

social problems caused by 

misuse of alcohol and 

drugs. 

 

The Memorandum of Understanding will help ensure 

the Council delivers on its stated vision. 

 

Aberdeen City Local Outcome Improvement Plan 

Prosperous Economy 

Stretch Outcomes 

1 - No one will suffer due to poverty by 2026 

 
9. IMPACT ASSESSMENTS 
 

Page 13

https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/documents/s129382/Council%20Delivery%20Plan.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/aberdeen-city-local-outcome-improvement-plan-2016-26/


 

Assessment Outcome 

 

Integrated Impact 

Assessment 

New Integrated Impact Assessment has been completed 

Data Protection Impact 

Assessment 

Not required at this time 

 

 
10. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
Preventing Homelessness – Memorandum of Understanding between 
Aberdeen City Council and the Department of Work and Pensions 
CUS/22/144 
 

11. APPENDICES 
  

Appendix 1 – Progress report on the Memorandum of Understanding. 
 
12. REPORT AUTHOR CONTACT DETAILS 
 

Name Paul Tytler 

Title Locality Inclusion Manager  

Email Address ptytler@aberdeencity.gov.uk 

Tel 01224 067879 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 14

http://councilcommittees/documents/s133807/Council%20Report%20-%20DWP%20MoU.pdf


 

Appendix 1 

MoU action tracker  

 Action Update February 2024 

1 Aberdeen City Council and 

Department of Work and Pensions 

will work together to support 

homeless citizens by:  

 

a - Working towards a data sharing 

agreement to allow the sharing and 

analysis  of customer data so 

changes in benefit status for 

homeless households can be 

identified    

 

b - Share information within data 

protocols on new tenancies created 

through the homeless process to 

ensure support is provided when 

starting a new home 

 

 

 

 

 

Development work is required to establish an agreement and to then 

share information. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 15



 

c - Co-locate where appropriate to 

enhance the support available to 

those experiencing homelessness 

 

d - Replicate the Homelessness 

Reduction Act 2017 “Duty to Refer” 

arrangement, ensuring that where 

work coaches are aware of a 

homeless person, they refer to ACC 

 

e - Create a Single Point of Contact 

Model (SPOC) for homelessness 

and work together to support 

homeless applicants with no 

income, reducing the timescale for 

support where possible 

 

f - Collaborate where possible to 

determine status of No Recourse to 

Public Funds groups as quickly as 

possible. 

DWP and Aberdeen in Recovery (AiR) have agreed in principle to co-

locate and offer outreach services in AiR premises – to be progressed in 

coming months. Further development has been agreed to consider co-

location and referral processes with other services and at other locations. 

 

The new legal duties to prevent homelessness, contained within the 

Housing Bill  will place a duty upon all public bodies to identify a risk of 

homelessness and to act on that information. This is not yet in place and 

there is no indication on timescale.  

 

These have been identified. 

DWP are running a 3 month national "Housing Confident" campaign 

across all their Job Centres & Service Centres with the aim of upskilling 

frontline staff and managers around housing and rent related matters. 

 

 

Entitlement to benefits is checked with DWP for those presenting as 

homelessness if they state they have claimed or are claiming UC. This 

can include EEA nationals who can be helped to secure their status and 

following a positive Home Office decision, we work closely together to 

apply for relevant benefits, get into payment and work towards 

P
age 16



 

employability, effectively covered by the resettlement tactical group. This 

includes eligibility for homeless support where appropriate. 

In terms of people with No recourse to Public Funds, DWP can take no 

action but checks are made with social work to determine possible 

homeless support for children and families 

2 Aberdeen City Council and 

Department of Work and Pensions 

will continue to work collaboratively, 

sharing intelligence as per current 

protocols and seek to further 

develop these, including supporting 

Move to Universal Credit when this 

is planned. 

 

Department of Work and Pensions and Aberdeen City Council currently 

work closely in a number of service areas, including revenues and 

Benefits, Housing and Support, and Homelessness.  

Move to UC started in January 2024. By the end of the financial year 

2023/24, roll out of Move to UC for Tax Credit only customers will have 

been completed, other than those that have been exempted or deferred 

due to case complexity.   

 Looking ahead to 2024/25, the remaining groups of households receiving 

legacy benefits will be migrated to Universal Credit, excluding 

Employment and Support Allowance only and Employment and Support 

Allowance with Housing Benefit.  

A wide range of comprehensive support is available, including:   

•  a dedicated phone line, run by DWP, - included on the migration 

notice and letters  

•  further guidance on gov.uk which will signpost to independent 

support from Citizens Advice Help to Claim service   

P
age 17



 

•  specially trained staff in Job Centre Plus’s and service centres, 

including signposting to third parties and stakeholders   

•  support through the Help to Claim service (from Citizens Advice) 

 

3 Department of Work and Pensions 

will continue to be an active partner 

in Community Planning Aberdeen, 

continuing our work through the 

Aberdeen Prospers Group, and 

actively participating in the Anti-

Poverty Group and Alcohol and 

Drugs Partnership. This will include: 

a) Department 

of Work and 

Pensions 

advisors co-

locating 

with Alcohol 

and Drugs 

Partnership 

services to 

support 

stabilisation 

and 

recovery  

 

 

 

 

 

Aberdeen in Recovery (AiR) and DWP have agreed effective direct 

referral processes. DWP and AiR have agreed in principle to co-locate 

and offer outreach services in AiR premises – to be progressed in coming 

months. Further development has been agreed to consider co-location 

and referral processes with other services and at other locations. 

 

P
age 18



 

b) Alcohol and 

Drugs 

Partnership  

support to 

Department 

of Work and 

Pensions to 

identify 

alcohol/drug 

risks and 

pathways  

 

4 Department of Work and Pensions 

will continue be an active partner in 

the Criminal Justice system, 

building on work already being 

provided at HMP Grampian 

through: 

a. Collaborating with 

ACC’s Prison Liaison 

Officer to ensure 

planned support is in 

place prior to 

liberation 

 

 

 

 

 

There is a lot of good partnership working going on between the Prison 

Liaison Officer and the Prison Coach, with any identified benefit queries 

referred to the DWP when needed.  

Partnership activities have focused on employability. A partnership 

between the local authority, the Scottish Prison Service and Greene King 

has resulted in the creation and operation of a training kitchen in the 

P
age 19



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

b. Department of Work 

and Pensions joining 

the Multi-Agency 

Public Protection 

Arrangements 

(MAPPA) Strategic 

Oversight Group as 

required.  

 

prison, with guaranteed jobs on release for successful participants. The 

second cohort of training is in place.  

This has been expanded to barista training.  Focusing on key sectors, a 

knife skills course is offered to support fish industry, alongside 

construction and warehouse training courses .   

The Management of Offenders etc. (Scotland) Act 2005 (Disclosure of 

Information) Order 2010 sets out the conditions under which information 

may be disclosed between the Secretary of State for Work and Pensions 

(Department for Work and Pensions), the Responsible Authorities and 

duty to co-operate agencies in the MAPPA – albeit DWP is not a duty to 

co-operate agency. 

 

 

 

 

5 Aberdeen City Council and 

Department of Work and Pensions 

will continue work together to 

Department of Work and Pensions continue to provide active support to 

refugee work across the city. 

P
age 20



 

support families in the current 

Home Office Afghan Resettlement 

Scheme, with Department Of Work 

And Pensions  

a. Actively engaging in 

Afghan Resettlement 

Scheme Tactical 

meetings 

b - Assigning a work coach to all 

families or individuals where eligible 

c - Participating in quarterly reviews 

of the resettlement scheme, 

identifying lessons learned and 

ensuring these are translated into 

practice 

d - Participating in any future 

resettlement schemes. 

6 Aberdeen City Council and 

Department of Work and Pensions 

will work together and in 

collaboration with other National 

and Local partners to support 

employability across Aberdeen. 

This will include –  

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 21



 

a. supporting young 

people to overcome 

multiple barriers to 

employment, 

including: 

i. The 

establishment 

of a Youth Hub, 

as well as 

introducing 

Youth 

Employability 

Coaches, 

specifically to 

work with 18 to 

24-year-old 

unemployed 

people, in order 

to increase 

both skills 

attainment and 

employment 

outcomes  

ii. Continuing to 

develop the 

established 

Local 

Aberdeen City Council, Skills Development Scotland, and Department for 

Work and Pensions delivered a PACE redundancy support event for the 

North-east employees of Stewart Milne Homes and others affected by 

redundancy. The support for those in need remains available.  

 

DWP continues to refer individuals in need of support to ABZWorks. DWP 

is an active participant in a range of employability-related activities led by 

the Council, including playing a crucial role in the recruitment of 

employers for ABZWorks Jobs Fairs, and in the delivery of employer 

engagement and wider sessions.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 22



 

Employability 

Partnership 

iii. Sharing 

relevant and 

appropriate 

information, to 

enhance young 

people’s 

employability 

and ensure a 

positive 

destination is 

reached. 

b - Supporting adults to overcome 

barriers to employment, including: 

iv. Aberdeen City 

Council and 

Department of 

Work and 

Pensions will 

collaborate to 

link local 

employment 

opportunities 

with 

Community 

 

 

DWP continues to actively engage in the Local Employability Partnership, 

contributing to planning, information and data sharing, and working closely 

on a number of joint activities in partnership with the Councils  

Employability and Skills team.  This includes sharing information about 

employer skills gaps and demands, and being a member of the scoring 

panel for the Council’s employability services commissioning activities. 

 

P
age 23



 

Benefit clauses 

included in 

procurement 

contracts 

v. Aberdeen City 

Council and 

Department of 

Work and 

Pensions will 

work with key 

stakeholders to 

co-ordinate an 

effective offer 

for individuals 

and employers 

at risk of 

redundancy 

vi. Aberdeen City 

Council and 

Department Of 

Work And 

Pensions will 

collaborate to 

maximise the 

employability of 

people with 

long term 

P
age 24



 

health 

conditions  

vii. Reviewing 

these 

arrangements 

on an ongoing 

basis. 

7 Aberdeen City Council and 

Department of Work and Pensions 

will work together to strengthen the 

support available to lone parent 

families. This will include: 

a. An agreed contact 

point for escalation 

between both 

organisations where a 

lone parent family 

requires additional 

support 

b. Joint access to 

relevant systems and 

common data 

platforms allowing 

quantitative analysis 

and prediction.  This 

Development work is required to develop and progress this area. This has 

been identified with DWP once key staff identified, development work will 

be planned. 

 

 

 

 

. 

 

 

 

. 

 

P
age 25



 

will include Aberdeen 

City Council Housing 

and Council systems, 

and Stat Xplore. 

c. Agreement of referral 

pathways where there 

are mental health 

issues being 

experienced by the 

lone parent 

d. Exploring the creation 

of a Parent Hub to 

provide wraparound 

support 

e. Department of Work 

and Pensions as a 

stakeholder in the 

development of the 

Family Support Model 

in Aberdeen. 

 

 

8 Aberdeen City Council and 

Department of Work and Pensions 

will collaborate to ensure the new 

 

 

P
age 26



 

Housing and Support delivery 

model provides support to tenants: 

a. At risk of becoming 

homeless to resolve 

any housing element 

issues timeously 

b. An agreed contact for 

escalation between 

both organisations  

c. Commitment to 

sharing feedback on 

the development of 

the landlord portal, 

influencing where 

possible. 

 

 

This is in place. 

 

 

This is in place. 

9 Aberdeen City Council and 

Department of Work and Pensions 

will work together to tackle 

safeguarding, suicide and drugs 

deaths. This will include: 

a - Enhancing and define existing 

escalation and referral routes 

where safeguarding concerns are 

 

 

 

 

This is in place. 

 

P
age 27



 

identified, including through the 

Risk and Concern Hub 

b - Department of Work and 

Pensions becoming an active 

partner in the City’s Alcohol and 

Drugs Partnership in its attempts to 

reduce drugs deaths in the City 

task force 

c - Sharing of information regarding 

financial harm 

 

This is in place. 

 

 

10 Department of Work and Pensions 

will support Aberdeen City Council 

wherever possible in its vision to 

eradicate poverty in all its forms. 

This will be based on whole and 

targeted population data, including 

at locality level, and include the 

sharing of data through a data 

sharing agreement on:   

 

a. Child poverty   

b. Fuel poverty   

c. Food poverty   

Department of Work and Pensions are an active partner in this work, with 

a key role in the development of responses to poverty, high profile work 

recently includes benefit checkers and income maximisation outreach 

work.  

P
age 28



 

 d. In work poverty   

e. Poverty and employment 

issues affecting minority 

ethnic communities   

f. Care experienced young 

people 

 

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 30



 
 

 ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 

COMMITTEE Anti-Poverty and Inequality Committee 

DATE 20 March 2024 

EXEMPT No 

CONFIDENTIAL No 

REPORT TITLE Fairer Aberdeen Fund Annual Report 2022-23 

REPORT NUMBER CUS/24/003 

DIRECTOR Andy MacDonald 

CHIEF OFFICER Jacqui McKenzie 

REPORT AUTHOR Susan Thoms, Fairer Aberdeen Coordinator 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 1.14 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To provide members with the Fairer Aberdeen Fund Annual Report 2022-23. 
 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

That Committee:- 
 
2.1 Note the Fairer Aberdeen Fund Annual Report for 2022-23, at Appendix 1 and 

the positive impact that has been made to lives of people in Aberdeen; and 
 
2.2 Instruct the Director of Customer Services to thank all the Fairer Aberdeen 

Board members, funded partners, and volunteers for the work they've done and 
their many successes.  

 
3. CURRENT SITUATION 

 
3.1 The purpose of the Fairer Aberdeen Fund is to tackle poverty and deprivation 

in the priority areas of Cummings Park, Mastrick, Middlefield, Northfield, 
Seaton, Tillydrone, Woodside and Torry, and across the City with vulnerable 
groups and individuals. This report includes the Annual Report for 2022-23 at 
Appendix 1. Appendix 2 details key performance indicators to demonstrate 
impact.  

 
3.2 The Fairer Aberdeen Fund (the Fund) is dispersed and managed by the Fairer 

Aberdeen Board, made up of representatives from the identified priority areas 
through Regeneration Matters network, the Civic Forum, the Council, NHS 
Grampian, Police Scotland and ACVO (Aberdeen Council of Voluntary 
Organisations).  The Fund is aligned with the Local Outcome Improvement Plan 
(LOIP) of Economy and People (Children & Young People and Adults) themes 
and their outcomes. 

 
3.3 The Annual Report details how the Fund was used and the impact it had during 

2022-23. £1.54m was allocated by the Council to the Fund, to be dispersed by 

Page 31

Agenda Item 9.2



 
 

the Fairer Aberdeen Board. A few highlights are summarised here, further detail 
is available at Appendix 1. 

 
3.4 Funding was awarded to 36 projects within the main programme, as well as a 

Community Support Fund to support community engagement, and an 
Employment Support Fund to support costs associated with getting people back 
into work.   

 
3.5 Grants ranged from £2,200 to £167,000 in value. A total of 44,228 people were 

involved in, or benefited from, funded initiatives, 4,319 of them were under 16 
years old. 96% of people supported were affected by poverty; living in low 
income households or in the most deprived areas. 739 volunteers contributed 
114,280 hours of volunteering time with a value of over £2.2m. Match funding 
achieved by funded initiative totalled more than £700,000. 

 
3.6 The Economy theme tackles poverty and promotes inclusive economic growth, 

removes barriers to accessing employment and helps to maximise household 
incomes. It provides access to food, affordable financial services and products, 
coordinated provision of quality advice and information services, and access to 
support and skills needed to return to work, including initial engagement, 
personal development activity and in work support. 

 
3.7 Over the year 828 people were involved in employability programmes, 260 

people moved into work.  
 
3.8 4,651 people received money advice or income maximisation advice, with 

1,230 reporting a total financial gain of £2.3m, an average of £1,900 per person. 
 
3.9 5,099 people saved with a credit union. The credit union provided £1.9m in 

2,924 affordable loans, avoiding reliance on payday loans or doorstep lending.  
 
3.10 554 tonnes of free food were distributed, the equivalent of 1.3m meals (Food 

Standards Authority standard calculation of 420g per meal, used by 
FareShare). 35,307 emergency food parcels were provided and 423 food bank 
users were referred to other services for support. 21 cooperative Community 
Food Outlets were supported and 4,013 people benefitted from Mobile 
Cooperative Vehicle services. 

 
3.11 5 Community Flats/Projects were funded in priority areas of Cummings Park, 

Middlefield, Printfield, Seaton and Tillydrone, providing youth work, adult 
learning, support and advice, addressing isolation and promoting social 
inclusion. Community Projects have a role in delivering services and support 
on a wide range of issues and responding to new issues as they arise, like 
welfare reform, the Covid-19 pandemic, and now the cost-of-living crisis and 
need for warm spaces. A number of organisations use the venues to deliver 
services and distribute resources like free food and sanitary products. Projects 
support local people’s involvement and promote local democracy. 

 
3.12 The People (Children and Young People) theme promotes health and 

wellbeing, provides parenting and family support, services that meet the needs 
of young people, and opportunities for young people to secure positive 

Page 32



 
 

destinations. It also provides opportunities for young people to enter 
employment, education and training. Many more children and young people will 
benefit from the programme through family support, the provision of food, and 
employability and financial inclusion support for parents. 

 
3.13 Over the year 4,319 children and young people were supported, along with 444 

parents and families with complex needs. 76 young people moved on to 
employment, education, or training. 203 young people accessed 2,033 
counselling sessions and 270 young people were involved in training in youth 
media. At least 4 families no longer required Social Work support, resulting in 
a significant saving for statutory services. 

 
3.14 The People (Adults) theme promotes health, mental health and wellbeing, 

community safety, and social cohesion and socially sustainable communities. 
It supports volunteering, and increased opportunities to influence decision 
making. Many adults will also benefit from projects listed under the economy 
theme, that also provide individuals and communities with the social resources 
needed to reduce feelings of loneliness and social isolation. 

 
3.15 Over the year 373 people accessed counselling provision provided locally. 

Additional patrol hours were allocated to reduce harm to women involved in 
prostitution and to protect communities from the risk and harm caused by 
prostitution. 23 offenders were supported in prison and in the community after 
release, 21 reduced their risk taking or offending behaviour to secure a positive 
destination after release, and 10 of them moved into employment. 

 
 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 The Fairer Aberdeen Fund is allocated by Aberdeen City Council and is aimed 
at tackling poverty and deprivation; supporting partners to work together to 
tackle area-based and individual poverty; and to help more people access and 
sustain employment opportunities. Funding supports initiatives and services for 
the most disadvantaged communities and vulnerable people across the City.  

  
4.2 In 2022-23 the Council agreed a sum of £1.54m to be dispersed by the Fairer 

Aberdeen Board. The same sum was agreed for 2023-24. 
 

 
5.  LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
5.1 There are no direct legal implications arising from the recommendations of this 

report.  
 
 
6.   ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

6.1  There are no direct environmental implications arising from the 
recommendations of this report.  

 
 

Page 33



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
7. RISK 
 

Category Risks Primary 
Controls/Control 

Actions to achieve  
Target Risk Level  

*Target Risk 
Level (L, M 

or H) 
 

*taking into 
account 

controls/control 
actions 

*Does 
Target Risk 

Level 
Match 

Appetite 
Set? 

Strategic 
Risk 

The Fairer 
Aberdeen 
programme 
addresses poverty 
and inequalities, 
helping to achieve 
the strategic 
objectives of the 
Council and the 
Community 
Planning 
Partnership.  

The Fairer 
Aberdeen 
programme 
supports third 
sector initiatives 
that can respond to 
the needs of 
vulnerable people.   

L Yes 

Compliance Failure to comply 
with following the 
Public Pound 
financial 
regulations. 

The funding 
programme follows 
all FtPP regulations 
and funded 
initiatives provide 
feedback reports 
every 6 months. 
Outcomes are 
aligned with the 
LOIP. 

L Yes 

Operational Supporting 
community 
empowerment - the 
Fairer Aberdeen 
Board involves 
local people in 
decision making 
and addressing 
local issues. 

The community 
members on the 
Board are 
supported to 
engage and 
decisions made 
through a 
deliberative 
participatory 
budgeting 
approach. 

L Yes 

Financial Failure to continue 
to address the 
needs of 
Aberdeen’s most 
disadvantaged 
communities would 
have a detrimental 
effect for the 

Supporting people 
into employment, 
maximizing people’s 
income, providing 
early intervention in 
relation to education 
and health is not 
only a better 

L Yes 

Page 34



 
 

individuals and 
communities 
involved and 
potentially 
increased costs in 
the long term for 
public services 

outcome for 
individuals but 
reduces the costs 
involved in 
responding to the 
effects of poverty in 
the long run. 

Reputational Failure to support 
vulnerable people 
during a cost of 
living crisis. 

The Annual Report 
demonstrates 
impact and the 
range of support 
provided. 

L Yes 

Environment 
/ Climate 

No significant risk 
identified 

   

 
 
8.  OUTCOMES  

 

COUNCIL DELIVERY PLAN 2023-2024 
 

 Impact of Report 

Aberdeen City 
Council Policy 

Statement 
 

Working in 
Partnership for 

Aberdeen 

• Supporting people with the cost of living - many of 
the initiatives provide services that are preventative 
and addressing inequalities within the City, however 
there is an increasing need for support for people in 
crisis situations which is also being delivered for 
some of our most vulnerable citizens. 

• Recognise the importance of the third sector in 
Aberdeen’s life and economy – the majority of the 
Fund is allocated to community and third sector 
organisations. 

• Empowering Aberdeen’s Communities - the Fairer 
Aberdeen programme is a positive example of 
partnership working, involving communities in 
decision making, bringing a wide range of 
experience and knowledge to support initiatives that 
can respond to the needs of vulnerable people. 

 

 

Aberdeen City Local Outcome Improvement Plan 2016-26 
 

Prosperous Economy 
Stretch Outcomes 

The Fairer Aberdeen Fund provides services that tackle 
poverty and contribute to improving wellbeing for the city’s 
most disadvantaged communities and vulnerable 
individuals. Supporting people into employment, 
maximising people’s income, providing early intervention in 
relation to education and health is not only a better outcome 
for individuals but reduces the costs involved in responding 
to the effects of poverty in the long run. 
 

Page 35

https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/documents/s141331/Council%20Delivery%20Plan%2023-24.pdf
https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/documents/s134067/WorkinginPartnershipPolicyStatement.pdf
https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/documents/s134067/WorkinginPartnershipPolicyStatement.pdf
https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/documents/s134067/WorkinginPartnershipPolicyStatement.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/aberdeen-city-local-outcome-improvement-plan-2016-26/


 
 

The Fairer Aberdeen Programme supports the delivery of 
LOIP Stretch Outcome 1 – No one will suffer due to poverty 
by 2026. It seeks to mitigate the causes of immediate and 
acute poverty, helps to ensure access to appropriate 
benefits, and supports vulnerable and disadvantaged 
people, families, and groups, particularly in priority 
neighbourhoods. 
 
The Fairer Aberdeen Programme supports the delivery of 
LOIP Stretch Outcome 2 – 400 unemployed Aberdeen City 
residents supported into Fair Work by 2026 by helping to 
deliver the LOIP Improvement Project Aim to support  
people into sustained, good quality employment, with a 
particular focus on those from priority neighbourhoods and 
people over 50. 
 

Prosperous People 
Stretch Outcomes 

The Fairer Aberdeen Fund supports a range of initiatives to 
support vulnerable people. Many of the services are 
addressing inequalities within the City and responding to an 
increasing need for support for people in crisis situations. 
 
The Fairer Aberdeen Programme supports the delivery of 
LOIP Stretch Outcome 4 - 95% of children (0-5 years) will 
reach their expected developmental milestones by the time 
of their child health reviews by 2026 by providing parenting 
and family support. 
 
The Fairer Aberdeen Programme supports the delivery of 
LOIP Stretch Outcome 4 - 90% of Children and young 
people will report that their experiences of mental health 
and wellbeing have been listened to by 2026, by providing 
counselling and access to physical and mental health and 
wellbeing activities.  
 
The Fairer Aberdeen Programme supports the delivery of 
LOIP Stretch Outcome 7 - 95% of all our children, including 
those living in our priority neighbourhoods, will sustain a 
positive destination upon leaving school by 2026, by 
providing pathways to education, training and employment. 
 
The Fairer Aberdeen Programme supports the delivery of 
LOIP Stretch Outcome 10 - 25% fewer people receiving a 
first ever Court conviction and 2% fewer people reconvicted 
within one year by 2026, by providing support services for 
pre and post release offenders to engage with relevant 
services.  
 
The Fairer Aberdeen Programme supports the delivery of 
LOIP Stretch Outcome 11 - Healthy life expectancy (time 
lived in good health) is five years longer by 2026, by 
providing support to vulnerable and disadvantaged people, 

Page 36



 
 

families and groups, providing communities with social 
resources needed to reduce loneliness and social isolation, 
and increasing opportunities for volunteering. 
 

 
 
9. IMPACT ASSESSMENTS 
 

Assessment Outcome 
 

Integrated Impact 
Assessment 

No assessment required. I confirm this has been 
discussed and agreed with Jacqui McKenzie, Chief 
Officer, Early Intervention and Community 
Empowerment on 26.2.24. 

Data Protection Impact 
Assessment 

Not required  
 

Other None 
 

 
 
10. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
10.1 Funded initiatives provide annual monitoring reports which are used to produce the 

Annual Report.  

 
 

11. APPENDICES 
 
11.1 Appendix 1 – Fairer Aberdeen Fund Annual Report 2022-23  
11.2 Appendix 2 – Fairer Aberdeen Fund Impact Measures 2022-23 

 
 
12. REPORT AUTHOR CONTACT DETAILS 
 

Name Susan Thoms 

Title Fairer Aberdeen Programme Coordinator  

Email Address sthoms@aberdeencity.gov.uk  

Tel 01224 523833  

 

  

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



 

esd 

The Fairer Aberdeen Fund is allocated by Aberdeen City Council 

to tackle poverty and deprivation. The Fund is dispersed and 

managed by the Fairer Aberdeen Board, a subgroup of the 

Community Planning Partnership, made up of representatives 

from priority areas, the Civic Forum, the Council, Aberdeen Health 

& Social Care Partnership, Police Scotland and ACVO (Aberdeen 

Council of Voluntary Organisations). The Fairer Aberdeen 

programme is aligned with the themes from the Local Outcome 

Improvement Plan: Economy, Adults, Children and Young People. 

In 2022-23 funding of £1.5m was made available to support work 

in priority areas and across the city with vulnerable groups and 

individuals.  

  

Funding was awarded to 36 projects within the main programme, 

as well as a Community Support Fund to support community 

engagement, and an Employment Support Fund to support costs 

associated with getting people back into work.  

  

Grants ranged from £2,200 to £167,000 in value. A total of 44,228 

people were involved in, or benefited from, funded initiatives, 

4,319 of them were under 16 years old. 739 volunteers contributed 

144,869 hours of volunteering time with a value of over £2.2m*. 

  
*Volunteering time is generally valued as the median hourly pay rate in the area, in Aberdeen this 

was £15.00. (Office of National Statistics, the Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings (ASHE)) 

For more information contact: 
 

Susan Thoms, Coordinator 
sthoms@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 523833 
 

Anne Knight, Development Officer 
aknight@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 523532 

“The course made me want to 
learn again. It reignited my 
motivation to go out and do 
something and made the jump 
to work less scary. It was a 
nice stepping-stone! It helped 
with my communication skills, 
working on my anxiety, and 
dealing with different situations. 
It got me used to being around 
people again, getting me in 
contact and more used to 
talking to different people in a 
safe welcoming environment.” 
 

shmuTRAIN Participant 

 
The Fairer Aberdeen programme is 

aligned with the themes from the LOCAL 

OUTCOME IMPROVEMENT PLAN and 

LOCALITY PLANS in priority areas:  

ECONOMY, ADULTS & 

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE 

Fairer Aberdeen  
Annual Report 

2022-23 
 ©

 C
o

n
o

r 
G

au
lt

 P
h

o
to

gr
ap

h
y 

Thank you to all the participants, 

staff, and volunteers who have 

contributed to this report and to 

the Fairer Aberdeen programme 

over the year 

 

TH
A

N
K
 Y

O
U
 

Appendix 1 

Page 39

mailto:sthoms@aberdeencity.gov.uk
mailto:aknight@aberdeencity.gov.uk


  

 

FAIRER ABERDEEN FUND 2022-23 
 

£1.5m invested 
44,228 people supported 

739 volunteers 144,869 hours of volunteering time 
£2.2m value of volunteering 

 
ECONOMY 

260 people into work 
828 people involved in employability programmes 

29 sensory impaired people supported to stay in employment 

4,651 people receiving money advice and income maximisation advice 

£2.3m client financial gain, an average of £1,890 per person 

5,099 Credit Union savers £1.9m affordable loans provided 

554 tonnes of free food distributed, equal to 1.3m meals 

35,307 emergency food parcels provided 

1,306 food bank users referred to other services 

21 community food outlets supported 

 5 community projects/flats supported in disadvantaged areas 

238 people involved in producing community media 

73,800 community magazines delivered to 24,600 households 

590 contacts with older people to develop digital skills 

 
CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE 

4,319 children and young people supported 

444 parents and families with complex needs supported 

76 young people moved on to employment, education or training 

203 young people accessed 2,033 counselling sessions 

270 young people involved in producing youth media 

 
ADULTS 

373 people accessed counselling provision  

2,716 counselling sessions provided locally in priority areas 

23 offenders supported pre and post release 

10 ex-offenders engaging with support services post release 

21 people reducing their risk taking or offending behaviour 

234 vulnerable women  involved in prostitution supported 

 

 
 

 
 

Page 40



Fairer Aberdeen Annual Report 2022-23 
 

ECONOMY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Pathways supports people into 
employment by providing tailored 
support for people from the first stages 
of job seeking through to securing and 
maintaining employment. They identify 
and encourage participation of hard to 
reach residents through weekly drop-
ins, work clubs, established links with 
partner agencies and individually 
tailored one to one Keyworker support. 
They exceeded their targets for the 
year, and saw more young people 
under 25yrs (20%) than in previous 
years. They now record whether clients 
move into jobs paying the living wage 
and all clients did so. The majority 
(70%) went into full time employment. 
 
433 people received support and 238 
moved into work. 7 volunteers 
contributed 320 volunteer hours. 

NESS (North East Sensory  
Services) Employment Service 
provides an employment service to 
blind, visually Impaired, deaf or hard of 
hearing people who live in Aberdeen 
City. They provide specialist support 
enabling people to access relevant 
employment, education, and training 
opportunities and to sustain 
opportunities which have already been 
accessed. 
 
They worked with 64 clients. 7 people 
moved into work and 29 were 
sustained in their current jobs. 
 
CAB Money Advice Outreach 
Project provides advice and 
information using community centres 
as drop-in centres, assisting clients to 
maximise their income from welfare 
benefits and to reduce levels of debt. 
 
1009 clients received money advice 
and income maximisation advice with a 
total financial gain of £1,130,559 an 
average of £1,646 per client. 
 
St Machar Credit Union improves 
access to affordable financial services 
and products and develops credit 
union membership, by providing and 
promoting easy access savings 
accounts for adults and juniors and 
low-cost loans within the community. 
 
Over the year they gave out affordable 
loans of over £1.9m, meaning 2,924 
people had access to affordable credit, 
avoiding payday loans or doorstep 
lending. 
 
 
 
 
* Food Standards Authority calculation of 
2,381 meals per tonne, used by FareShare 

260 people into work 

828 people involved in 

employability programmes 

76 young people moved 

on to employment, education 

or training 

4,651 people receiving 

money advice 

£2.3m client financial gain 

554 tonnes of free food 

distributed, the equivalent of 

1.3m meals* 

946 food bank users referred 

to other services 

21 community food outlets 

supported 

5 community projects/flats 

supported in disadvantaged 
areas 
 

 

Prince’s Trust Team Programme 
provides a 12 week personal, social 
and employability skills development 
programme for participants aged 16-25 
who are disadvantaged, with a high 
proportion having complex needs 
including offending behaviour, drug 
and alcohol issues, behavioural issues, 
problems with literacy, numeracy, 
mental health, and homelessness. 
 

Over the year 32 people took part in 
the programme, 2 moved into work and 
6 into education, training or 
volunteering. 

Social 
return on 

investment 
for every £1 
of funding 

received by 
Pathways 

there was a 
return of      

£4.67 

P
A

TH
W

A
Y

S
 

96% of people supported by the 
Fairer Aberdeen Fund are 
affected by poverty, living in the 
most deprived neighbourhoods 
or in low income households  

Mitigating the causes of immediate and acute poverty. 

Ensure those experiencing in-work poverty have access to 

all appropriate benefits. 

Supporting vulnerable and disadvantaged people, families 

and groups. 

Poverty affecting those with protected characteristics and 

in specific communities. 

Increasing the number of people in Aberdeen in sustained, 

fair work. 

Page 41



Fairer Aberdeen Annual Report 2022-23 

 
  Care and Repair provides advice and 

financial assistance to older people 
and people with disabilities, to 
maximise household income and raise 
charitable funding on behalf of 
individuals to carry out repairs, 
improvements, and adaptations to the 
home. 
 
Over the year 658 households were 
assisted with income maximisation, 
charitable and grant funding, achieving 
a total financial gain of £440,982, an 
average of £670 per household. 1,453 
households received assistance with 
repairs, handyman services, 
adaptations, and energy efficiency 
work. 896 people who are disabled or 
have a long term health condition were 
supported. 
 
Silver City Surfers provide one to one 
computer tutoring for over 55s in the 
City Centre, and Northfield/Cummings 
Park areas, so they can confidently 
learn how to use the computer and surf 
the internet safely in a welcoming and 
social environment. 
 
There were 590 contacts to support 
older people and 17 volunteers 
contributed 4,105 hours. 
 
CFINE (Community Food Initiatives 
North East) provide services to tackle 
food poverty. They maintain and 
develop Community Food Outlets and 
Pantries to provide access to healthy, 
affordable food in priority areas. 
 
554 tonnes of food were redistributed. 
193 Community Food members 
received FareShare food. 35,307 
emergency food parcels were provided. 
423 food bank users were referred to 
other services that CFINE provide.  
 
21 cooperative Community Food 
Outlets were supported and 4,013 
people benefitted from Mobile 
Cooperative Vehicle services. 
 
332 volunteers contributed 79,680 
hours of volunteer time. 

 

“Last year the SAFE team 
engaged with 2668 
beneficiaries which was a 
32% increase on the 
previous year with no signs 
of slowing down anytime 
soon. Partner referrals to 
CFINE are up 232% which 
is evidence of our 
increasing collaborative 
work across services in the 
city. Those referred onto 
partner agencies 
increased by 283%.” 
 

CFINE SAFE  

CFINE SAFE (Support, Advice, 
Financial, Education) provides financial 
capability support on benefits, 
budgeting and debt, and a referral 
system to direct beneficiaries to 
agencies who can support them to 
resolve issues. SAFE provides a 
holistic, person-centred response to the 
multiple and complex needs of people 
on low incomes and reliant on 
emergency food provision.  
Over the year 2,668 clients were 
engaged, 254 of them received 
financial gain of £1,057,835, an 
average of £4,165 per person. 
 
They supported 523 people referred 
through the food bank and 832 referred 
by other agencies. 1,464 clients were 
from priority neighbourhoods. 183 
people were seen at home visits and 
outreach venues. 308 people were 
referred to CFINE’s wrap around 
services and 575 to partner agencies. 
 
Cummings Park Community Flat, 
Printfield Community Project  
Tillydrone Community Flat and 
Seaton Community Flat provide 
resources for community activity; 
venues for a range of organisations 
that offer support, information and 
advice; and support community 
capacity building and adult learning.  
 
They support people with the Cost of 
Living crisis and help to address social 
isolation and loneliness. 
 
Cummings Park Community Flat 
11 partner agencies used the Flat to 
deliver advice and support for a range 
of issues including employability and 
financial inclusion. The total number of 
contacts accessing activities was 868 
and the number of users of the Flat 
facilities, including phone, computers 
and enquiries was 203. 100 people 
were referred to partner agencies. 
 
A total of 389 people were supported 
and 9 volunteers contributed 1,315 
hours of volunteer time. 

Printfield Community Project  
98 children and young people 
participated in activities in the project 
and 43 in the After School Club. 10 
children under 3 years were registered. 
 
70 young people were provided with 
healthy lunches during the school 
holidays. 14 residents were supported 
to be part of the Woodside Network. 
 
A total of 234 people were supported, 
and 30 volunteers contributed 600 
volunteer hours. 
 
Tillydrone Community Flat  
12 agencies used the flat to deliver 
advice and support services for a range 
of issues including Health, Education, 
Employability and Financial Inclusion. 
There were 6,400 recorded uses of the 
Flat facilities, including use of washing 
machine, phone and access to 
computers. 
 
236 people got support with debt and 
benefit issues and 83 were engaged in 
activities to assist with their recovery 
from substance misuse. 
 
A total of 611 participants were 
involved, 193 of them under 16 years 
old. 13 volunteers contributed 520 
volunteer hours. 
 
Seaton Community Flat there were 
1,171 attendances at sessions 
provided by 11 partner agencies. 15 
people attended sessions supporting 
people back into work and 42 people 
attended sessions aimed at increasing 
skills and creativity. 
 
A total of 404 people were supported, 
and 8 volunteers contributed 60 hours 
of volunteer time. 
 

“The service user sought support after he suffered a brain 
haemorrhage. He had owned a successful plumbing and heating 
business, but a brain injury had left him with central vision only (no 
peripheral vision) and poor memory and recall. He was supported 
to apply for out-of-work benefits and the Employment Officer 
secured a work placement for him. He enjoyed the social aspect of 
working with colleagues again and is managing the travel (four 
buses per day) independently. He reports that the structure and 
routine has helped his mental health greatly. He continues to work 
two days per week and is very grateful for the opportunity.”  
 

NESS Employment Service  Page 42



Fairer Aberdeen Annual Report 2022-23 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SHMU Connecting Communities 
Through Community Media supports 
the production of community media in 
regeneration areas, exploring and 
addressing local community issues and 
developing skills by providing training 
and support, developing opportunities 
for underrepresented voices to be 
heard across the city; creating a wide 
range of benefits for individuals and 
communities, fostering a spirit of 
engagement and partnership working; 
developing transferrable skills in 
participants; and contributing towards 
increased social capital. 
 
36 volunteers were supported to 
produce 7 community magazines, 
delivered to 24,600 households across 
priority areas 3 times a year. 55 
volunteers were supported to produce 
radio programmes, including 
community shows broadcast weekly in 
priority areas.  
 
117 organisations worked in 
partnership with SHMU over the year 
and a total of 238 participants were 
involved. 108 volunteers contributed 
26,857 hours of volunteer time. 
 

Aberdeen Foyer Reach delivers 
personal, social, wellbeing and 
employability skills development 
programmes, aimed at participants who 
are in recovery from any long-term 
condition e.g. substance misuse, 
mental illness or physical illness. 
 
34 clients participated in the course and 
4 secured employment, training or 
education as a result. 12 volunteers 
contributed 70 hours of volunteer time. 
 
Aberdeen Foyer Families is an 
employability and personal 
development programme for parents 
facing multiple and complex barriers to 
sustainable, living wage employment. 
 
36 people participated in the 
programme, all received financial 
checks, 3 moved on to further 
employability programmes and 4 into 
employment. All participants reported 
increased confidence and knowledge to 
make healthy lifestyle choices as a 
result of the course.  5 volunteers 
contributed 25 hours of volunteer time. 
 

GREC Tackling and Preventing 
Destitution provides a coordinated 
approach in Aberdeen to tackling and 
preventing destitution experienced by 
people with No Recourse to Public 
Funds (NRPF), including asylum 
seekers.  The aim to achieve this via a 
wide range of activities, including the 
training of third and public sector 
organisations (particularly those with 
roles around housing, welfare and 
domestic abuse), support to 
organisations (particularly those 
delivering employability services) to 
improve their service in a way that 
mitigates barriers relating to NRPF, and 
engaging with policy makers and 
relevant forums to advocate for the 
rights of people with NRPF. 
 
Over the year they delivered 14 training 
sessions to 221 staff and volunteers in 
third and public sector organisations, 
including 4 employability providers and 
5 financial inclusion/benefit advice 
agencies. They developed a lived 
experience group to give a space for 
mutual, peer support, as well as an 
opportunity to influence policy around 
related issues. 

“The recent resettlement of 
asylum seekers to Aberdeen 
has highlighted the need for 
proactive capacity building 
aimed at the City becoming 
better prepared and resourced 
to support people with No 
Recourse to Public Funds, 
including asylum seekers. 
We have delivered training to a 
number of third sector and public 
organisations around the city, 
covering what NRPF is and the 
asylum process. We also inform 
organisations of where to get 
local help when working with 
someone with NRPF, and have 
developed a website to provide 
further information and 
resources.”  
 

GREC Tackling and 
Preventing Destitution  

Page 43



 
  
Pathways is the Lead Partner on the Torry Skills Centre, which 
opened in March 2022. The Centre was developed from the 
work of the Torry Community Council, which recognised a need 
to have more visible employability services in the area.  
 
The Centre brings together a number of agencies to help make 
employability support as accessible as possible to residents of 
the area. At present the Centre is open every Tuesday, when 
Pathways, Aberdeen Foyer, Business Gateway and Social 
Security Scotland are in attendance, offering a range of support. 
 
The centre received some initial funding from the Regeneration 
Matters group, but we are now in discussions with an oil 
company to sponsor the running of the Centre, so there has 
been no cost to the Fairer Aberdeen Fund, but the Fund has 
been crucial in enabling Pathways to help develop, run and staff 
the Centre. 
 

P
A

TH
W

A
Y
S 

The COVID pandemic is likely to have pushed 

more people into poverty and financial insecurity, 

with those who were already disadvantaged 

being most likely to experience the negative 

effects. 

 

This is likely to contribute to greater levels of 

poverty, inequality and associated vulnerabilities 

and is expected to push more people into 

immediate and acute poverty. Throughout the 

pandemic, we have seen a significant increase in 

the requirement for support with food provision 

with many of those requests for emergency food 

provision coming from people who had never 

used a food bank previously. 

 

Aberdeen City Local Outcome Improvement Plan 

 

This year has been incredibly challenging for 
residents facing food poverty/food insecurity. 
The worsening cost-of-living crisis has been 
devastating for those already struggling, and 
there has been a significant increase in 
demand for CFINE’s services. The demand 
for emergency food parcels has increased by 
85% on the previous year and is now at the 
highest level since July 2020 at the height of 
the pandemic. Beneficiaries are reporting the 
increase in the cost-of-living as the main 
reason they require support, and CFINE 
continues to offer vital wrap-around support 
through the SAFE Team, employability and 
skills development programmes, community 
training kitchen, and other initiatives aimed at 
tackling some of the underlying causes of 
poverty. 
 

CFINE’s network of Food Access Points 
(Community Food Outlets), has grown this 
year, ensuring there are more places 
available to access low-cost or free fruit, 
vegetables, and healthy snacks. Key to this 
has been the development of CFINE’s mobile 
vehicle as a way of making produce available 
throughout communities. There are now 20 
locations throughout the city where residents 
can access food, both mobile and static, with 
a further two in development as of April. 

C
FI

N
E A client attended outreach as she 

required help with making an 
application for PIP. Due to her 
extensive health issues, she required 
multiple appointments to complete the 
application form, and this was 
accommodated for. It was far easier for 
the client to attend the outreach location 
than to attend the main CAB office to 
attend these appointments. She was 
awarded the standard rates for both 
daily living and mobility with a financial 
gain of £4,487.60. 

C
A

B
 M

O
N

EY
 A

D
V

IC
E O

U
TR

EA
C

H
 Page 44



Fairer Aberdeen Annual Report 2022-23 
 

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

. 

Many more children and young 
people will benefit from the 
Fairer Aberdeen Programme 
through family support, and 
the provision of food, 
employability and financial 
inclusion support for parents 

Middlefield Youth Flat and Under 
11s work supports young people, 
especially those with low self-esteem 
and lack of confidence. 
 
Over the year 96 young people 
participated in 870 sessions at the 
Youth Flat, they all took part in 
diversionary activities designed to 
reduce youth crime and exclusion 
rates. 15 were supported to get into 
work, training or education and 30 
were supported with mental health 
issues. 
 
68 children attended primary club 
sessions, 10 of them had additional 
support needs. 4 volunteers 
contributed 140 volunteer hours. 
 
Fersands Youth Work Support 
provides a wide range of youth work 
services to encourage young people to 
experience new activities, gain new 
skills, build relationships, and learn 
about health issues, employment, and 
other issues relevant to them. 
 
Over the year 116 young people 
participated, 99 of them under 16 years 
old. 669 free meals were provided for 
young people during activities. 7 
volunteers contributed 420 hours 
volunteer time and 12 young people 
were involved in volunteering. 
 
Home-Start coordinate home visiting 
support to families identified as at risk 
and hard to reach, working to prevent 
further crisis and family breakdown.  
 
30 families in priority areas were 
supported. 24 families reported 
reduced isolation, and 27 parents 

reported improved physical or mental 
health and 28 children had improved 
emotional wellbeing. 4 families no 
longer required Social Work support. 
22 families were supported with 
financial issues, and 4 families with no 
recourse to public funds were 
supported. 32 volunteers contributed 
4,992 hours of volunteering time. 
 
Choices Relationship Revolution 
delivers an early intervention 
programme to break the cycle of 
gender-based violence and sexual 
exploitation and to raise awareness, 
challenge prejudice and stereotypes 
amongst young people. 
 
Over the year 1,410 young people 
participated in the programme, 153 
educational workshops and 80 drop in 
clubs were delivered. 98% of 
participants reported being able to 
identify violent and exploitative 
relationships and 95% an increased 
knowledge of existing support services 
following participation in the 
workshops. 
 
There were 8 young people trained and 
supported to volunteer and 524 
volunteer hours contributed. 
 
Befriend A Child provide accessible 
group activities for children involved in 
the Befriend A Child scheme. One is 
based at Woodside Primary School, 
accessible to children from Tillydrone, 
Seaton, Fersands, Woodside and the 
other is in Cummings Park. 
 
46 children attended the youth clubs 
regularly. 12 volunteers contributed 
1,860 hours of volunteering time. 
 

SHMU Youth Media provides creative 
opportunities for young people 
(between the age of 12-19), primarily 
from the priority areas of Aberdeen, to 
train and take part in all aspects of the 
production of regular radio 
programmes. 
 
A total of 270 young people 
participated, 249 of them under 16 
years old. 24 volunteers contributed 
8,112 hours of volunteering time. 
 
St Machar Parent Support Project  
Positive Lifestyles provided support 
to young parents, helping them identify 
issues and to engage with the relevant 
agencies before they reach crisis point, 
preventing future long term need for 
statutory services. 
 
344 people participated in the 
programme including 18 kinship carers. 
37 people were supported to claim 
grants and 51 helped with benefit 
enquiries.  
 

4,319 children and young 

people supported 

444 parents & families with 

complex needs supported 

203 young people accessed 

2,033 counselling sessions 

270 young people involved 

in youth media 
 

Ensuring that families receive the parenting and family 

support they need. 

Increasing children’s knowledge and understanding of their 

own physical and mental wellbeing and take an early 

intervention and prevention approach. 

Improving pathways to education, employment and 

training  

Young people receive the right help at the right time to 

improve outcomes for young people at risk of becoming 

involved in the Justice System. 

Page 45



Fairer Aberdeen Annual Report 2022-23 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  

Mental Health Aberdeen provides 
ACIS Youth Counselling, where 128 
young people accessed 1,431 
counselling sessions. ACIS Youth also 
operates in Torry, where 32 young 
people accessed 488 counselling 
sessions in Primary schools. 941 
meetings were held with teachers, 
parents and other referring agencies 
and there were 893 cases of 
signposting and advice from ACIS 
Information Officers. 
 
shmuTRAIN (Station House Media 
Unit) offers comprehensive 
employability support and skills 
development training to young people 
aged 14-19, using community & digital 
media to engage young people, 
increase motivation and develop core 
skills such as confidence, 
communication, and teamwork, and to 
support young people to move on to a 
positive destination. 
 
Over the year 20 young people 
attended the Training Academy and 9 
moved onto education or training. 33 
young people participated in the post-
school employability programme and 
20 of them moved into positive 
destinations, 2 into employment, 3 into 
education and 15 into training. 11 
young people secured an SQA and all 
showed improved communication skills 
and increased readiness for work. 
 
 

Geronimo – Time to Play is 
delivered by Aberdeen City Council’s 
Creative Learning for parents and 
their early years children (0-5 years) 
to play and be creative together. 
Through play, creativity and risk 
Geronimo aims to improve parents’ 
confidence in taking part in their 
children's learning and to be 
confident in their own ability to think 
creatively and be able to find 
opportunities to play in any 
environment; a supermarket queue, 
at home when feeling busy, or out in 
the rain. 
 
Sessions open to all residents of 
priority areas were delivered in 
Cummings Park, Tillydrone and Torry 
as well as Camp Geronimo in an 
outdoor setting. 141 people took part 
in sessions, 85 of them under 16 
years old. 
 
Fersands Family Centre supports 
vulnerable families, providing home 
visits, one to one support and group 
work. 
 
Over the year 44 families received 
support, a total of 120 people 
participated and 5 volunteers 
contributed 480 hours of volunteer 
time. 
 

Social 
return on 

investment 
for every £1 
of funding 

received by 
shmuTRAIN 
there was a 

return of      
£3.69 

sh
m

u
TR

A
IN

 

Big Bang Drumming Group 
provides drumming workshops for 
young people in priority 
neighbourhoods, enhancing social 
skills and supporting participants to 
become active and productive 
members of their communities. The 
group supports young people with 
varying abilities and needs and aims 
to enhance their confidence and self-
esteem. 
 
Over the year 10 young people 
attended and 2 volunteers 
contributed 40 hours of volunteer 
time. 
 
 
 
 
 

“Mum had long term mental health issues and 
had been in hospital a number of times. Just 
prior to being referred to Home-Start she had 
been hospitalised as the result of a suicide 
attempt. We matched the family with a 
volunteer who had the right skills and 
experience to support the family through 
these challenges. The volunteer started to 
build a relationship of trust and provided 
practical and emotional support. They agreed 
priorities and plans they would focus on to 
improve the family’s situation and give mum 
more sense of control over the issues in her 
life. Mum now has a much better 
understanding of the important role she plays 
in her children’s early learning and 
development. She talks, reads and plays 
more with the children and is making every 
effort to be more emotionally available for 
them. Mum says she sees herself the 
difference this makes to the whole family.”  
 

Home-Start  Page 46



 

  
We have two sisters who regularly attended club but after a 
few weeks they were not turning up which was unusual, so 
the youth worker decided to give mum a call. Mum informed 
him she had started an online evening class and found it 
difficult to get the girls to the club because of the timings of 
her class and the club and having to see to her son who has 
ASN as her husband worked late in the evenings. The youth 
worker informed her that as the children only stayed 5 
minutes from the club he would easily call for them on his 
way and drop them off on his way back home. Mum was 
delighted he had offered to do this as it would enable her to 
continue with her studies and the children could still attend 
the youth club. The girls have returned once again and are 
glad to see their friends again and enjoy the activities 
provided. 

B
EFR

IEN
D

 A
 C

H
ILD

 

The COVID pandemic has had a substantial 

impact on our children, young people, and their 

families. In turn the services we provide and the 

way that we deliver them has fundamentally 

changed. The priorities we identified when this 

LOIP was first published have become more 

pertinent because of the pandemic. Impacting 

the economy, the opportunities available to our 

young people and their families. It has also 

affected their mental wellbeing and made the 

needs of our more vulnerable young people and 

the inequalities they face become even more 

apparent. 

 

Aberdeen City Local Outcome Improvement Plan 

 

A
C

IS
 Y

O
U
TH

 

Some of the older girls attending the 
Youth Hub have recently moved 
into flats and were finding it hard 
and were unsure what they needed 
to do. We gave them help with 
benefits and getting some nice 
things for their temporary 
accommodation to make it feel 
more homely. They have also 
needed support around 
negative/abusive relationships. For 
some we are supporting them into 
college as they are now ready to 
look at this as an option.  

M
ID

D
LEFIELD

 Y
O

U
TH

 H
U

B
 

The client attended ACIS Youth after 
experiencing several panic attacks whilst in 
school. The client disclosed they felt 
overwhelmed in classes especially when there 
were class tests and described her mind going 
blank and her body shaking with fear. The client 
had missed a significant amount of school as 
they often felt too panicked to attend. The 
counsellor initially worked with the client on 
developing coping strategies and how to begin 
to manage anxious feelings. Through 
discussions about how the client engaged in 
daily life and the quality of her relationships and 
connectedness to others the counsellor began to 
suspect the client was a neuro divergent learner. 
 

With the client’s permission the counsellor was 
able to discuss this with the client’s guidance 
teacher and from this meeting there was an 
agreement involving the client to discuss with 
parents the possibility of assessment. The client 
was eventually assessed by CAMHS as being 
on the autistic spectrum and the school has now 
implemented support structures to help the client 
with school work. The client feels they have a 
much better insight into the difficulties they 
experience and has reported that their 
relationships with peers have also improved as 
those close to them also have this insight.  

 

Page 47



Fairer Aberdeen Annual Report 2022-23 

 

ADULTS 

 

  

The Fairer Aberdeen 
programme supported 739 
volunteers providing 144,869 
hours of volunteering time 

SHMU Adult Engagement and 
Support Service works with ex-
offenders, following their release, to 
create strong, supportive community 
networks and develop effective 
community based multi-agency 
working. The programme has 
expanded and now offers support to 
any adult volunteers or participants 
from the wider community that access 
their range of programmes for adults 
who require additional support due to 
complex needs and/or barriers to 
participation. 
 
13 offenders participated in the 
programme pre-release and 10 with 
appropriate support services post 
release. 54 people participated in the 
wider community programme. 
 
21 participants reduced their risk taking 
or offending behaviour. 19 people 
secured a positive destination, 13 
volunteering in the community, 5 into 
education, 9 into training and 6 into 
employment. 
 
Printfield Feel Good Project and 
Tillydrone Health & Well Being 
Project provide Complementary 
Health sessions to increase relaxation 
and wellbeing. 68 people accessed 
328 sessions and 3 volunteers 
contributed 80 hours of volunteering 
time. 
 

Mental Health Aberdeen provides 
adult counselling in Torry, where 126 
clients accessed the service and 792 
counselling sessions were provided; 
and in Calsayseat Surgery, where 156 
clients accessed 1,089 counselling 
sessions.  
 
Pathways to Wellbeing provides 
locally based, easily accessible 
counselling services.  
 
They provided counselling for 91 
people accessing 835 counselling 
sessions. 7 volunteers contributed 320 
hours of volunteering time. 
 
Police Scotland Operation Begonia 
is a joint initiative involving Police 
Scotland and partner agencies with the 
two aims of preventing sexual 
exploitation and supporting those who 
find themselves involved in selling or 
exchanging sexual activity. It provides 
dedicated, directed patrols with the aim 
of using a trauma informed approach to 
signpost those involved towards 
services and more positive 
destinations. 
 
Begonia was set up to reduce harm to 
women involved in the on street sex 
industry and to protect communities 
from any real or perceived threat, risk 
and harm caused by prostitution.   
 
During the year 234 women were 
engaged with and 14 new women 
encountered through street work 
patrols and referred to partner 
agencies. Begonia patrols access rape 
alarms, toiletries, and snacks to give 
out when needed. There were 62 
dedicated patrols undertaken in 
Aberdeen to address on street 
prostitution. 101 male perpetrators 
were stopped, educated, or charged 
regarding kerb crawling offences to try 
and discourage males from frequenting 
identified areas, in support of local 
communities. 

 

373 people accessed 

counselling provision  

2,716 counselling sessions 

provided locally in priority 
areas 

23 offenders supported 

10 ex-offenders engaging 

with support services post 
release 

21 people reducing their risk 

taking or offending behaviour 

234 vulnerable women  

involved in prostitution 
supported 

 

 

Provide individuals and communities with the social 

resources needed to reduce feelings of loneliness and 

social isolation. 

Taking targeted interventions to reduce the impact of 

crime on communities. 

Those who are convicted are supported to engage with 

relevant services and reduce reoffending. 

“A number of the women 
we engage with have 
children and our partners 
work closely with them to 
improve parenting skills 
and to assist with contact 
with children where there 
may be social work 
involvement. They also 
provide budgeting and 
cooking skills.”  
 

Operation Begonia  
Page 48



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 
 

 
 
 

 

The impact of the pandemic has been, and will 

continue to be, felt unequally. Those experiencing 

inequality and vulnerabilities are more likely to 

suffer the greatest negative social, economic and 

health impacts. 

 

Mitigating the impacts of the pandemic on our 

citizens and communities, as well as the 

inequalities currently experienced can only be 

achieved by us working together in partnership 

and through targeting improvement activity at 

vulnerable and disadvantaged people, families, 

and groups. 

 

Aberdeen City Local Outcome Improvement Plan 

 

M
EN

TA
L H

EA
LTH

 A
B
ER

D
EEN

 

Everyone who benefits from the 
treatments is struggling with poverty 
and affected by the cost of living 
crisis we are facing. This causes a 
great deal of stress so we help 
participants to have some respite 
from their worries, for relaxation and 
a safe space to alleviate stress. 
 

“I suffer with long term insomnia and 
I am able to sleep better after my 
sessions. I do not like taking any 
prescription medications for this 
condition so I appreciate a natural 
approach.” 

At the start of the reporting period, we were 
running a peer support group which many of our 
participants and volunteers attended. With 
funding from ACVO’s Mental Health and 
Wellbeing Fund we relaunched this as a 
‘Wellbeing Café’ in January which is open to any 
adults across Aberdeen, providing a safe space 
where people can come and chat, have a warm 
drink, engage with other people, play a game, 
and get involved in wellbeing activities. The aim 
of the Wellbeing Café is to support people to 
improve their mental health and reduce social 
isolation. 
 

A number of our adults have secured multiple 
positive destinations, with some initially 
volunteering with shmu, but also going on to gain 
employment or accessing further training. 
Volunteering and group activities have begun to 
pick up this last 6 months with more individuals 
feeling ready to participate, and with wider 
community events and sessions opening up 
again.  
 

“I wouldn’t have left the house today without 
having shmu to go to for that event so thanks for 
putting it on!”    

TILLY
D

R
O

N
E C

O
M

M
U
N

ITY
 FLA

T 
SH

M
U
 

In all our counselling services we are recognising a 
worrying trend. Clients, perhaps because of lack of access 
to a GP or appropriate medical support, often now present 
at both GP or self-referral in a much more severe state of 
distress. We used to expect a full cross section of clients 
presenting issues, but now we can hardly ever say at point 
of triage that a client can ‘safely wait’ for a few weeks when 
we have waiting lists. Generally clients are now so unwell, 
and in some cases have waited or delay for so long, that 
they really struggle getting settled in therapy. 
 
We also noticed that our normal contract of 6-8 sessions 
per person simply does not work for everyone, and it feels 
abusive or dismissive to let a client leave before they are at 
a point where they can take some charge again for their 
overall well-being. 

Page 49



Fairer Aberdeen Annual Report 2022-23 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Regeneration Matters is a forum of community representatives from all 

the regeneration and priority neighbourhoods in Aberdeen City who 

nominate 7 members to sit on the Fairer Aberdeen Board along with 3 

representatives from the Civic Forum. The group continued to meet 

virtually every month to discuss issues of interest across all the 

communities, as well as managing the Community Support Fund to 

support community engagement and empowerment. Over the year the 

Fund supported Community Networks, printing and distribution of 

Community Newsletters, IT support and communications.  
 

For more information on joining the group email faireraberdeenfund@aberdeencity.gov.uk 

“Being on the Fairer Aberdeen Board is an 
important role; it has a big impact on the city. 
We need to represent our own communities 
but also see the bigger picture.” 

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 

PARTICIPATORY BUDGETING 

“It is amazing for the community to have 

the opportunity to decide how public 

funding is used within our localities 

 Please keep this going!” 

The Fairer Aberdeen Board allocated £25,000 to undertake a PB (Participatory 
Budgeting) event in Garthdee in October 2022. The Fairer Aberdeen 
Coordinator and Development Officer supported a steering group made up of 
partners and community representatives, which prioritised the funding for 
initiatives that would improve the community and help people feel less isolated.  
 
PB gives local people the opportunity to decide on how funding is allocated in 
their area. All the applicants gave a short presentation on their proposal and 
then residents voted for the ones they would like to see delivered.  
 
People who attended on the day fed back that they enjoyed the opportunity to 
decide where the funding went and to be involved in decision making. They also 
appreciated the networking opportunities, meeting other local people, seeing 
what was going on in the area, and hearing the presentations from the groups. 
 

The projects supported by participatory budgeting will contribute towards 
achieving Local Outcome Improvement Plan priorities including providing 
individuals and communities with the social resources needed to reduce 
feelings of loneliness and social isolation.  

P
B
 F

U
N

D
ED

 IN
IT

IA
V

ES
 Kaimhill Primary FC 

Training Clothes and Equipment 
 
Inchgarth Community Centre 
Inchgarth Youth Club  
 
Inchgarth Community Centre 
The Big Community Christmas Party 
 
Aberdeen Amateur Athletic Club 
Children’s Athletics Sessions 
 
Kaim Court Community Allotment 
Social Group  
 
Friends of Kaimhill School 
Road Safety and Responsible Travel 
 
Friends of Kaimhill School 
Kaimhill Playground Garden and Forest 
 
Friends of Kaimhill School 
Cost of the School Day Initiatives 
 
Garthdee Community Council 
Community Benches  

Page 50



Fairer Aberdeen Programme 2022-23 

Fairer Aberdeen Programme - impact measures from 2019-2023 

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR 
Achieved 

19-20 
Achieved 

20-21 
Achieved 

21-22 
Achieved 

22-23 

OVERALL PROGRAMME        

Total number of participants involved 34,431 36,252 35,610 44,228 

Number of participants aged under 16 years 4,327 3,094 4,099 4,319 

Number of volunteers involved 973 630 643 739 

Number of volunteer hours contributed 145,324 120,756 114,280 144,869 

Value of volunteering time £2,227,817 £1,904,322 £1,714,200 £2,173,035 

ECONOMY        

Number of people into work 270 97 236 260 

Number of people involved in Employability Programmes  736 605 611 828 

Number of people accessing the Employment Support Fund 94 45 73 81 

Weekly Employment Support Drop-In sessions in high 
unemployment areas 

23 0 23 23 

Total receiving money advice/income maximisation advice 2,126 2,479 3,032 4,651 

Number of home visits/community appointments 1,642 1,379 2,505 2,860 

Total people reporting financial gain 1268 1012 1,059 1,230 

Total client financial gain* £3,179,778 £4,024,738 £5,941,710 £2,323,811 

Financial gain per person* £2,508 £3,977 £5,611 £1,889 

Number of people saving with a credit union 5,625 4,947 5,326 5,099 

Number of affordable loans provided 3,597 3,420 3,900 2,924 

Total amount of affordable loans provided £1,747,286 £1,722,604 £1,829,737 £1,938,069 

Amount of free food distributed in tonnes 484 615 557 554 

Equivalent in meals 1,382,857 1,757,143 1,591,429 1,314,286 

Number of food parcels provided 20,045 44,378 23,937 35,307 

Food bank users referred to other services 582 600 650 1,306 

Number of people involved in producing community media 137 80 81 238 

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE        

Number of parents and families with complex needs supported 469 198 495 444 

Number of young people moving on to employment, education or 
training 

62 26 43 76 

Number of young people accessing counselling 359 257 231 203 

Number of counselling sessions provided 3076 2211 1,824 2,033 

Number of young people involved in producing youth media 186 133 149 270 

ADULTS        

Number of people accessing counselling provision 404 379 355 373 

Number of counselling sessions provided 3,048 2,791 2,679 2,716 

Number of offenders supported pre and post release 85 39 46 23 

Number of ex-offenders reducing risk taking/offending behaviour 51 26 23 21 

Number of women  involved in prostitution supported 411 305 261 234 

 

*Financial gain was previously reported by one organisation as the lifetime of the award, it is now reported for the funding 

period only, in line with national guidelines.  

Appendix 2 

Page 51



Funded initiatives – performance indicators  

ECONOMY 

LOIP outcomes CAB Money Advice Outreach Project   

SO 1.1 to 1.4 
N/C/S  

Number of clients receiving money advice  322 

Number of clients receiving income maximisation advice  687 

Number of community appointments  2677 

Total client financial gain  £1,130,559 

Total client financial gain - money advice/debt counselling  £510,921 

Total client financial gain - income maximisation  £619,638 

Total financial gain per head  £1,646 

  Total number of participants  687 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 1 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  2 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  200 

LOIP outcomes Care and Repair Funding Officer   

SO1.2  Number of households assisted for income maximization, charitable funding or local and 
national grants  

289 

SO1.2  Number of households assisted with accessing local or national financial grants  369 

SO1  Number of households assisted accessing C & R Loan   2 

SO1.2  Total financial gain/award: Benefits & Annuities   £135,417 

Total financial gain/award: Charitable Funding  £82,422 

Total financial gain/award: Local/National Grants  £223,143 

Total financial gain/award: C & R Low-Cost loan  £6,775 

SO1  Number of people receiving a subsidised gardening Service  78 

SO1  Number of people accessing subsidised Small Repairs/Handyman Services  964 

SO1  Number of people received free upgrade to fire alarms and or financial assistance towards 
the cost  

168 

SO1  Number of people living with Dementia or Mental Health receiving support  87 

SO3  Number of people helped to access online digital services or assistance  104 

S02.1  Number of local contractors used to carry out work  20 

SO2.2  Number of new employees companywide (all receiving above living wage)  3 

SO11  Number of people assisted across services who are living with a long-term health problem 
or registered disabled  

896 

SO11.1  Number of people receiving a Home Safety Assessment  174 

SO11.1  Number of unpaid carers receiving support  48 

SO11.1  Number of households receiving major adaptations to the 
home                                                                                                      

46 

SO11.1  Number of households receiving assistance with Minor Adaptations  369 

SO13  Number of people receiving assistance with Energy Efficiency Work  74 

  Total number of participants  2499 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 28 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  10 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  1240 

LOIP outcomes NESS Employment Service   

SO 1.2  Number of people receiving advice on benefits  10 

SO 2.2  Number of people engaged and registered with the service  64 

SO 2.2  Number of people moving into work  7 

SO 2.2  Number of people in work receiving support to retain work or look at alternative options  29 

SO 3.2  Number of people supported to use technology adaptations  12 

SO 3.2  Number of people moving onto education and training  8 

SO 3.2  Number of people taking up work placement and volunteering opportunities  8 

  Total number of participants  64 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 0 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  0 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  0 

Page 52



LOIP outcomes Pathways to Employment   

SO1.1  
SO1.4  
SO2.1  
SO2.2  
SO3.2 

Numbers of unemployed or low paid people (including working people on benefits) case 
loaded to receive support  

433 

Numbers of people supported into work  238 

One-to-one support sessions delivered in regeneration and at-risk communities each week  23 

  Total number of participants  433 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 0 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  7 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  320 

LOIP outcomes Princes Trust Team Programme   

SO 2.2  Number of participants progressing to employment, training education or volunteering  6 

SO 2.2/3.2/7.1  Number of people moving into work  2 

SO 3.2  Number of entrants achieving SQA units  13 

SO 3.2  Number of entrants achieving Food Hygiene certificate  22 

SO 3.2  Number of entrants achieving First Aid certificates  0 

SO 11.2  Number retained on the programme  13 

SO 11.2/12.4  Number of completers taking part in final presentation  13 

SO 5.2  Number of young people participating in mental health and wellbeing activities during the 
course  

14 

SO 1.4  Number of unemployed young people participating in the programme from deprived areas 
of the City  

28 

SO 11.2/12.4  Number of participants taking part in community project  21 

SO 9.1  Number of participants previously engaged in offending behaviour  8 

SO 6.1  Number of care experienced young people taking part in the course  6 

SO 1.1/1.3/1.4  Number of crisis interventions to alleviate poverty  12 

  Total number of participants  32 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 0 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  10 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  40 

LOIP outcomes St Machar Credit Union   

SO1 – 1.1 / 1.3 / 
1.4 N/C  

Number of adult savers  3451 

SO1 – 1.1 / 1.3 / 
1.4 N/C  

Number of junior savers (those aged under 16)  1648 

SO1 – 1.1 / 1.3 / 
1.4 N/C  

Total savings deposited (both adult and juniors)  £2,969,693 

SO1 – 1.1 / 1.3 / 
1.4 N/C  

Number of affordable loans provided  2924 

SO 1 – 1.1 /1.3 / 
1.4 N/C  

Total amount of affordable loans provided  £1,938,069 

SO 1 – 1.1 N/C  Number of Prepaid Debit Card  262 

SO 11 – 11.2 
/ SO 8 – 8.2 / SO 
5 – 5.1 N/C  

Number of facebook likes/follows  848 

  Total number of participants  5099 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 1648 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  8 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  3925 

LOIP outcomes CFINE SAFE   

SO1.1, SO1.2, 
SO1.3, SO1.4 
N/C/S  

Number of clients engaged   2668 

Total client financial gain   £1,057,835 

Number of people reporting financial gain   254 

Total average financial gain per head   £4,165 

SO1.1, SO1.2, 
SO1.3, SO1.4 
N/C/S  + SO3.2  

Number of people receiving one to one digital support   137 

Number of people undertaking digital training to improve IT and employability skills   107 

Number of outreach venues   21 

Number of people engaged at outreach sessions (including virtual)   63 

Number of community events attended   8 

Page 53



Number of food bank self-referrals (through phone / drop ins)  523 

Number of partner referrals received (e.g., NHS, Social Work, FIT etc.)  832 

Number of mandatory reconsiderations submitted to DWP   51 

Number of mandatory reconsiderations successful   12 

Number of appeals/tribunals undertaken   30 

Number of clients from priority neighbourhoods   1464 

Number of people seen at home visits   120 

Number of people referred to CFINE’s wrap around services e.g., Food access, Community 
Pantry, CBT, Volunteering, Employability, Cooking on a budget sessions’ etc.  

308 

Number of people referred to partner agencies e.g., SCARF, Pathways, Housing, etc.  575 

  Total number of participants  3284 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 0 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  31 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  7440 

LOIP outcomes Aberdeen Foyer REACH   

SO 1.1/SO 1.3 
N/C/S  

Number of clients participating in ‘budgeting’ sessions during ‘Personal Development’ 
weeks of the course  

34 

SO 2.2/ SO 3.2 
N/C/S  

Number of clients securing employment, training and/or education as a result of the 
course  

4 

SO 11.1/SO 11.2 
N/C/S  

Number of clients participating in mental health and wellbeing activities during ‘Personal 
Development’ weeks of the course.  

34 

SO 11.2/SO 
12.04 N/C/S  

Number of clients participating in the Community Project and Community Challenge  12 

SO 2.2 N/C/S  Number of clients achieving recognised training certificates and/or qualifications  9 

SO 3.2 N/C/S  Number of digital skills sessions delivered  36 

SO 1.1  N/C/S  Number of learners taking part in cooking sessions  23 

SO 1.1/SO 1.3 
N/C/S  

Number of people receiving Financial Health Check  34 

SO 1.1 N/C/S  Number of people accessing crisis support  7 

SO 1.4 N/C/S  Number of people residing in highest deprivation areas (SIMD) accessing programme   23 

SO 6.1 N/C/S  Number of care experienced people participating in programme  4 

SO 11.1 N/C/S  Number of vulnerable/disadvantaged people accessing programme  34 

SO 11.2 N/C/S  Number of people supported to access social resources in their community  8 

SO 12.04 N/C/S  Number of events to promote and celebrate recovery within the community  5 

  Total number of participants  34 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 0 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  12 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  70 

LOIP outcomes SHMU Connecting Communities Through Community Media   

  Community Radio    

SO 11.2 N/C/S  Number of volunteers contributing to shmuFM  55 

SO 1 N/C/S  Number of hour-long weekly Community radio shows broadcast  2 

SO 1 N/C/S  Number of weekly issue-based radio shows produced and broadcast  33 

SO 1 N/C/S  Number of weekly ‘What’s On’ news feature collated and broadcast  25 

  Community Magazines    

SO 11.2 N/C/S  Number of volunteers supported to produce community magazines  36 

SO 1 N/C/S  Number of magazines produced and distributed  21 

SO 3.1 N/C/S  Number of editorial teams supported and meeting regularly  7 

SO 3.1 N/C/S  Number of Editorial Team meetings supported  63 

SO 3.1 N/C/S  Number of Joint Editorial Team meetings supported  3 

  Community TV    

SO 3.1 N/C/S  Number of Community TV workshops held  15 

SO 11.2 N/C/S  Number of volunteers contributing to Community TV  17 

  Community Websites    

SO 1.5 N/C/S  Number of Community Websites launched  0 

SO 11.2 N/C  Number of volunteers contributing to Community Websites  0 

  Across Platforms    

Page 54



SO 3.1 N/C  Number of individuals and groups supported to participate in training and skills 
development  

137 

SO 11.1, 11.2 
N/C  

Number of volunteers reporting increased confidence  95 

SO 3.1, 11.2 
N/C  

Number of volunteers acting as mentors  12 

SO 11.2 N/C  Number of volunteers reporting feeling less isolated/lonely  95 

SO 3.1 N/C/S  Number of volunteers receiving tailored employability support  5 

SO 3.1 N/C/S  Number of volunteers securing SQA  0 

SO 11.1 N/C  Number of items of content produced relating to Health & Wellbeing across all media 
platforms  

72 

SO 11.1 N/C  Number of items of content produced relating to food and fuel poverty across all media 
platforms  

33 

SO 11.1, 11.2 
N/C/S  

Number of organisations working in partnership with  117 

SO 1.5, 1.6 
N/C/S  

Number of guests from local authorities/local & national government  48 

  Total number of participants  238 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years   

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  108 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  26,857 

LOIP outcomes Silver City Surfers   

SO1 Number of new learners in City Centre  108 

SO1 Average number of learners at each session in City Centre  6 

SO1 Average number of volunteers at each session in City Centre  5 

SO1 Number of sessions offered in City Centre  152 

SO 1  Number of Digital devices delivered in partnership with Connecting Scotland to enable 
learners to access priority services like benefit application, universal credit, GP services   

15 

SO 3  One to one tutoring sessions to enable learners to develop CV skills, job application, and IT 
skills   

12 

S0 3  Recruitment and Training of Young Volunteers to enhance IT and Tutoring skills to develop 
transferable skills when applying for paid jobs  

5 

SO 11  Face to Face drop in sessions with hospitality teams to reduce social isolation, promote 
buddy system services to ensure the well being and Mental Health of volunteers   

202 

  Total number of participants  590 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 0 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  17 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  4105 

LOIP outcomes Cummings Park Community Flat   

SO1 SO11.2 Number of management committee meetings 9 

SO1 SO11.2 Number of management committee members 11 

SO1 SO11.2 Number of management committee training events 3 

SO1 SO11 % of activities led by the management committee 90% 

SO1 
SO11 

Number of contacts accessing flat led activities 868 

Number of individual users of Flat facilities - enquiries, phone, use of computers 203 

Number of partners/agencies delivering services from Cummings Park Community Flat. 11 

Number of individuals referred to partner agencies by volunteers 100 

Number of contacts accessing the drop in sessions facilitated by partners 104 

Total number of youth work contacts 5 

Total number of adult learning contacts 396 

Total number of individual adult learners 51 

Number of people on the Cumming North editorial group 3 

Number of people who have access to Wifi for phone, computer etc. 293 

SO14.1  Number of people undertaking walking activities  28 

SO1 Number of healthy meals/snacks provided 12 

SO11 Number of people signposted to relevant health agencies 7 

SO11 % of people reporting they find flat safe and welcoming place to attend 100% 

Page 55



  Number of agencies flat is working in partnership with 11 

SO14.1 Number of people involved in Litter Picking and community walk abouts 12 

SO11  Number of buddies helping people to reintegrate   

Number of people connecting online - online classes/meetings 2 

SO1 SO11 Total amount of attendances 1745 

  Total number of individual participants  389 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 4 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  9 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  1315 

LOIP outcomes Printfield Community Project   

SO5.2 C  Number of children provided with healthy lunches during school holidays.  70 

SO5.2  Number of children & young people who attend out of school care and youth services.  130 

SO5.2  Number of children registered at the After School Club.  43 

SO4.1  C  Number of children under 3 yrs registered.  10 

  Number of children and young people aged 5-16 participating   

Locality Plan  
 
Supporting 
community 
empowerment 
and 
participation.  

Number of residents who participate in Woodside Network.  14 

Number of volunteers involved in Printfield Management Committee, Printfield Forum, 
Woodside Network.   

32 

Number of Woodside Network meetings supported.  10 

Number of Adult Learners involved in Courses.  8 

Number of Adult courses provided.  3 

Number of people getting support with benefits and 1-2-1 sessions.  60 

  Total number of participants  234 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 98 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  30 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  600 

LOIP outcomes Seaton Community Flat   

SO 1 Number of Agencies Using the Flat   11 

Number of attendances at agencies  1171 

Number of uses of Flat Facilities  278 

Number of uses of information and advice provision  192 

SO1,SO11.2 
 
  

Number of members of the STAR Flat Management Committee  3 

Number of STAR Management Committee Meetings and training sessions held  3 

Number of members and organisation reps on the STAR Flat Management Committee  3 

Number of STAR Flat Management Committee Meetings and Training Sessions held.  3 

Number of Star Members  19 

SO 1.2, SO2.2  Number of sessions (group or individual) supporting getting people back into work  33 

SO 1.2 SO2.2  Number of attendances at sessions supporting getting people back into work  143 

SO 1.2 SO2.2  Number of people involved in sessions supporting getting people back into work  15 

SO 1.1 SO1.2  Number of Credit Union Branch openings held  46 

SO 1.1 SO1.2  Number of attendances (pay ins) at Credit Union  281 

SO 3.1,SO3.2, 
SO11.2  

Number of sessions aimed at increasing skills and activity  101 

SO 3.1,SO3.2 
SO11.2  

Number of attendances at sessions aimed at increasing skills and creativity  531 

SO 3.1 SO3.2 
SO11.1 SO11.2  

Number of people involved in seasons aimed at increasing skills and creativity (individuals)  42 

SO11.2, SO1.3 
SO12.3  

Number of uses of services and activities that that support improving mental health, 
wellbeing and diet.  

439 

SO4.3 SO11.1  Number of sessions in the Chill Out Room  200 

SO4.3 SO11.1  Number of attendances at Sessions in the Chill Out Room  90 

  Total number of individual participants  404 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 24 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  8 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  60 

LOIP outcomes Tillydrone Community Flat   

SO1 Number of uses of flat facilities – washing machine, phone, access to computers  6400 

Page 56



Number of agencies using the Flat to deliver advice and support services for a range of 
issues including Health, Education. Employability and Financial Inclusion  

12 

Number of locals/members on the Committee  8 

Number of Management Committee meetings and training sessions occurring  12 

Number of people on the Tilly Tattle editorial group  2 

Number of reps from the Flat attending Tillydrone Network meetings  2 

Number of attendances at Learning opportunities  258 

Number of adults involved in Adult Learning Activities  15 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers supporting the service  13 

SO1,SO11.2 Number of opportunities provided to engage with people with mental health issues and/or 
feeling of social isolation  

285 

SO1 Number of Food Parcels provided to those in need  1994 

SO1 Number of Food Partnership groups attended by Development Officer  6 

SO12.3 Number of service users who are engaged in activities to assist with their recovery from 
drug/alcohol issues  

83 

 SO1 Number of network meetings attended  8 

 SO1 Number of users who access computers at the flat  42 

SO15 Number of growing spaces and planters in flat garden to engage with local residents to 
grown fruit/veg/flowers  

8 

 SO1.2 Number of service users assisted with debt or benefit issues inhouse and also referred to 
other agencies  

236 

 SO1 Number of food parcels made available from CFINE, Trussell Trust and donations given to 
flat  

1994 

  Total number of participants  611 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 193 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  13 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  520 

LOIP outcomes Tackling Food Poverty   

SO1.1, SO1.4 
N/C/S  

Tonnes of food redistributed  554 

SO1.1, SO1.4 
N/C/S  

Equivalent number of meals redistributed  1,314,286 

SO1.1 N/C/S  Tonnes of chilled fresh, frozen and ambient food allocated to community pantries  83 

SO1.1  Number of cooperative Community Food Outlets established  21 

SO1.1 N/C/S  Number of emergency food parcels distributed  35,307 

SO1.1  N/C/S  Number of community organisations receiving FareShare food  193 

SO1.1 SO 1.2 
N/C/S  

Number of people to benefit from Mobile Cooperative Vehicle services   4013 

SO1.1 
SO1.4  SO11.2 
N/C/S  

Number of volunteers supported  332 

SO1.1, SO 
1.2,  N/C/S  

Number of referrals to wrap-around services (eg SAFE, cooking on a budget, employability 
etc)  

423 

SO1.1 N/C/S  Lived experience group re-established  1 

  Total number of participants  25,529 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 0 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  332 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  79,680 

LOIP outcomes Aberdeen Foyer REACH   

SO 1.1 SO 1.3 
N/C/S  

Number of clients participating in financial literacy sessions   36 

SO 1.1 SO 1.3 
N/C/S  

Number of Financial Health checks completed as part of the course  36 

SO 1.1 N/C/S  Number of people accessing crisis support   6 

SO 2.2 N/C/S  Number of participants moving into employability programmes including Fair Start 
Scotland, REACH as a result of the course   

3 

SO 11.1 SO 11.2 
N/C/S  

Number of participants reporting increased confidence and knowledge to make healthy 
lifestyle choices as a result of the course  

 36 

SO 1.4 N/C/S  Number of people residing in highest deprivation areas (SIMD) participating in programme  20 

Page 57



SO 6.1 N/C/S  Number of care experienced people participating in programme  6 

SO 2.2 N/C/S  Number of participants to move directly to quality, living wage employment as a result of 
the course  

4 

SO 11.2 N/C/S  Number of participants supported to access social resources in their community  10 

SO 1.1  N/C/S  Number of participants taking part in cooking sessions  23 

SO 3.2 N/C/S  Number of digital skills sessions delivered  30 

  Total number of participants  36 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 0 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  5 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  25 

LOIP outcomes GREC Tackling & Preventing Destitution Project   

SO1  Number of training sessions provided to third and public sector organisations  14 

SO2  Number of employability providers in Aberdeen that have received training and/or 
additional support from the project  

 4 

SO2  Proportion of employability providers in Aberdeen that receive training and support from 
the project  

 50% 

SO1  Number of financial/benefits advice agencies in Aberdeen that have received training 
and/or additional support from the project  

 5 

SO1  Proportion of financial/benefits advice agencies in Aberdeen that receive training and 
support from the project  

 50% 

SO1  Number of individuals with NRPF participating in the lived experience group   3 

SO1  Number of meetings or activities of the lived experience group   1 

SO1  Number of direct interactions with relevant policy makers, aimed at improving policy and 
strategy relating to people with NRPF  

12 

SO1 SO2  Number of relevant policy forums and consultation opportunities attended where learning 
from the project has been shared  

15 

  Number of people participating in lived experience group 3 

  Number of workers receiving training 221 

  Total number of participants  250 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 0 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  0 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  0 

  

Page 58



CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE 

LOIP outcomes St Machar Parent Support Positive Lifestyles   

SO4.1,SO6.2 C/N Number of kinship careers receiving either one to one or group work support from project 
staff  15 

SO6.2  Number of kinship careers attending regularly  18 

SO6.2  Number of Kinship careers reporting they feel less socially isolated  18 

SO1 Number of people have access to foodbanks  36 

SO1 Number of people accessing grants  37 

SO1 Number of people accessing credit unions through referral from staff  2 

SO4.1,SO11.1  Number of parents of children under 5 and adults over 16 accessing service out with 
council core funding  

344 

SO4.1,SO11.1  Number of one to one parent support meetings  62 

SO4.1,SO11.1  Number of   participants attending the Positive Lifestyles Programme  344 

SO4.1,SO11.1  Number of individual inquiries  62 

SO4.1,SO11.1  Number of parents referred on to relevant agencies  7 

SO4.1,SO11.1  Number of people receiving help with CVs and interviews  6 

SO4.1,SO11.1  Number of people helped to complete benefit enquiries  51 

SO1,SO4.1,SO11.1  Number of people joining St Machar Credit union  2 

SO1,SO4.1,SO11.1  Number of people supported to claim grants  37 

SO11.2 Number of people taking up volunteering opportunities  7 

  Total number of participants  344 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 12 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  10 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  24 

LOIP outcomes Home-Start Aberdeen   

SO1.1 SO1.2 
SO11.3 

Number of families using community pantries  
8 

SO1.1 SO1.2  Number of families supported with financial issues  22 

SO1.1 SO1.2  Number of families supported who have no recourse to public funds  4 

SO4.1 SO8.1  Number of families supported in regeneration areas  30 

SO4.1  Number of families report that they feel better able to cope with the issues in their lives  21 

SO4.1  Number of families no longer needing Social Work support  4 

SO4.1 SO6.2  Number of care experienced parents needing reduced Social Work support  1 

SO4.1  Number of children accessing play and learning opportunities  30 

SO4.1  Number of families with increased access to local and community services  14 

SO4.1  Number of families supported to access universal and statutory services  13 

SO4.2  Number of families who supported to create a safer home environment  4 

SO4.3 SO6.2  Number of families reporting reduced isolation  24 

SO4.3 SO11.3  Number of families participating in Recipe for Life project  3 

SO4.3 SO5.2  Number of people reporting improved physical and/or mental health  27 

SO5.2 SO4.3  Number of children whose emotional wellbeing has improved  28 

SO6.2  Number of families supported where one or more parent is care experienced  2 

SO11.2  Number of families supported to play a more active role in their community  10 

  Total number of participants  97 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 48 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  32 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  4992 

LOIP outcomes Fersands Youth Work Support   

SO1 SO4 SO5 SO7 
SO8  
SO1 
SO1 
C 

Number of group  activities available to  youths 12yr + per week   5 

Number of youth workers/volunteers available to support young people   8 

Number of group  activities available to   5 – 12yrs  per week  4 

Number of Holiday activities / days  offered 5-12 yrs  21 

Number of Holiday activities offered to youths   12 +  16 

Number of Young People involved in volunteering  12 

Number of free meals provided  for 5-12 yr olds during activities  447 

Number of free meals provided for 12yrs +  during activities  222 

Page 59



Free Holiday Residential experience offered to young people  5-21  4 

  Total number of participants  116 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 99 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  7 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  420 

LOIP outcomes SHMU Train Initiative   

  Training Academy    

SO9  Number of young people participating across TA provision  20 

SO2, SO7  Number of young people securing Positive destinations:  9 

Employment  0 

Education  6 

Training  3 

  Progression Milestones:    

SO7  Number of participants securing interview for work  0 

Number of participants securing interview for College  1 

SO3  Number of participants securing an SQA qualification  0 

  Soft Outcomes:    

Locality N/C/S  Number of participants reporting increase in health and wellbeing  20 

Number of participants reporting increase in aspirations  20 

Number of participants reporting increase in job search skills  20 

  Positive Transitions    

SO9  Number of young people participating in post-school employability programmes   33 

SO2, SO7  Number of young people securing Positive Destinations:  20 

Employment  2 

Education  3 

Training  15 

  Progression Milestones:    

SO7  Number of participants securing an SQA qualification  11 

Number of young people moving into volunteering  3 

Number of young people securing an interview for work  9 

Number of young people securing an interview for college  4 

  Soft Outcomes:    

Locality N/C/S  Number of participants reporting increase in health and wellbeing  33 

Number of participants reporting increase in aspirations  33 

Number of participants reporting increase in job search skills  33 

  Adult Programmes (inc women returners, adult employability etc)    

SO9  Number of participants  (inc. support at Ukranian sessions) 30 

SO2, SO7  Number of participants securing Positive Destinations:  2 

Employment  0 

Education  0 

Training  2 

  Progression Milestones:    

SO7  Number of participants securing an SQA qualification  0 

Number of participants moving into volunteering  3 

Number of participants securing an interview for work  4 

Number of participants securing an interview for college  0 

  Soft Outcomes:    

Locality N/C/S  Number of participants reporting increase in health and wellbeing  14 

Number of participants reporting increase in aspirations  14 

Number of participants reporting increase in job search skills  18 

Number of participants reporting increase in basic skills  18 

Number of participants reporting increase in digital skills  14 

Locality C  Number of outreach sessions delivered in the community  8 

Number of participants engaged at community outreach sessions  26 

  Total number of participants  83 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 6 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  0 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  0 

Page 60



LOIP outcomes SHMU Youth Media   

SO 1.3, 1.4, 5.1, 
5.2, 6.1, 7.1, 8.2 
N/C/S  

Number of young people attending training sessions  

270 

SO 1.3, 1.4, 5.1, 
5.2, 6.1, 7.1, 8.2 
N/C/S  

Total number of young people actively involved with Youth Media on a regular basis  

24 

SO 1.3, 1.4, 5.1, 
5.2, 6.1, 7.1, 8.2 
N/C/S  

Number of participants aged under 16 years actively involved on a regular basis  

20 

SO 8.2 N  Number of young people acting as members of Youth Media Forum  12 

SO 1.3, 5.1, 5.2 
N/C/S  

Number of young people demonstrating increased communication skills  
214 

SO 1.3, 5.1, 5.2 
N/C/S  

Number of young people demonstrating increased confidence  
134 

SO 1.3, 5.1, 5.2, 
N/C/S  

Number of young people demonstrating improved time management  
121 

SO 1.3, 1.4, 5.1, 
5.2, 8.2 N/C/S  

Number of young people who feel able to do new things  
214 

SO 1.3, 6.1,  N/C/S  Number of young people who report their skills are increasing  204 

SO 1.3, 5.2, 6.1 
N/C/S  

Number of young people who report increased aspirations  
120 

SO 1.3, 5.1, 5.2, 9.3 
N/C/S  

Number of young people who report positive changes in their behaviour  
48 

SO 5.2 N/C/S  Number of young people who report increases in wellbeing against SHANARRI indicators  212 

SO 6.1, 7.1 N/C/S  Number of young people securing Saltire Awards  4 

SO 6.1, 7.1 N/C/S  Number of young people securing SVQ's  2 

SO 7.1 N/C/S  Number of young people progressing to employment  1 

SO 6.1, 7.1 S  Number of young people progressing to further/higher education  2 

SO 6.1, 7.1 S  Number of young people progressing to training  1 

  Total number of participants  270 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 249 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  24 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  8112 

LOIP outcomes Middlefield Youth Flat and Under 11s   

SO8.1 N Number of young people  over the year involved in diversionary activities to reduce crime 
and exclusion rates 

96 

SO4,SO5,SO7,SO8 
N 

Number of days the youth hub is open  217 

Number of youth work sessions run at the youth hub 870 

Number of young people attending the youth hub 96 

Number of day trips 10 

Number of young people that continue to have or new individual learning plans or goals 30 

Number of young people being supported to get into work, training or college  15 

Number of consultations either about the youth hub or outside agencies 2 

Number of young people presenting or needing support with  mental health issues  30 

SO9 N Number of young people that have additional support needs  30 

SO4 N Volunteers & Under 11’s work 2 

Primary 1 club sessions 36 

Primary 2 club sessions 37 

Primary 3 club sessions 37 

Primary 4 club sessions 37 

Primary 5-6 club sessions 37 

Children with additional needs 10 

Number of children attending through the year 68 

Number of outings/ park  22 

  Total number of participants  164 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 148 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  4 

Page 61



SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  140 

LOIP outcomes Big Bang Drumming Group    

SO4 N/C Number of young people attending  10 

  Total number of participants  12 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 10 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  2 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  40 

LOIP outcomes Mental Health Aberdeen ACIS Youth Counselling   

SO1.4/SO11/SO5.2  Number of counselling sessions for 12 – 18 at hub  1431 

Number of clients aged 12+ at hub  128 

SO 4.1  Number of clients at Primary Schools (Tullos & Walker Road)  32 

Number of appointments for above:  488 

Number of meetings with Teachers, parents, other referring agencies  941 

SO 8.2  Signposting and advice from ACIS Information Officers  893 

  Total number of participants  321 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 160 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  3 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  106 

LOIP outcomes Befriend A Child   

SO5/SO8  Number of children attending youth club on a regular basis  46 

SO5.1/SO8.1  Number of young people suggesting topics for and taking part in youth information 
sessions 

30 

SO5.2/SO8.2  Proportion of children and young people from all regeneration areas attending the youth 
clubs  

42 

SO5.3/SO8.3  Number of children that are safe and responsible  46 

SO5.4/SO8.4  Number of children that are respected, included, and achieving  46 

SO5.5/SO8.5  Total number of participants involved  46 

SO5.6/SO8.6  Number of participants aged under 16 years  46 

SO5.7/S08.7  Increase the number of people to directly support, or refer a child for support  10 

SO 11.2  Number of volunteers involved  12 

SO 11.2  Number of volunteer hours contributed  1860 

SO1  Number of people using Mobile Pantry Vans  5 

S013  Number of children involved in increased community growing  20 

  Total number of participants  46 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 46 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  12 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  1860 

LOIP outcomes Choices Relationship Revolution   

SO5.2 Number of young people participating in this programme  1410 

SO5.2 Number of educational workshops delivered  153 

SO5.2 Number of Drop in Clubs delivered  80 

SO8.2  Number of young people consistently engaged in focus group  21 

SO5.2 Number of young people accessing counselling 3+ sessions  43 

SO5.1 Young people reporting increased knowledge of existing support services  95% 

SO5.2 Percentage of participants able to identify violent and exploitative relationships  98% 

SO4.1 Number of promoting positive communications groups for young people and a significant 
adult  

4 

SO5.2 Number of creative therapy session  4 

SO1.1  Number of families identified by the school receiving Hardship grant 30 

SO1.4  Number of families identified by the school receiving Hardship grant to especially for 
families seeking Asylum, Refugee Status  

20 

SO4.1  Number of Time for 2 and Dad’s and Lads Sessions young people with a significant adult   6 

SO5.2  Number of Focus group  7 

SO7.1  Creative therapy and Resilience Workshops with Like skills to gain transferable skills in 
workplace  

5 

SO8.2  Relationship Revolution Workshops   153 

SO9.1  Creative Therapy and Counselling Sessions  114 

  Total number of participants  1532 

Page 62



  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 1410 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  8 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  524 

LOIP outcomes Fersands Family Centre   

SO4.1 Number of families receiving support  44 

SO4.1 Number of families receiving intensive support  12 

SO4.1 Number of parent groups  set up  1 

SO4.1 Number of families that have benefitted through grants  50 

SO4.1 Number of parents attending 25 

SO4.1 Number of children attending 25 

  Total number of participants  120 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 50 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  5 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  480 

LOIP outcomes ACC Geronimo - Time to Play    

SO 4.1   Number of people receiving parenting and family support  141 

SO 4.1   Number of adults receiving parenting and family support  58 

SO 4.3   Number of parent/carers reporting an improved relationships with their child  86%  

SO 4.3   Number of parent/carers reporting improved wellbeing having taken part in Geronimo    88%  

SO 4.3   Number of parent/carers reporting an increase in time spent playing with their children  86%  

SO 5.1   Number of children who receive Fit Like? Geronimo 1:1 family support  11 

  Total number of participants  141 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 85 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  0 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  0 

 

 

  

Page 63



ADULTS 

LOIP outcomes Mental Health Aberdeen Calsayseat Counselling   

SO11.1  
SO11.2 
SO12.2  

Total number of participants  156 

Number of sessions delivered  1,089 

%age of clients reporting a decreased score in HAD monitoring forms  68% 

  Total number of participants  156 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 0 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  1 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  39 

LOIP outcomes Printfield Feel Good Project   

S011.1  Number of treatments provided  88 

  Total number of participants  20 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 0 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  0 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  0 

LOIP outcomes Tillydrone Health & Well Being Project   

S011.1  Number of treatments provided  240 

  Total number of participants  48 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 0 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  3 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  80 

LOIP outcomes Police Scotland Operation Begonia   

SO 1.1  Number of females offered assistance in relation to budgeting – Spring Gardens / 
Cyrenians.  

234 

SO 1.1  Number of females provided with information relating to food banks / food pantries – 
Cyrenians  

234 

SO 1.2  Number of females offered assistance relating to unclaimed benefits – Spring Gardens / 
Cyrenians  

234 

SO 2.2   Number of females offered assistance relating to employability – Spring Gardens / 
Cyrenians  

234 

SO10.1 SO12.2 
SO12.3  

Number of females offered assistance relating to chaotic alcohol and drug use.  – Alcohol 
and Drugs Action  234 

SO10.3  Number of females being offered assistance relating to domestic abuse - Cyrenians  234 

SO 10.4   Number of people offered DBI referrals - Penumbra  30 

SO 11.1  Number of females offered support in relation to housing / homelessness – Cyrenians / 
Spring Gardens   

234 

SO10.2 Number of patrols.  62 

Number of females engaged with.  234 

Number of new females engaged with.  14 

Number of males dealt with appropriately.  101 

Number of Home Visits.  85 

Number of Intelligence logs.  261 

  Total number of participants  234 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 0 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  0 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  0 

LOIP outcomes Pathways to Wellbeing   

SO11.1 
SO11.2 

Number of counsellors 2 

Number of priority areas covered 7 

Number of people accessing the counselling service  91 

Total number of participants  91 

Number of counselling sessions delivered  835 

  Total number of participants  91 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 0 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  7 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  320 

Page 64



LOIP outcomes SHMU Adult Engagement and Support    

  Prison    

SO 10.1  Total number of offenders participating in programme in prison  22 

SO 10.1  Number participating in the programme pre-release  13 

SO 10.1  Total number of offenders participating in programme in the community  10 

SO 10.1  Number of participants who engage with appropriate support services post release  10 

SO 3.1 N/C/S  Number of participants improving their confidence   13 

SO 3.1 N/C/S  Number of participants improving their communication   12 

SO 3.1 N/C/S  Number of participants improving their creative skills  12 

SO 10.4 N/C/S  Number of participants improving their wellbeing  12 

SO 11.2 N  Number of volunteers hours contributed within prison  250 

  Community     

  Total number of participants taking part in the community   54 

SO 1.3,  SO 1.4 
N/C/S  

Number of participants engaging in activities within the community  
46 

SO 1.3,  SO 1.4 
N/C/S  

Number of participants accessing support within the community  
37 

SO 3.1 N/C/S  Number of participants securing a positive destination:  19 

SO 11.2  Volunteering  13 

SO 3.1 N/C/S  Education  5 

SO 3.1 N/C/S  Training  9 

SO 3.1 N/C/S  Employment  6 

SO 10.1  Number of participants reducing their risk taking and/or offending behaviour  21 

SO 3.1 N/C/S  Number of participants improving their confidence   41 

SO 3.1 N/C/S  Number of participants improving their communication   41 

SO 3.1 N/C/S  Number of participants improving their creative skills  41 

SO 10.4 N/C/S  Number of participants improving their wellbeing  42 

SO 10.4 N/C/S  Number of participants reducing their isolation and loneliness   41 

SO 11.2 N  Number of volunteers hours contributed in community  1094 

  Total number of participants  76 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years   

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  17 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  1194 

LOIP outcomes Torry Adult Counselling   

SO 1.4,SO 11  Number of counselling sessions provided in priority area  792 

Number of clients taking session as above  126 

Number of meetings with referring agencies, including partnership surgeries/community 
centre staff  

3 

  Total number of participants  136 

  Total number of participants aged under 16 years 0 

SO11.2 Number of volunteers  2 

SO11.2 Number of volunteer hours contributed  141 

 

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 66



 
 

 ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 

 

COMMITTEE Anti-Poverty and Inequality Committee  

DATE 20th March 2024 

EXEMPT No 

CONFIDENTIAL No 

REPORT TITLE Aberdeen City Integrated Children’s Services 
Strategic Plan Annual Report April 2023 – March 
2024. 

REPORT NUMBER CFS/24/042. 

DIRECTOR Eleanor Sheppard 

CHIEF OFFICER Shona Milne, Graeme Simpson and Jacqui McKenzie 

REPORT AUTHOR Eleanor Sheppard 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 1 and 2.1 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 This Annual Report outlines work undertaken by the Children’s Services Board 

over 2023/24 and incorporates the Local Child Poverty Action Report (LCPAR) 
for 2023/24.  The report outlines the changes being made to the agreed 
Aberdeen City Integrated Children’s Services Strategic Plan to support 
Community Planning Partners to positively respond to changes in published 
data and changed national policy intent. 

 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

That the Committee:- 
 
2.1 note the progress made in delivering the Aberdeen City Integrated Children’s 

Services Strategic Plan and associated work to address child poverty from April 
2023 to date; 

 
2.2  note and comment on the changes evident in data sets released over the 

reporting period; and 
 
2.3 delegate authority to the Interim Director Children’s and Family Services to 

submit the Annual Report, which is inclusive of the Local Child Poverty Action 
Report (LCPAR), to Scottish Government. 

 
 
3. CURRENT SITUATION 
 
3.1. Part 3 (Children’s Services Planning) of the Children and Young People 

(Scotland) Act 2014 requires every local authority and its relevant health 
board to jointly prepare an Integrated Children’s Services Plan in respect of a 
three-year period.  The current Aberdeen City Children’s Services Strategic 

Page 67

Agenda Item 9.3



 
 

Plan was approved by the Education and Children’s Services Committee in 
March 2023. 

 
3.2 The agreed Plan is one of a suite of Statutory Plans which support delivery of 

the Local Outcome Improvement Plan.  In preparing the Plan in March 2023, 
considerable work was undertaken to align reporting arrangements in order to 
better integrate the full range of statutory Plans.   

 
3.3 As a result of this integration, this Annual Report includes the annual Local 

Child Poverty Action Report (LCPAR) which is required to comply with the 
Child Poverty (Scotland) Act 2017.   

 
3.4 More integrated evaluation and reporting is helping Officers identify the issues 

to be addressed more clearly than is possible when looking at policies in an 
isolated way.   

 
Approach taken to developing the Annual Report 

3.5 In preparing this annual report we have reviewed data published since March 
2023 to identify any emerging changes from the data reviewed 
comprehensively a year ago.  The Board has also reviewed the current 
Community Planning Population Needs Assessment and benefited from 
reviewing the themes emerging from the extensive engagement undertaken to 
inform the refresh of our Local Outcome Improvement Plan (LOIP). Reviewing 
both data and insights has helped us draw firmer conclusions on the activity 
most likely to realise improved outcomes over the final two years of the Plan 
and therefore assess the adequacy of the current Plan.  

3.6 Although undertaking the annual review has broadly confirmed the 
appropriateness of the current plan, some new risks to children, such as the 
risk of obesity, are outlined in the report which will require additional action to 
be taken. 

 Internal evaluation of the work of the Board  
3.7 In addition to our planned improvement work and work supporting delivery of 

national policy, the Children’s Services Board has continued to keep abreast 
of impending legislative changes to ensure readiness for what lies ahead.  
This has seen the Children’s Services Board participate in planning for The 
National Care Service (NCS) through our local Programme Board, be 
selected as a Bairns Hoose Pathfinder to help us build on the existing co-
located Police Scotland and Children’s Social work SCIM team and monitor 
the progress of the anticipated Children’s Care and Justice Bill.  The Board 
has extensively engaged in education reform consultations and continues to 
prepare for the incorporation of the United Nations Convention on the Rights 
of the Child (UNCRC).   This work will continue and consideration will now 
require to be given to the findings of the Secure Care Review to ensure our 
readiness for delivery. 

 
3.8 The Children’s Services Board has invested time in considering how best to 

track progress against our ambitious plan.  This has led to the implementation 
of an agreed tracker to help improve transparent tracking of progress and is 
helping to highlight emerging risks and issues.  This greater visibility is 

Page 68



 
 

enabling the Board to take swifter action when required.  These changes are 
helping to build a culture of collective responsibility and candour amongst 
Board members.  The current approach will be maintained. 

3.9 In addition to providing leadership to our Sub Groups, the Children’s Services 
Board has collaborated to evaluate progress on a number of key policies.  
This has included our evaluation of progress towards delivery of Plan 21-24 in 
October 2023.  Our discipline of on-going evaluation on key policies is helping 
improve our collective understanding of the challenges facing our children and 
families and helping us take a more holistic and agile approach.  As we move 
forward, more annual reports will be built into this Children’s Services Plan 
Annual Report so that the connections across different policies are fully 
aligned.  This approach reflects the best practice described in recent national 
non statutory guidance issued to support delivery of the United Nations 
Convention on the Rights of the Child (UNCRC). 

3.10 The Board has benefited from closer working with the Child Protection 
Committee (CPC) this year and now works in collaboration to deliver shared 
audits and quality assurance activity.  This has seen the Board review the 
effectiveness of arrangements to support children and young people who 
have experienced harmful sexual behaviour and to review the circumstances 
which trigger a referral to services under the category of physical abuse.  The 
Board also collaborated with the CPC to plan delivery of our Bairns Hoose as 
part of a national pathfinder.  We look forward to working with the national 
Bairns Hoose team over the coming year as the capital works get underway 
and the team starts to be established.  This alignment will be maintained and 
likely develop further over the next reporting cycle. 

3.11 A refreshed Request for Assistance (RfA) process has been developed and 
will soon be delivered to help us monitor demand and the impact of services 
in real time.  This second version of the system will enable us to look at how 
effectively different interventions support the mitigation of risk and help inform 
our future commissioning, data from this second version will inform the next 
Annual Report. 

3.12 The quality of our evaluation is improving.  Further development of a robust 
evaluation framework which helps assess the strength of all three tiers of our 
Tiered Intervention Framework (Family Support Model) as outlined in the 
Annual Report will help us decommission services which are not aligned to 
The Promise and facilitate the shift of resources towards preventative and 
early intervention.  We continue to benefit from close collaboration with our 
local Health Determinates Research Collaborative (HDRC). The HDRC have 
also committed to working in collaboration with the University of Edinburgh to 
help us evaluate the impact of our local Bairns Hoose. 

3.13 Those represented on the Board continue to support a high proportion of 
displaced children and young people including those fleeing conflict and 
unaccompanied asylum seeking children.  After Glasgow, the city welcomes 
the highest proportion of displaced people.  Services continue to respond with 
agility although this has placed considerable pressure on local services. 

3.14 The Board successfully implemented updated GIRFEC Operational Guidance 
over the reporting period.  Unfortunately there was no appetite to develop a 

Page 69



 
 

more regional approach to support colleagues working across the Health 
Board.  Work is ongoing to secure greater alignment between GIRFEC and 
GIRFE for those who have a disability.  Revisions have been proposed to our 
agreed Child’s Planning format based on feedback from children and young 
people and this feedback will be retained as we await an updated national 
position. 

3.15 Over the course of the year, the impact of poverty on children and families 
has become even more evident.  The Children’s Services Board has agreed 
content for a child poverty training course.  SHMU has been commissioned to 
help develop the training course to ensure consistent messaging and 
understanding of the issues facing our families 

 Internal evaluation of the work of our Sub Groups 
3.16 Considerable time has been invested in the development of Improvement 

Project Charters.  This has supported new groups of staff from across the 
Community Planning Partnership to join forces to work on shared projects 
aligned with our Plan, the progress of each charter is routinely reported to the 
Community Planning Aberdeen Board.  A total of 34 Improvement Projects 
have been agreed and all are now making good progress, we expect to see 
the benefits of this collaboration clearly over the next 12 months.  

 
3.17 With the exception of one Sub Group, all Groups have benefited from a 

consistent Chair who has overseen work within agreed timescales and 
ensured delivery of the agreed Plan.  Discussions are on-going with NHS 
Grampian to identify a replacement Chair for Stretch Outcome 9 with short 
term additional capacity being provided by Aberdeen City Council.    

 

 Learning from the data review 
3.18 There are considerable differences in trend data at ward level.  It is therefore 

important to consider how to better utilise locality based staff to ensure that 
our approaches reflect the unique context of each community and of the 
complexity of individual families rather than presume the centrally designed 
supports will meet needs.   

 
3.19 It is proposed that a new approach to support families with complex and multi-

faceted challenges be designed and tested across a small number of 
communities to establish how best to address the considerable variation in 
outcomes.   

 
3.20 Given the clear disparity in outcomes for those living in Scottish Index of 

Multiple Deprivation(SIMD) 1 evident from the data review, it is proposed that 
resource from the Whole Family Wellbeing Fund be used to secure a data 
analyst to better support our identification and tracking of outcomes for those 
in SIMD 1.  This will help inform our evaluation of new approaches outlined in 
para 3.18 and 3.19.   

 
3.21 There is also a need to consider how best to address obesity given that 

obesity impacts on long term health outcomes.  Concerning trends are 
becoming apparent in both children and expectant mothers and it is important 
to address these timeously. Discussions with partners, including Public 

Page 70



 
 

Health, will be important in shaping a strategic approach to addressing 
childhood obesity.  Proposals on how best to address these areas will be 
presented to the Education and Children’s Services Committee for 
consideration in due course. 

 
Learning for future planning 

3.22 There is a need to consider how we could better align the work of the Children’s 
Services Board with Locality Plans to maximise all integration opportunities as 
we move forward.  This will help fully utilise the knowledge of community assets 
who help shape Locality plans.  This should be progress as far as possible this 
session and in future planning cycles. 

 
 Next steps 
3.23 The Plan put in place a year ago continues to be relevant.  A number of key 

areas have been identified for further work.  They are to: 

• Re-design how we support families with complex and multi-faceted 
challenges in a family centric way and continue to develop our use of 
data (with a particular focus on SIMD 1) 

• To work with Community Planning Partners to develop a whole system 
approach to addressing obesity. 

• Continue to plan for the incorporation of the UNCRC 

• Implement the recommendations of the Secure Care Review. 
 

3.24 The Aberdeen City Integrated Children’s Services high level plan has been 
amended to take account of these additions (changes shown in red). 

 

 
 
3.25 Plans of how to address obesity and to developing different ways of working 

to support those living in SIMD 1/improved tracking of the outcomes of those 
living in SIMD 1 will be considered in greater depth with proposals presented 
to the Education and Children’s Services Committee for approval in due 

Page 71



 
 

course.  Wherever possible, initiatives and reports likely to contribute to 
addressing child poverty will be presented to the Anti-Poverty and Inequality 
Committee in advance of being presented to the Education and Children’s 
Services Committee for formal approval. 

 
3.26  The Aberdeen City Integrated Children’s Services Strategic Plan Annual 

Report will be presented to Community Planning Aberdeen in April 2024 for 
formal ratification and be submitted to the Scottish Government thereafter.   

 
 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 There are no financial implications arising from the recommendations in this 
report.  Closer alignment of services could help realise efficiency in the longer 
term. 

 
 

5.  LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
5.1 Section 8 of the Children and Young People (Scotland) Act 2014 requires the 

Council and NHS Grampian to prepare an Integrated Children’s Services Plan 
every 3 years and to keep that Plan under review under section 11.   Section 13 
of the Act provides that as soon as practicable after the end of each 1 year 
period, a local authority and the relevant health board must publish (in such 
manner as they consider appropriate) a report on the extent to which children's 
services and related services have in that period been provided in the area of 
the local authority in accordance with the children's services plan. This Report 
and Appendix satisfies these duties.  

 
5.2 The Child Poverty (Scotland) Act 2017 (the Act) fully entered into force on the 

1st July 2019. The Act sets out steps required to be taken by the Scottish 
Government, Local Authorities and Health Boards to tackle child poverty. The 
Act creates a requirement for Local Authorities and Local Health Boards to 
annually agree and publish a Child Poverty Action Report. Following ratification 
the Report must be submitted to Scottish Ministers. 

 
 
6.   ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

6.1  No negative environmental impacts have been identified.   
 
 
7. RISK 
 

Category Risks Primary 
Controls/Control 
Actions to achieve  
Target Risk Level  

*Target 
Risk Level 
(L, M or H) 
 
*taking into 
account 
controls/control 
actions 

 

*Does 
Target 
Risk 
Level 
Match 
Appetite 
Set? 

Page 72



 
 

Strategic 
Risk 

Risk of not 
changing our 
local system to 
reflect changes 
in national 
policy. 

Delivery of the 
Children’s Services 
Plan and regular 
review of the 
appropriateness of 
the Plan to ensure 
maximum impact. 

L Yes 

Compliance Risk of not 
complying with 
legislation 

This Annual Report 
complies with the 
Statutory Guidance 
and legislative 
requirements. 

L Yes 

Operational Risk that we 
make a lesser 
impact by 
working to a 
high number of 
strategic plans 

The Plan pulls all 
strategic Plans 
together to help 
maximise impact. 

L Yes 

Financial Risk that we 
don’t have 
sufficient 
resource to 
meet the needs 
of priority 
groups 

The Plan will help us 
make best use of 
available resource by 
ensuring partners 
work to a common 
purpose. 

L Yes 

Reputational Risk that we 
don’t prioritise 
those in 
greatest need. 

Mitigated by 
undertaking a 
detailed strategic 
needs assessment  
and looking at the 
data by group before 
drawing conclusions. 

L Yes 

Environment 
/ Climate 

No risks 
identified 

   

 
 
 
8.  OUTCOMES 

 

COUNCIL DELIVERY PLAN   
 

  Impact of Report 

Aberdeen City Council Policy Statement 
Work with the city’s universities, North East Scotland 
College and businesses to increase educational and 
training options and the number of care experienced young 
people and young people from deprived communities, 
going onto positive destinations, including further and 
higher education, vocational training and apprenticeships.  
 

 
 
The needs of children 
and young people 
most often require a 
strong multi-agency 
response.  This Plan 
will support the further 

Page 73

https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2019-04/Council%20Delivery%20Plan%202019-20.pdf


 
 

Ensure local education services identify young people with 
mental health problems and help them get early support 
and help, where appropriate, to transfer to adult services. 
 
Ensure the Council follows best practice as a corporate 
parent to get the best outcomes for looked-after young 
people, those in kinship care and those with additional 
support needs such as autism, developmental disorders or 
mental health problems 
 
Commit to realising the potential of each individual, by 
seeking to widen curriculum choice and implement 
progressive choices. 
 

integration and 
collaboration across 
services supporting 
children and families to 
help realise improved 
outcomes. 

 

Aberdeen City Local Outcome Improvement Plan 
 

LOIP stretch outcome 4: 95% of children (0-5 years) will 
reach their expected developmental milestones by the 
time of their child health reviews by 2026 

LOIP stretch outcome 5: 90% of children and young 
people will report that their experiences of mental health 
and wellbeing have been listened to by 2026 

LOIP stretch outcome 6: As corporate parents we will 
ensure 95% of care experienced children and young 
people will have the same levels of attainment in 
education, health and emotional wellbeing, and positive 
destinations as their peers by 2026. 

LOIP stretch outcome 7: 95% of all our children, 
including those living in our priority neighbourhoods, will 
sustain a positive destination upon leaving school by 
2026 

LOIP stretch outcome 8: 30% fewer young people 
(under 18) charged with an offence by 2026 

LOIP stretch outcome 9: 95% of our children with 
disabilities will experience a positive transition to adult 
services by 2026 

 
This Plan details how 
Stretch Outcomes 4 – 
9 will be realised over 
the next 2 years and 
will help to coordinate 
our work across the 
Community Planning 
Partnership. 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 

 

Regional and City Strategies 
Regional Cultural Strategy 
 
Prevention Strategy 
 
Children’s Services Plan 

 
The Children’s 
Services Plan 
prioritises prevention 
and is closely aligned 
with the National 

Page 74

https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/Final-LOIP-2016-26-Refreshed-July-21.pdf


 
 

 
National Improvement Framework Plan 

Improvement 
Framework.  The Plan 
is designed to bring all 
statutory Plans for 
children into one Plan 
to improve service 
delivery. 

 
 
9. IMPACT ASSESSMENTS 
 
 

Assessment Outcome 
 

Integrated Impact 
Assessment 

 

New Integrated Impact Assessment has been completed 

Data Protection Impact 
Assessment 

No  
 

Other None  
 

 
 
 
 
10. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
Aberdeen City Integrated Children's Services Plan 2023-26 
 
Aberdeen City Child Poverty Action Report 2022/23 
 
Aberdeen City Corporate Parenting Plan 
 
 

 
11. APPENDICES  
 
Appendix A - Children’s Services Board Annual Report April 2023 – March 2024 
 
 
12. REPORT AUTHOR CONTACT DETAILS 
 

Name Eleanor Sheppard 

Title Interim Director Children’s and Family Services 

Email Address esheppard@aberdeencity.gov.uk 

Tel 01224 522707 

 

  

Page 75

http://councilcommittees/documents/s142065/Appendix%20A.pdf
http://councilcommittees/documents/s146285/Child%20Poverty%20Action%20Report%20v5%20Final.pdf
http://councilcommittees/documents/s144560/Corporate%20Parenting%20Annual%20Report%20Final.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 76



   

 

1 
 
Computing  

Annual Report 2023 
Page 77



   

 

2 
 

Our published Plan for children, young people and families 2023-26 articulates the outcomes 
Community Planning Partners are currently working to realise for children, young people and 
families across Aberdeen.  As we reflect on progress made in the first year of the Plan, we continue 
to be thoughtful of how the needs of our families continues to change.  This yearly review of 
progress therefore presents an opportunity to check that our planned improvement projects are 
prioritising the right things and help determine if we need to make amendments to our agreed Plan. 

In preparing this annual report we have reviewed data published since March 2023 to identify any 
changes in data trends at different life stages.  We have also benefited from reviewing the themes 
emerging from the extensive engagement undertaken to inform the refresh of our Local Outcome 
Improvement Plan (LOIP).  Reviewing both data and insights has helped us draw firm conclusions 
on the activity most likely to realise improved outcomes over the final two years of the Plan and 
therefore the adequacy of the current Plan.  

In developing Aberdeen City’s Children’s Services Strategic Plan for 2023-26, we worked to 
integrate the full range of statutory Plans and reports in an attempt to better align reporting, reduce 
duplication and free up time for direct work.  As a result, this Annual Report covering 1st April 2023 
to 31st March 2024, details the progress the Community Planning Partnership has made in 
delivering against several key national policies including: 

• addressing child poverty; 

• delivering The Promise; and our 

• Corporate Parenting Plan 
 
In addition to our planned improvement work and work supporting delivery of national policy, the 
Children’s Services Board has continued to keep abreast of impending legislative changes to 
ensure our readiness for what lies ahead.  This has seen the Children’s Services Board 
participate in planning for The National Care Service (NCS) through our local Programme Board, 
be selected as a Bairns Hoose Pathfinder to help us build on the existing co-located Police 
Scotland and Children’s Social Work Scottish Child Interview Model (SCIM) team and monitor the 
progress of the anticipated Children’s Care and Justice Bill.  The Board has extensively engaged 
in education reform consultations and continues to actively consider the implications of the United 
Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child (Incorporation) (Scotland) Act 2024.   
 
This report provides a flavour of how partners are working together to improve outcomes for 
children, young people and families in Aberdeen City.  I continue to be humbled by the collaboration 
and increasing sense of shared accountability demonstrated by members of the Children’s Services 
Board.  

 

Eleanor Sheppard  

 
Interim Director Children and Family Services (Chair of the Children’s Services Board) 

INTRODUCTION FROM THE CHAIR 

OF THE CHILDREN’S SERVICES 

BOARD 

Page 78

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/asp/2024/1/contents/enacted
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/asp/2024/1/contents/enacted


   

 

3 
 

 
 
34 multi-agency Improvement Projects have been initiated and testing is now well underway.   
 
Some other key achievements over the reporting period are listed below. 
 

• Securing pathfinder status for our Bairns Hoose 

• Improving outcomes for those living in some communities (Scottish Index of Multiple 
Deprivation (SIMD) 2 and 3) 

• Realising a 50% increase in the number of eligible 2s placed in ELC provision 

• Increasing the uptake of Early Learning and Childcare (ELC) from 91.22% in 2021/22 to 
94.74% in 2022/23 

• Increased the % of funded ELC settings achieving good or better during inspection from 
82.4% in 2021/22 to 86.4% in 2022/23. 

• Realising an improvement in the annual participation measure from 91.2% in 2022 to 
92.8% in 2023.   

• Realising a reduction in the attainment gap (literacy and numeracy) between those living in 
areas of deprivation and their peers  

• 82% of our communities are now performing better than could be expected in child poverty 
compared to only 78% a year ago 

• No One Left Behind (NOLB) funding of £1,344,000 has helped deliver all-age, all-stage 
employability support (up from £675,202.58 last year) and 308 young people aged 16-24 
benefiting 

• Seed funding of £11,218.89 has been invested so far to support the creation of seven 
businesses (up from £3,995.79 supporting the start-up of one business last year) 

• 75 young people aged 16 and 17 have engaged in at least 10 hours of employability activity 
weekly, each receiving a training allowance of up to £55 per week, totaling £38,931 to date 
this year. 

• A Parental Employability Support Fund of £1,202,000 (up from £263,197.73 last year) has 
supported eligible parents with dependent children who are unemployed and experiencing 
poverty or who are experiencing in-work poverty. Seed funding of £35,756.80 has been 
invested so far this year, helping support the creation of ten businesses by eligible parents 
(up from £6,418.39 supporting the start-up of three businesses last year). 

• Since the Scottish Attainment Challenge funding for youth work was made available in 
August 2021, a total of 893 activities have been delivered to 2,246 participants, a total of 
22.626 learner hours.   

 

We are proud of our achievements, but there is clearly more to be done.  

ACHIEVEMENTS OVER THE REPORTING 

PERIOD 

ACHIEVEMENTS OVER THE 

REPORTING PERIOD 

Page 79



   

 

4 
 

 

What does the data published since March 2023 tell us about: 
   

   Our Babies? 6 
 

   Our Under 5s? 8 
 

   Our Primary School Pupils? 10 
 

   Our Secondary Pupils?  13 
 

What does the data published since March 2023 tell us about child 
poverty and the needs of different communities? 

 

16 

 Best Start Bright Futures 
 

27 

 Cost of living 
 

36 

 Income from social security and benefits in kind 
 

42 

How effectively is our shared work helping us deliver on The Promise? 

 
 Priority 1: A good childhood 

 
46 

 Priority 2: Whole Family Support 
 

50 

 Priority 3: Supporting the workforce 
 

52 

 Priority 4: Planning 
 

52 

 Priority 5: Building Capacity  
 
 

53 

Whole Family Wellbeing Funding 
 

53 

 
 
 
 
 

 

CONTENTS PAGE 

CONTENTS  
CONTENTS 

Page 80



   

 

5 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

How is the Improvement work coordinated through the Children’s 
Services Board improving outcomes for children, young people and 
families and what are our next steps? 

 
 The Childrens Services Board  

 
55 

 Best Start in Life 
 

56 

 Mental Health and Wellbeing Collaborative 
 

57 

 Corporate Parenting  
 

57 

 Attainment and Transitions  
 

58 

 Youth Justice  
 

58 

 Supporting Those with Additional Support Needs and Disabilities 
 

59 

Appendices 
  

 

 Improvement Project Case Studies  
 

61 

 Improvement Project Index 
 

67 

 Our Plan on a Page  
 

69 

Page 81



   

 

6 
 

 

Between 2002 and 2022, the 0 to 19 age group has seen the largest percentage decrease in 

births (-86.0%).  The 40 and over age group has seen the largest percentage increase in births 

(+115.0%). 

 

What is getting better? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
It is encouraging to see early reductions in premature births and in smoking during pregnancy 
across SIMD 2 and 3.  There is now a need to look at how we can better support improvements in 
the smaller number of families most impacted by poverty (SIMD 1).   
 
 

What has stayed the same? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
There is clear evidence of a reduction in the number of younger mothers in the city.  The number 
of pre-birth children subject to child protection planning meetings and the number of those aged 0-
4 and on the child protection register remains consistent.  This indicates that we don’t have the 
level of support required to support some families at community level and that our approaches to 
offering support may require to be more adaptive within our model of Family Support. 

 
 

There has been a notable reduction in 

premature births across SIMD 2 and 3.  

Levels in SIMD 1 remain highest and   

levels across SIMD 5 have risen. 

 

Babies exclusively breastfed at 6-8 

weeks has increased from 39.9% in 

2020 to 40.87% in 2021. Levels are 

above the national average but  

continue to be impacted by poverty with  

variation at community level. 

 

Smoking during pregnancy has reduced 

from 13.01% (2018/19) to 12.06% 

(2020/2021) and is broadly in line with 

national averages.  Poverty continues to 

be a factor although reductions are 

evident  at SIMD 2 and 3.  

 

In 2022, the most common age group of 

mothers in Aberdeen City was 30 to 34 

(698 births), the same as in 2002. The 

least common age group of mothers in 

Aberdeen City was 0 to 19 (25 births), 

which is a change from the 40 and over 

age group in 2002. 

 

The number of pre-birth children 

subject to child protection planning 

meetings remains consistent.  This 

suggests that we are not yet 

providing adequate levels of 

community support to prevent risk. 

 

The number of children (pre-birth 

and 0-4) on the child protection 

register remains consistent.  This 

suggests that we are not yet fully 

mitigating risk for our youngest 

citizens. 

 

WHAT DO WE KNOW ABOUT OUR 

BABIES?   

What does the data published since 

March 2023 tell us? 
What does the data published since March 

2023 tell us? 

 

Page 82



   

 

7 
 

What is worsening? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The reduction in fertility and associated decrease in birth rate is thought to be attributable to both 
environmental and social factors.  Addressing environmental factors and focussing on the 
determinates of good health alongside Community Planning Partners will continue to be 
important.  There may also be a need to think more explicitly about how the built environment can 
influence behaviours by continuing to focus on prevention, particularly around obesity levels 
which can dramatically impact longer term health outcomes for children and families.  There are 
clear signs that action on obesity should be added to our Plan. 

Recent improvements are evident across Quintiles 2 and 3.  Although these gains are welcomed 
and thought partially attributable to the work of the Children’s Services Board, there is a need to 
work differently to address the needs of families across SIMD 1.  It could be reasonably concluded 
that the established 2023-26 Plan has had a limited impact on families living in Quintile 1 and that 
these families are proving harder to support within our current system.  There is a need for partners 
to collectively identify those families so that we can more rigorously track progress, better 
understand the issues they face and work with them to support postiive outcomes in a person 
centred and family led way.    
 

So, what next? 
The improvement projects outlined in the current Plan are still thought to be appropriate. In addition, 
it is proposed that the Whole Family Wellbeing Fund be used to secure a data analyst to support 
our identification and tracking of outcomes for those in SIMD 1 and consider how we could better 
support families to maximise outcomes.   
 
There is also a need to consider how best to address obesity given how obesity impacts on long 
term health outcomes and add this work to our Plan.  

Exposure to second hand smoke at 

6-8 weeks has increased from 7.3% 

in the 3 years ending 2021 to 7.56% 

in the 3 years ending 2022. 

 

There has been a slight drop in the 

% of babies born at a healthy birth 

weight from 85.5% in 2021 to 85.1% 

in 2022.  This is slightly better than 

the national average. 

 

There has been a rise in the % of 

premature births from 8.07% in 

2021 to 8.31 in 2022.  Levels are in 

keeping with the national average.  

Reductions in the % are evident 

across SIMD 2 and 3. 

 

Maternal obesity increased from 

21.04% in the three years ending 

2021 to 22.55% % in the three 

years ending 2022.  Poverty 

continues to heavily impact levels 

of maternal obesity with those living 

in SIMD 1&2 having higher than 

average levels. 

 

The total fertility rate in Aberdeen 

City decreased from 1.11 % in 2021 

to 1.04% in 2022. 

 

 

In Aberdeen City, the standardised birth 

rate decreased from 7.2 per 1,000 

population in 2021 to 7.0 per 1,000 

population in 2022. In comparison, the 

rate in Scotland overall decreased from 

8.7 to 8.6. 

 

 

Page 83



   

 

8 
 

 
The ethnicity of our under 5s is more diverse now than in March 2023.  The number of under 5s 

accessing health and education services has risen over the last year with considerable pressure 

being felt across health and education services. 

 

What is getting better? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The increase in uptake of ELC placements and gradual improvement in quality is welcomed.  There 
is a need to continue with current approaches to address the variation in quality still seen across 
the city. 
 

What has stayed the same? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Uptake of immunisations in some communities is significantly lower than the city average and there 
is a need to target those communities better.   Health Visitors have worked hard to undertake 
assessments of children at 27-30 months and coverage is improving across the city.  This fuller 
coverage is now highlighting the number of children who are not meeting developmental 
milestones.  There is a need to look at how we could work together to support childhood 
development of the under 5s more fully at community level.   
 

 

There has  been an encouraging 

increase in the uptake of Early 

Learning and Childcare (ELC) in 

the city with 94.74% of our eligible 

population placed in 2022/23 

compared to 91.22% in 2021/22.   

 

Coverage of 27-30 month 

assessment and uptake of 

immunisations. 

 

Children aged 0-4 remain the 

largest group on the child 

protection register. 

 

School records suggest there has 

been a 1% rise in the % of P1 

children recorded as having a 

speech disorder from 3.22% to 

4.22%.  However, a reduction in 

those recorded as having 

communication support needs 

from 2.62% to 1.75% in 2023. 

There has also been a 50% 

increase in the number of eligible 

2s placed in ELC provision.  Work 

with the DWP to align data sets is 

positively impacting uptake. 

 

The percentage of funded ELC 

settings achieving good or better 

during inspection has risen from 

82.4% in 2021/22 to 86.4% in 

2022/23.  Despite the improvement 

trend, local results remain 4% lower 

than the national average. 

 

WHAT DO WE KNOW ABOUT OUR 

UNDER 5s?   

What does the data published since 

March 2023 tell us? 

 

WHAT DO WE KNOW ABOUT OUR 

UNDER 5s?   

What does the data published since 

March 2023 tell us? 

 

Page 84



   

 

9 
 

What is worsening? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The current shortage of Health Visitors is impacting on work for this age group.  Despite the 
considerable challenges, there is evidence of improvement in some key measures due to resources 
being used flexibly to address the recruitment challenge.   
 

So, what next? 
The improvement projects outlined in the current Plan are still thought to be appropriate, but the 
need to reflect on the needs of families living in different communities is again evident in this age 
group.  There is therefore a need to consider how best to utilise community based staff to ensure 
that our approaches reflect the unique context of each community and take account of the 
increasingly complex and unpredictable circumstances our families face.   Planned work to base 
Health Visitors within ELC provisions should progress as a first step to encouraging closer locality 
working. 
 
There is a need to consider how we could better align the work of the Children’s Services Board 
with Locality Plans in future planning cycles to ensure that the Children’s Services Board benefits 
from the insights of community assets. 
 
 
 
  

Recruiting Health Visitors is even 

more challenging now than a year 

ago.  6 less (41) Health Visitors are 

now in post compared to last year, 

this is 30 below complement. 

 

Deaths in children (1-15 years) 

have risen from 12.2 per 100,000 

in 2020 to 13.3 per 100,000 in 

2021.  This is lower than the 

national average 

 

There has been a drop in the percentage of children identified as meeting developmental milestones at the 27-30 month review 

from 97.1% in 2021 to 87.3% in 2022.  However, this is a better than the national average of 82.1% and will have been impacted 

by more widespread assessments.  

 

Uptake of the 6 in 1 immunisation at 

24 months is lowest in Tillydrone and 

George Street at 90%.  Uptake in 

Ashgrove and Cummings Park is 

reducing.  Similar patterns are 

evident with the MMR 

 

Page 85



   

 

10 
 

There has been a rise in primary pupil numbers from 14,573 in September 2022 to 15,210 in 
September 2023 with far greater diversity now evident. In 2019/20, 503 learners within our schools 
were recorded as being disabled, this has now risen by 34% to 676.  3.76% of school pupils are 
recorded as having Autistic Spectrum Disorder, compared to 3.53% last year. 
 

What is getting better? 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

There is early evidence of some recovery from the pandemic with 82% of pupils in P6 and 7 
reporting excellent or good health which is 2% higher than last year and better than the national 
average. However, levels of dysregulation remain high and are thought attributable to poorer 
levels of parental mental health resulting in part from the various societal shocks experienced 
over the last few years.  The situation locally is similar to the situation reported through national 
research.  The Children’s Services Board will take a keen interest in the local arrangements being 
put in place to address the Cabinet Secretary’s 5 point plan.  Progress is being made in 
addressing the attainment gap, but this needs continued focus.   

 

School attendance in term 1 of 

2023/24 is sitting at 94.8% (primary) 

compared to 94.33 in 2020/21.  This 

is slightly better than national levels.  

 

There has been a rise in the % of 

adults who are satisfied with local 

schools from 70.1% (2018-21) to 

71.3% (19-22).  Levels now look 

positive compared to other urban 

Local Authorities 

 

There has been a rise in the % of P1, 

4 and 7 pupils achieving expected 

levels in literacy and numeracy .  

however there is variation with Tullos 

and Sunnybank having the lowest 

ACEL levels in the city.  There is 

evidence however, that variation is 

reducing. 

 

The attainment gap between those 

living in areas of deprivation and their 

peers in literacy and numeracy has 

reduced.  The position is now better 

than the family group average and in 

line with national average. 

 

The proportion of LAC with more than 

one placement has reduced from 

21.2% in 2021 to 18.8% in 2022.  This 

is however above the family group and 

national average. 

 

There has been a reduction in the % of children identified with communication and support needs from 4.39% in 2022 to 2.42% in 

2023.  The number of children with a speech and language disorder remains consistent however (4.44% in 2022 and 4.63% in 2023  

 

The % of schools achieving good or 

better during inspection at the end of 

22/23 was 78.1% compared to the 

baseline data of 68.75% in 19/20.  

 

WHAT DO WE KNOW ABOUT OUR 

PRIMARY AGED PUPILS?   

What does the data published since 

March 2023 tell us? 

 

WHAT DO WE KNOW ABOUT OUR 

PRIMARY PUPILS?   

What does the data published since 

March 2023 tell us? 

 

Page 86



   

 

11 
 

What has stayed the same? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The drop in active travel, albeit disappointing, is thought to have more or less stayed the same as 

before the pandemic.  Levels of active travel remain high compared to other Local Authorities.   

This age group again highlights the considerable variation in patterns of behaviour and outcomes 

across communities which can be masked by looking at city wide data sets.     

 

What is worsening? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

World events continue to impact children and families with more families experiencing poverty 

than before.  1 in 5 children across Aberdeen City are now experiencing poverty.   The impact of 

the cost of living crisis is evident in the mental health of parents and carers and this is impacting 

on children and young people.  Our continued focus on these areas, already outlined in the 

current Plan, will be important. 

 

 

The percentage of primary 1 

children with poor dental health 

remains largely unchanged.  

Around 30% of children continue 

to have poor dental health at the 

Primary 1 stage. 

 

Active travel to school has reduced 

from 60.7% in 2022 to 58.3% in 

2023.  Levels of active travel 

remain very high compared to 

other Health Board areas. 

 

38% of children in our primary 

schools have an additional 

support need compared to 36.8% 

a year ago.  This is thought to be 

largely consistent. 

 

 

There has been a drop in the 

proportion of Primary 1 children being 

of healthy weight from 83.19% in 2020 

to just under 70% in 2021.  This is 

slightly above the national average. 

 

There has been a slight drop in the 

number of children being cared for 

within their community from 88.9% in 

2021 to 88.5% in 2022.  This is above 

the family group average but below 

the national average. 

 

There has been a 2.2% increase in 

the number of children living in 

poverty (after housing costs) from 

2021 to 2022.  1 in 5 children now 

live in poverty.  The Local Authority 

sits above the family group average 

but below the national average 

 

The % of children with a 

Coordinated Support Plans and 

Child’s Plan remains consistent. The 

percentrage of those with Individual 

Education Plans has dropped from 

9.88% to 8. 21% 

 

The number of children aged 5 – 9 

admitted to hospital with an 

unintentional injury has more than 

doubled since 2018/19.  

 

The percentage of children entering 

Primary 1 with at least one 

developmental concern has 

increased from 2.5% in 2019/20 to 

3.1% in 2021/22 

 

Page 87



   

 

12 
 

So, what next? 

Planned work to increase alignment with adult services should be accelerated and a more 

adaptive approach to supporting children at community level should be considered.  Obesity 

levels appear to be increasing and if not addressed, could impact negatively on health outcomes 

in the longer term.  As outlined previously, there is a need to consider how best to address this. 

There is a need to finalise and implement the planned evaluation framework detailed in the 

current Plan to help monitor the impact of the Tiered Intervention Framework as there continues 

to be evidence of rapid escalation from Tier 1 to 3.  Consideration should be given to building 

community level data into this work given the variation in outcomes at community level.  

Page 88



   

 

13 
 

There has been a rise in secondary pupils numbers from 10,430 in September 2022 to 10,977 in 

2023.  The pupil population has become increasingly diverse.  Recent Scottish Census data 

identified that our city population has grown by 0.5% since 2011. 

What is getting better? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
There are encouraging signs in some health and education outcomes with a 4% increase in those 
who felt positive about their body image and nearly 11% more reporting good levels of physical 
activity compared to six months ago. 5% less children now report loneliness than 6 months ago.   
 
Despite the gains, some groups of children continue to do less well than others with clear signs of 
less positive movement in those living in SIMD 1. This again, guides us to look at those living in 
SIMD 1 at a more granular level and maintain our focus on more vulnerable groups. 
 

Drug related hospital admissions 

(young people) have reduced from 

115 per 100,000 in 2021 to 100 per 

100,000 in 2022. 

 

The employment rate for young 

people has increased from 42% in 

2021 to nearer 51% in 2022. 

 

The annual participation measure 

has increased from 91.2% in 2022 to 

92.8% in 2023.  This is still below the 

Family Group and National average. 

 

There has been a drop in alcohol 

related hospital admissions for those 

aged 11-25 from 270 per 100,000 in 

2021 to 255 per 100,000 in 2022.  

This is below the national average 

 

There has been a rise in the % of all 

pupils gaining 5+ awards at Level 6 

from 36% in 2021 to 39% in 2022.  

This bucked the reducing national 

trend.  4 schools sit above their VC, 

but 7 sit below. 

 

 

 

There has been a rise in the % of all 

pupils gaining 5+ awards at Level 5 

from 63% in 2021 to 70% in 2022.  

The improvement rate is faster than 

the national rate.  5 schools now sit 

above their VC, but 6 sit below. 

 

There has been a rise in the 

overall average total tariff score 

from 866 in 2021 to 957 in 2022.  

This is slightly below national and 

well below the family group 

average. 

 

Although seeing a reduction in 
those who have reported self-

harming, 4:10 young people who did 
not disclose their gender had 

reported self-harming at least once 
and the variation between the 

number of boys and girls reporting 
this, showed a greater number of 

girls. 

 

WHAT DO WE KNOW ABOUT OUR 

SECONDARY AGED PUPILS?   

What does the data published since 

March 2023 tell us? 

 

There has been a rise in the % of 

pupils from the most deprived areas 

achieving 5+awards at Level 5 from 

43% in 2021 to 48% in 2022. 

 

 

Page 89



   

 

14 
 

What has stayed the same? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
We are still some way from the virtual comparator in terms of education outcomes and must  
maintain our focus in this area and work to address the variation from school to school.  The number 
of children who are dysregulated and in need of additional support remains higher than pre-
pandemic levels, this is in keeping with national research.  Reported levels of sleep in young people 
continues to be an area of concern. 
 

What has worsened? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

School leaver destinations have 

dropped slightly from 95.59% in 

2021 to 93.82% in 2022.  This is 

below both the family group and 

national average 

 

There has been a rise in 5 year 

death by suicide in 11-25 year olds 

rates from 6.68 per 100,000 in 2020 

to 7.86 per 100,000 in 2021. 

 

A consistent % of referrals to SCRA 

are made as a result of care and 

protection concerns.  This continues 

to be lower than the national 

average. 

 

There has been an increase in the % of 

referrals to SCRA due to offences (5.7% 

in 2021 to 7.6% in 2022.  This is higher 

than the national average. 

 

42% of children in our secondary 

schools have an additional 

support need compared to 44% a 

year ago 

 

School attendance for term 1 of 

2023/24 sat at 90.5%?% This is 

better than national levels however 

still of concern. 

 

The overall average total tariff score 

for those living in SIMD 1 remains 

largely unchanged (566 to 2020/21 

compared with 567 to 2021/22. Gains 

are evident in all other quintiles. 

 

Drop in the % of pupil from the most 

deprived areas achieving 5+awards at 

Level 6 from 17% in 2021 to 13% in 

2022.   

 

 

Requests for support as a result of poor emotional 

regulation, support for parents and mental health concerns 

remain highest within our request for assistance process. 

 

Those in the low family affluence group and those young people 
who did not disclose their gender, were more likely to report a 
range of negative outcomes across nearly all measures within 

the survey which is similar to the national picture.   

 

Pupils from P6 to S6 who did not 
disclose their gender were 6 times 
more likely to be negative about 
life as a whole and 5 times more 

likely to report poor health. 

 
 

205 learners reported self harming more than 10 times,. 
More children report feeling lonely locally than nationally 
Loneliness Nationally 15.6% -12.1% & ACC 29%-17% 

 

The % of young people with communication and language 

needs (1.26% in 2022 and 1.55% in 2023) and speech and 

communication disorder (2.41% in 2022 and 1.55% in 2023) 

remains consistent. 

 

 

Page 90



   

 

15 
 

The proportion of all S1-S6 pupils who express that they always or often feel confident has risen, 
with a current average of 53.7% for boys and 27.3% for girls, these gender based averaged 
measures represent an increase of just over six percentage points for boys and five percentage 
points for girls.   Although there isn’t a directly comparable national measure, national data 
suggests that our gender difference is more marked than the national average.  Locally, the gap 
between boys and girls sits at 29% with the national sitting at 17%.  

There is a need to consider the health led National Self Harm Plan when published to ensure that 
the Plan is implemented timeously. 

The disparity in outcomes across communities is considerable. There is a need to rethink how we 
support some communities to better address the variation in outcomes. 

 

So, what next? 

There is a need to maintain our Plans around the senior phase curriculum and also continue to 
give close attention to personal and social education programmes to ensure that our young 
people know how to keep themselves safe, programmes may be influenced by the local plans to 
implement the National Self Harm Plan.  Work to improve school attendance should continue.   

The impact of family affluence on our young people is more marked than the national average.  
There is a need for us to think carefully about how best to support those living in SIMD 1 in order 
to address this.   

The disparity in outcomes suggests that the wider family supports currently in place are not 
making a difference to some groups, triggering a need to think quite differently about how we 
work with and for families in need of our help and support. 

 

 

 

  

Page 91



   

 

16 
 

 

The cost of living crisis continues to impact on the resilience and mental health of families.   Families 
are facing exceptionally difficult decisions on a daily basis and the impact of these challenging 
circumstances is evident in all datasets published over the last year.  This clearly highlights how 
poverty is an overarching factor in outcomes for children and families. 
 
The number of children living in poverty  
Official statistics detailing the exact number of children living in poverty 
across the city varies according to the methodology used.  However, it 
is thought that there are 7,000 children living in households where the 
household income is below 60% of median income after housing costs 
(1 in every 5 children).  This number has risen over recent years. Almost 
two thirds of children in low-income families are in working households. 
The Improvement Service Community Planning Tool shows that the 
Local Authority area currently sits 23 out of 32 Local Authorities for 
levels of child poverty which is below the national average. 
 
The working age population 
In the year from April 2022-March 2023, 24% of Aberdeen’s working 
age population (over the age of 16) were economically inactive, up 
from 19% in the previous year. Of those who were economically 
inactive, 39.4% were students, 23.9 % were long-term sick, 15.6% 
were looking after home/family and 8.1% were retired (prior to 
national retirement age).  Of those who were of working age and not 
working, 24.7% wanted to be working and were actively seeking 
employment.  
 
In the 2022 calendar year, there were an estimated 15,200 workless 
households in Aberdeen, a rise of 4,500 on 2021, to levels similar to 
the Scotland level of 18%.   The Improvement Service Community 
Planning Tool shows that the Local Authority area currently sits 12 
out of 32 Local Authorities for levels of Median Earnings which is in line with the national average. 
 
Rise in homelessness 
In 2022-23, there were 1,762 homelessness presentations to the council, an increase of 25% on 
the previous year. In March 2023, 399 households were in temporary accommodation (up from 264 
in March 2022), 45 of these households had either pregnant women or children in them.  It will be 
important for the Children’s Services Board to remain closely aligned to work being undertaken to 
address homelessness. 
 
 

What does the data published since 

March 2023 tell us? 

Page 92



   

 

17 
 

 
Claimant count 
Despite the rise in number in those thought to be living in poverty, the 
city level claimant count fell by 3.6% over the 6 months between March 
2023 to November 2023 (from 5,020 to 4,840) 2023, this is 5% lower 
than in November 2022. This is the lowest number of claimants recorded 
in the past 3 years.  However, the claimant count for young people aged 
16-17 and 18-21 at November 2023 had both risen slightly from March 
2023 (combined 460 to 480 claimants).   
 
In November 2023, there were 1,530 Claimants in our priority localities, 
around the same as in March 2023 (1,510).  This represents 31.7% of 
all claimants in the city, a marginal increase on the position at both 
March 2023 and November 2022.   
 
The claimant count rate varies across the city by zone, from a low rate of 0.3% seen in West End 
North to a high of 6.5% seen in Tillydrone.  
 
The Improvement Service Community Planning Tool shows that the Local Authority area currently 
sits 21 out of 32 Local Authorities for levels of Out of Work Benefits which is below the national 
average. 
 
Spread of poverty across the city 
Poverty is not spread equally across our city. The number of children living in relative low-income 
families, based on the End Child Poverty research, varies across the city by ward zones.  
 
There is a high of 1,050 in Northfield/Mastrick, (30.4%), 719 in Torry/Ferryhill (24.0%) with 
Hilton/Woodside/Stockethill (25.5%) and Tillydrone/Seaton/Old Aberdeen sitting at around 650 
children living in relative low-income families. Tillydrone/Seaton/Old Aberdeen has the city’s 
highest proportion of children living in relative low-income families at 31.8%. 
  
The George Street/Harbour ward has a relatively lower number of children in this category than 
these zones at 399 children but, despite falling out with the priority locality structure, levels 
closely match the % figure for Torry/Ferryhill.  The proportion of all city claimants in George 
Street/Harbour is second only to Tillydrone at 5.3%. 

The impact of this is seen across a range of outcome measures as shown in the following grid 
based on 2021/22 data from the Community Planning Outcome Tool.  This disparity has been 
evidenced through the review of data by life stage outlined earlier in this Annual Report. 

 

 
 

Page 93



   

 

18 
 

Grant applications and Advice Services 
The number of Best Start and Best Start Foods grant applications received from city residents as 
at September 2023 was 3,145, compared to 2,735 in the same period the prior year. This 
represents an increase in the proportion of all applications from 3% to 4% of Scotland level 
awards and could partially indicate that families are now better aware of supports available.  
 
Over 2022/23, the city’s Council funded Common 
Advice services offered client financial advice and 
support to 547 Young People, (0-24 years) 
representing 8.6% of all clients.  This number is 
higher than in each of the three prior years but a 
smaller proportion of all clients as result of a 
pattern of growth in clients across all age groups.  

Of those households, where information around 
compositions were provided, 1,247 comprised 
households with children (23.3% of all clients 
compared to 20% in the previous year) with 62.9% 
of these households consisting of lone parent 
households, a rise of over 3% on the previous year. This latter cohort 
represents 14.6% of all households recorded as clients of the 
Common Advice services and has risen by 3% since 2021/22.  

Overall, in 2022/23 the number and proportions of clients in a 
household with children showed an increasing trend on the 2019/20 
baseline with the growth in single parent family clients being the more 
significant influence.  Source: Common Advice Performance Management 

Reporting Framework submissions. 

The Improvement Service Community Planning Tool shows that the 
Local Authority area currently sits 12 out of 32 Local Authorities for 
Median Earnings, more or less in line with the national average.  
 
 

Benchmarking performance 
Levels of child poverty in the city are slightly below the national average. 
 
However, levels are relatively high when compared with our SIMD based 
comparators although progress has been made in closing the gap over 
the last year with our performance moving up one place compared to our 
family group.   
 
A review of the Improvement Service Community Planning Outcomes 
Tool shows that 82% of our communities were performing better than 
expected as of 2021/22 which is 4% higher than the prior year.   

Page 94



   

 

19 
 

 
Projections from the same Tool indicates that child poverty (before 
housing costs) will rise over the next 3 years to around 19%, (from the 
2021/22 baseline of 16%) but this this will likely be at a rate below that 
of most comparators and the national pattern, which will retain the 
City’s performance ranking in the upper third of Scottish Local 
Authorities.  
 
The visual from the Improvement Service Community Planning Tool 
below shows how communities performed against their virtual 
comparators. 

 
 
A detailed review of the Tool clearly evidences the disparity in outcomes from ward to ward.   
 
Variation in circumstances and concerns by adult group 
This disparity is equally clear from the responses to our recent Local Outcome Improvement Plan 
engagement which used a Place Standard tool to 
explore 14 themes about the physical and social 
elements of life in Aberdeen City in order to shape 
the refresh of our Local Outcome Improvement 
Plan.  The Children’s Services Board has a key role 
in delivering against the People Outcomes relating 
to children and their families. 
 
It’s really important that the Children’s Services Board understand the needs of families given the 
influence of parental wellbeing on children and young people.  As a result, the Board needs to 
consider the needs of families holistically as we develop our model of Family Support.   
 
The whole population responses provide a clear picture of what matters to our residents.  At first 
glance this would guide the Children’s Services Board to conclude that there is a role only to 
continue to capture the lived experience of service users in the design of changed services. 
 

Page 95



   

 

20 
 

However, the responses to the engagement have 
been broken down in different ways to allow us to 
gain further insight into the needs of distinct 
groups.  
 
A review of the data by locality (North, South and 
Central) shows that there are differences being reported by our citizens depending upon which 
part of the city they reside in.  As a result, there is variation in the themes ranked highest and 
lowest.  
 

 

A review of the data by SIMD Quintile, highlights variation quite differently. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

It is of particular concern that those living in SIMD 1 raise concerns about their sense of influence 

and control and also express concerns about feeling unsafe.   

 

 

 

Scores around identify & belonging and social interaction in particular at SIMD 1, provide an 

insight into the sense of community evident across some communities with a higher proportion of 

citizens living in SIMD 1.  The Children’s Services Board needs to consider how to better 

capitalise on community to help support improving outcomes. 

 

 

Page 96



   

 

21 
 

When responses from those living in Priority Areas is compared with the Locality data, we benefit 

from further insight.  Scores from those living in Priority Areas were generally lower. 

 

We can see that the feelings of being unsafe are most keenly felt in the North Priority Area. 

A review of the data by age and ethnicity, shows considerable further variation.  

 

It’s interesting that those under 24 also have concerns about their influence and control but have 

greater concerns about housing and community than other age groups.  Influence and control is 

also flagged by looking at the mean scores by ethnicity.  This highlights the critical importance of 

working with communities to empower and enable. 

Having access to data that enables more granular analysis by group is invaluable and will enable 

the improved targeting of our work. 

 

What do our young people tell us? 

A similar survey for children and young asked about the same 14 themes.  The 106 children and 

young people who responded were asked if things were, ‘Not Good and needs to be improved’, 

were ‘Okay’ or ‘Great, as good as it could be’.  
 

The most common response for all themes was ‘Okay’ with at least half of all respondents 

choosing this option for all of the themes. Comparing other responses, for almost all of the 

themes a higher proportion of respondents choose ‘Not Good’ for each themes. The exceptions 

to this were Natural Space and Public Transport – these also had the highest proportion of 

respondents (25.7% and 23.9% respectively) who chose ‘Great’.  

Page 97



   

 

22 
 

The themes with the highest proportion of ‘Not 

Good’ responses were Facilities and Services 

(35.2%), Play and Recreation (34.7%) and Care 

and Maintenance (33.7%) which each had over 

a third of respondents choosing this option.  

The summarised output of what children and 

young people said on the People themes is 

outlined below.  

Theme What is good now? What would make it better? 

Facilities and services 

 

• Good shops (22.6%) 

• School (22.6%) 

• Doctors (12.3%) 

• Clubs (22.6%) 

• Doctors (20.8%) 

• School (16%) 

Feeling safe 
 

• Feeling safe during the day (38.7%) 

• Lighting (16%) 

• Play spaces (15.1%) 

• Less anti-social behaviour (34%) 

• Feeling safe at night (32.1%) 

• Brighter/more lighting (22.6%) 

Identity and 
belonging 

 

• Food (18.9%) 

• The people (17.9%) 

• Local museums (14.2%) 

• Festivals (29.3%) 

• Music (16%) 

• Culture (15.1%) 

Social interaction 

 

• There are child friendly spaces 
(30.2%) 

• Meeting friends (19.8%) 

• Cafes (17%) 

• Places to hang out (29.3%) 

• Child friendly spaces (24.5%) 

• Places to meet friends (23.6%) 

Play and recreation 

 

• Play parks (29.3%) 

• Easy to find spaces (19.8%) 

• Making your own fun (19.8%) 

• Mix of activities (32.1%) 

• Sports areas (30.2%) 

• Organised fun stuff (27.4%) 

 

It is thought that this feedback reinforces the legitimacy of the actions already outlined in the 

Children’s Services Plan.   

The feedback on work, the local economy and influence and control are also important as we 

continue to work with other LOIP Outcome Groups and consider how we ensure that children and 

young people have voice and influence.  

 
What do datasets tell us about those most likely to experience poverty? 
Data on child poverty sits across a number of organisations and isn’t currently coordinated into 
one single data set to allow real time monitoring of child poverty, however work is underway to 
improve this.  Additional funding has been secured from the national Child Poverty Fund to start 
aligning data across the Council and DWP and this should help provide a more holistic picture of 
the situation in future.  The funding will allow improved development of baseline information 
across the actions under the three drivers of poverty described below, along with improved 
baselines and understanding of requirements to tackle poverty among those with protected 
characteristics, the six priority family groups and care experienced young people. NHS Grampian 
is also working on a Child Health dataset that includes specific indicators for child poverty aligned 
to the drivers and priority families. 
 
 
 

Page 98



   

 

23 
 

The groups identified as being most at risk of poverty continue to face particular challenges 
locally: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
There is a need to continue to think about how we collect and align 
data to ensure that we continue to build an understanding of the 
challenges facing our residents.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Half of all children living in single parent families are experiencing poverty.  In 2022/23 there were 

646 (+46 on 2021/22) applications to the Scottish Welfare Fund managed by Aberdeen City Council, 

which were from single parent families. This was 13% of all applications, up by one percentage point 

on the previous year. These families, by far, represent the single largest group of applicants in the Child 

Poverty Priority category.  In August 2023, the number of single parent family claimants aged under 25 

in receipt of Housing Benefit has remained stable in comparison with March 2023, compromising 14 

applicants, down from 22 in August 2022 

Minority Ethnic Families: 63% of those who are in ethnic minority families are employed compared to 

72% of those who are white in Aberdeen City. There is presently no consistently reliable data around the 

influences behind this differential at national or local levels. 

Youngest child less than one year old: In August 2023, there were 492 households in Aberdeen City 

on Universal Credit with a child under 1, with more than half being lone parent families. Around a third 

(34%) of families with a child under the age of 1 experience relative poverty (individuals living in 

households where equalised income is below 60% of the UK median income in the same year) 

compared to just less than a quarter (24%) of children overall. 

Disability: As of 30th September 2023, Aberdeen City Council had received 1,260 applications against 

the Child Disability Payment funding stream, in comparison with 610 applications at the same point in 

2022. The number of payments made to families through the Child Winter Heating Assistance grants in 

2022/23 was 670. a rise of 155 ( +30%) on the previous year. This represented 5.2% of all Winter 

Heating awards. 

Larger families (3+ children): There were 132 households with 3 or more children who were in receipt 

of Housing Benefit in August 2023  This is a 28% increase from 103 in March 2023, and 102 in August 

2022. There were 1,769 households with 3 or more children who were in receipt of Universal Credit in 

August 2023, substantially above the positions in both March 2023 and August 2022. 

Younger mother:  The number of first time mothers under 25 has dropped slightly. 

Page 99



   

 

24 
 

What is getting better? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
It is really encouraging that 82% of our communities are performing better than could be expected 
based on outcomes in other similar communities across the country and that the percentage of 
those doing better than expected is increasing.  However, this also means that 18% are not doing 
as well as they could be.  This provides further evidence of the need to look at community data in 
a far more granular way. 
 
Although the city has improved its relative Local Authority position against child poverty measures 
by one place, there is more to do.   

 
What has stayed the same? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Levels of child poverty compared to 

other similar Council areas have 

improved by one place when 

comparing our performance to our 

family group. 

 

In November 2023, the city level 
claimant count had fallen from 5,020 
in March 2023 to 4,840 ( - 3.6%)  -5% 
lower than in November 2022. This is 
amongst the lowest number of 
claimants recorded in the past 3 
years. 

 

According to Improvement Service 

data, 82% of our communities are 

performing better than could be 

expected compared to only 78% a 

year ago. 

 

Young single parent families in 

receipt of housing benefits was 

unchanged between March and 

August 2023.  

 

The number of Best Start and Best Start Foods grant 

applications received from city residents ( as at 

September 2023) was 3,145, compared to 2,735 in 

the same period the prior year. This represents an 

increase in the proportion of all applications to this 

stream from 3% to 4% of Scotland level awards. 

 

In November 2023, there were 
1,530 Claimants in our priority 
localities,  around the same as in 
in March 2023 (1,510).  This 
represents 31.7% of all claimants 
in the city. 

 
 

Levels of child poverty in the city 
are slightly below the national 
average but relatively high when 
compared with our SIMD based 
comparators.  Progress has been 
made in closing the gap over the 
last year.   

 

63% of those who are in ethnic 

minority families are employed 

compared to 72% of those who are 

white in Aberdeen City. There is 

presently no consistently reliable 

data around the influences behind 

this differential.at national or local 

levels. 

 

In August 2023, there were 492 

households in Aberdeen City on 

Universal Credit with a child 

under 1, with more than half 

being lone parent families. 

 

The new ‘Infant Feeding in a Crisis’ pathway is being 

delivered in full. All referrals have resulted in a 

voucher for feeding supplies, a full benefits check and 

a food pantry application if applicable.  

 

 

Although our overall 

breastfeeding figures are 

increasing, by the time of first 

health visitor visit 20% less 

mothers living in SIMD1 are 

continuing to breastfeed 

compared to mothers living in 

SIMD 5.  

 
Page 100



   

 

25 
 

The lack of real time data makes determining changes over relatively short time periods 
challenging.  It is hoped that a recent award of resource as part of the Child Poverty Fund will help 
improve the quality of real time data and that this will help the Children’s Services Board to identify 
live trends to support agile improvement work. 

 
What is getting worse? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Locality data  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The data shows that poverty continues to impact on our families and that this is likely to continue.   
There is emerging evidence that families are increasingly accessing their entitlements and this is 
encouraging, but does highlight the number of those who need our help at this challenging time. 
There is a need to continue to carefully target those groups most likely to be impacted by poverty 
wherever possible and continue to increase our knowledge and support of them. 
 
The recent engagement to inform the development of the LOIP has suggested that there is better 
awareness of, and access to Council Officers and elected Officials now.  Citizens seek more 
opportunities to get involved in decision making and ways of knowing “where to raise my voice for 
my community”.  Participation continues to be important. 

 
The disparity in outcomes, largely determined by SIMD quintile is of concern.  Despite some 
evidence of progress across SIMD 2 and 3, outcomes for those in SIMD 1 are by far the poorest 
as evident in this heat map showing the number of developmental concerns for children at aged 

 The trend data and projections 

around increasing relative child 

poverty for the city are negative 

 

 

 

 

 

In the year from April 2022-

March 2023, 24% of 

Aberdeen’s working age 

population (over the age of 16) 

were economically inactive, up 

from 19% in the previous year. 

 

There has been a significant 

rise in the numbers of families 

with 3 or more children 

claiming Uiversal Credit 

 

The claimant counts for young 
people aged 16-17 and 18-21 at 
November 2023 had both risen 
since March 2023, from a 
combined 460 to 480 claimants. 

 

In 2022/23 there were 646 (+46 on 

2021/22) applications to the Scottish 

Welfare Fund managed by Aberdeen 

City Council, which were from single 

parent families. This was 13% of all 

applications, up by one percentage 

point on the previous year. 

 

As of 30th September 2023, 

Aberdeen City Council had 

received 1,260 applications 

against the Child Disability 

Payment funding stream, in 

comparison with 610 applications 

at the same point in 2022 

 

Lengthy waiting lists for some child health services are negatively impacting on the health and wellbeing of children 

and families, and in some situations, the ability of parent’s to take up employment. 

 

Page 101



   

 

26 
 

4/5 (the darker the colour the greater the level of 
concern).  There is a risk that the gap between those 
living in SIMD 1 and their neighbours increases. 
 
The direct link with poverty and mental health 
outcomes is clear as shown by the medication 
prescriptions by SIMD quintile and referrals for children 
and young people.  There is a need for targeted work 
to address the needs of those living in SIMD 1,  We 
have to accept that current arrangements are not 
realising improvement. 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 102



   

 

27 
 

Best Start, Bright Futures 
 
Best Start, Bright Futures tells us that the three drivers of poverty are income from employment, 
cost of living, and income from social security and benefits in kind. We know that impacting these 
drivers will positively impact levels of child poverty and so have structured our report under these 
three headings whilst recognising how interrelated they are. 

 

 
 
 
 
Income from employment 
Ensuring that our young people and families gain the skills required to 
secure employment is central to our work.  All of the actions outlined in 
the last Child Poverty Action Plan Report are well progressed with 
progress outlined below. 
 
The employment rate across Aberdeen City rate currently sits slightly 
above the national average.  Less citizens are employed in lower paid 
occupations compared to the national average. 
 

 
 

 
ABZ Campus update  
Work has continued to progress Phase 2 of ABZ Campus in order to ensure our young people have 
the skills required to secure employment in the longer term.  Discussions have continued with 
delivery partners of Foundation Apprenticeships and existing courses to ensure the delivery of a 
wider range of courses.  
 
An exciting partnership has commenced alongside Aberdeenshire 
Council for a series of anytime courses for young people outwith the 
confines of the column structure and school week.  Delivery 
partners for a range of anytime courses are SRUC, University of 
Aberdeen, RGU and RGC Online.  

Page 103



   

 

28 
 

 
Plans for a pilot employability experience for young people with additional support needs is also 
included in Phase 2 plans. 
 
We remain ready to evaluate the impact of the 37 courses being offered as part of Phase 1 of 
ABZ Campus 23-24 to determine the impact of the approach on the young people registered. 
 
Aberdeen Computing Collaborative  
A digital event was held for 1000 teaching and support staff which included workshops from RGU 
and representation from Aberdeen University.  The 
event had computing science inputs for Early 
Stages and Upper Stages Primary staff focused on 
growing interest in the subject.  Esports has now 
been established at St Machar Academy and 
discussions are progressing to add Bucksburn 
Academy as a second Esports hub.    
 
Discussions continue with ABZ Works team to review the Computing Science offer.  RGC Online 
is being explored as a means to supporting more young people to secure Higher Computing 
within the ABZ Campus offer.  Developing communications for parents/carers/young people to 
promote the opportunities in the sector and the range of pathways available will now be 
progressed.  
 
National and local extra-curricular opportunities, with a Computing Science or Digital focus, 
continue to be shared with schools.   A young person survey of uptake and attitudes to 
Computing Science more widely is in draft.  A city-wide meeting of Computing Science staff is 
planned for February to identify opportunities for further collaboration on resource development 
and the identification of training needs to allow staff to support a broader curriculum.  
  
ABZ Works update 
Significant strides have been made by the Council’s ABZWorks employability service, which 
continues to see rising numbers of referrals for 
employability support from a steadily widening pool of 
referral routes. We are increasingly receiving referrals 
for people with significant barriers to employment.  
The appointment of a Child Poverty Coordinator, 
designed to focus on employability, is currently in the 
recruitment process, with the successful candidate 
anticipated to be in post in early Spring.  
 
A series of pilot projects has been developed by the 
ABZWorks keyworkers, delivering activities in 
regeneration areas for target groups identified by the 
Local Employability Partnership. Some of these pilots 
have now been mainstreamed and contracted out, 
while others continue to be delivered in-house with support from industry partners and training 
providers – this includes a project designed with and for care experienced young people, and Fit 
Next, which was created at short notice for school leavers without a positive destination when 
funding delays meant there was no contracted provision available. 
 
The service ran Scotland’s first jobs fair for refugees, displaced people, and asylum seekers, in 

Page 104



   

 

29 
 

partnership with the Refugee Employer Network, attracting more than 500 job seekers. A report 
detailing the work undertaken to support the community, and detailing their broad skill sets and 
barriers to employment was published. 
 
The inaugural ABZWorks Conference took place, paving the way for closer partnership working 
with agencies across the city, services gap analysis, areas of emerging need, and co-design of 
services.  
 
A dynamic purchasing system for the procurement of employability services was co-designed with 
providers, launched and is now being well-used. All employability provision is being procured via 
the framework, which has attracted more providers to engage with us and provide a broader range 
of services to city residents at all stages of the pipeline. Our approach is being used as an example 
of best practice by the Scottish Government’s Improvement Service. 
 
We continue to see the impacts of the cost of living crisis on employability programme participants 
and provide funding to remove the financial barriers to participation in services and employment.  
More detail on individual projects is included below. 
 
The ABZWorks team has secured several local and national awards in recognition of the quality of 
their work. 
 
Employability Programmes  
Aberdeen City Council receives funding annually from Scottish Government to deliver a range of 
employability interventions through both the No One Left Behind and Parental Employability 
Support Fund streams. The main purpose of employability funds is to pay for employability 
interventions and the vast majority of these monies goes towards covering training and 
engagement costs, delivered either in-house or via contracted provision.  Referrals for employability 
support continue to rise.  
 
Thirty-nine employability services contracts have been awarded in 2023/24, worth more than 
£650,000, providing a broad range of support and training opportunities across the city, and we 
anticipate offering more tendering opportunities when we receive grant funding for 2024/25. This is 
in addition to grant-funded activities such as Employer Recruitment Incentives and paid work 
experience schemes.  
 
ABZWorks Development Grant  
An ABZWorks Development Grant has been launched to support grass roots organisations, 
particularly those in the priority areas, to build their capacity to develop and deliver employability 
activities and build links with hard-to-reach groups. Up to £10,000 is available per organisation. 
Fourteen applications have been received in the first round. 
 
The service is in the process of commissioning research into local barriers to parental 
employment/engagement with employability activities, with a particular focus on single parents, 
minority ethnic parents, and parents with a disability and/or a disabled child. Recommendations on 
how to address those barriers at an Aberdeen and community level will be provided as part of this 
work. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 105

https://abzworks.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/04/Refugee_Response_Report-PDF-1.pdf


   

 

30 
 

Work experience programmes 
Paid work experience programmes with guaranteed interviews for those who complete have been 
established and aligned to sectors where we know there are skills shortages (we have one 
underway currently for care experienced young people, and another for eligible city residents of all 
working ages in the health and social care sector).  
 
Two newly launched schemes got underway in November 2023 – one with third sector employers 
for unemployed parents of dependent children, and another scheme in early learning and childcare 
settings, with a primary focus on parents. 23 paid work experience placements have been provided 
to date. 
 
The team has also supported the creation of a training kitchen in HMP Grampian to support people 
to learn industry skills, gain accredited qualifications and secure employment on release with 
hospitality industry partner Greene King. 
 
ABZWorks has created the Fit Next programme for school leavers without a positive destination, 
removing barriers to employability participation, building confidence, social circles, employability 
skills, introductions to training providers and employers, and work experience. 
 
The education team, with support from the Wood Excelerate Programme and NHS Grampian,  
has supported the establishment of an in-school healthcare classroom at St Machar Academy. A 
year of collaborative planning has resulted in an inspirational space with industry standard 
equipment to empower young people and teachers to learn and teach through the lens of health, 
social and community care.  

Employer Engagement  
The Employer Recruitment Incentive scheme, which provides up to £6,000 to employers to offset 
the costs of taking on new members of staff, has been diversified to incentivise the recruitment of 
not only young people, but also eligible parents,  refugees and displaced people.   We anticipate 
an increase in the funding amount in the next financial year in line with the rise in the Real Living 
Wage. 
 
A series of employer engagement sessions to promote inclusive employment in the city for key 
groups is underway. These aim to increase employer confidence and increase the number of 
opportunities for groups including parents, young people, displaced people and refugees, disabled 
people, and people with convictions.   
 
Supporting residents into Fair Work  
Increasing training and reskilling opportunities as well as business creation is key to both 
developing new fair work employment opportunities; reducing the number of people in receipt of 
Universal Credit and to diversifying the economy. We are taking forward a number of initiatives to 
support people who will be coming off (or significantly reducing) their benefits. In the past year, 730 
people have received employability support via ABZWorks and the number continues to rise.  
 
We continue to provide Aberdeen Gift Cards to employability programme participants to remove 
some of the financial barriers to employment. This money is spent locally, boosting the economy 
and supporting jobs, while equipping individuals with essentials for interviews and starting work, 
such as interview clothes, transport costs, hair cuts, etc. To date, £1,395 has been distributed via 
Aberdeen Gift Cards.  
 
 

Page 106



   

 

31 
 

Employability Transition Grant  
An employability transition grant, provided through the Council’s Cost of Living Funding in 2022/23, 
providing £1,000 paid over three months to lone parents who meet eligibility criteria, is helping them 
transition into employment by removing the financial barriers to work. It is hoped that we will be 
able to continue to provide this through the Parental Employability Support Funds. To date, £50,000 
has been committed to parents via this grant, which continues to be paid. The Local Employability 
Partnership has identified parents and young people as key target groups for employability support. 
United Kingdom Shared Prosperity Funds (UKSPF) are being leveraged to provide a range of 
employability support to eligible individuals, including those who are economically inactive, this 
includes a series of test and learn pilots for a broad range of people, including parents with 
dependent children, young people, disabled people, people with long-term health conditions, and 
minority ethnic people aged 16+. 
 

Supporting citizens to start a business and reduce their universal credits  
In order to take advantage of all policy levers, work has been 
undertaken to increase the number of people starting a business. 
The ABZWorks seed fund, set up in November 2021 to support all 
those meeting the funding eligibility criteria to start a business by 
providing start-up monies, has supported 34 people to start their 
own business to date, with growing interest in the funding.  
ABZWorks has partnered with Business Gateway to deliver this 
activity, with business adviser and employability keyworker support 
in place for all entrepreneurs accessing the fund.  We now have a 
dedicated Business Gateway Adviser to help increase the number 
of direct referrals. As a result of these improvements, there have 
been 104 referrals of individuals in receipt of universal credits who 
are considering starting a business since the start of the 
programme, with 39 individuals starting a business which either 
takes them off universal credits or significantly reduces their universal credits. 
 
ABZWorks has introduced a salary payment for eligible parents setting up their own business, paid 
at Real Living Wage rate for hours worked on their business, to support their progression and 
mitigate the risk of financial hardship as individuals build up their business.  
 
We have partnered with the Scottish Childminding Association to provide seed funding to eligible 
city residents who wish to become registered childminders, removing the financial barriers which 
often prevent people from taking up this career opportunity.   
 
Supporting care experienced young people into sustained employment.  
Many care experienced young people face significant barriers to employment and the majority will 
need additional support to help them achieve and sustain employment. The range of barriers faced 
is broad and can seem overwhelming. Positive and early work experience or employment helps 
with a smoother transition to life beyond care and minimises the risk of homelessness and 
offending.  
 
Through our employability support for care experienced young people project we’ve put in place a 
range of initiatives to help remove those barriers and provide support and opportunities to help 
them feel confident and ready for employment. Initiatives have included guaranteed interview 
scheme, RiteWorks and Kickstart to name a few. Latest data available for 2023/24 shows that our 
tailored employability support programmes have supported 59 care experienced young people this 
year alone, compared to 63 over the past three years combined. The programmes have been very 

Page 107



   

 

32 
 

successful to date across a number of outcomes, including: sustained engagement; achieving 
qualifications; engaging in work experience; progressing into a positive destination; sustaining that 
destination. 
 
Aberdeen City Council’s ABZWorks employability service secured the national SURF Removing 
Barriers to Employability Award in December for its work to support care experienced young 
people.  
 

Focus on Growth and Volume Sectors  
We are working closely with partner agencies and have developed a working group with the Health 
and Social Care partnership to support parents and other employability participants into roles where 
the Partnership has gaps, and which suit the needs and aspirations of participants. In-work support 
is provided for up to 26 weeks to ensure as far as possible that employment outcomes are 
sustained. It is standard procedure to refer employability participants, and particularly parents, to 
the Financial Inclusion Team for support, a benefits check, and advice. 
 
A paid work experience scheme has been created to support employability participants, particularly 
parents, into early learning and childcare roles within the authority, with a guaranteed interview on 
completion. 
 
The ABZ Pipeline will see the Council work with employers in the energy sector to strengthen 
educational links and help pupils learn about the industry, careers, and the various routes into them. 
It will create a programme of linked opportunities with multiple employers to establish a planned 
and targeted pipeline of activities across the secondary school phase. 
 
This will introduce young people to a range of insider insights into the industry, support their 
understanding and career aspirations, link to the curriculum, and support education staff.  This 
work, led by staff from the City Growth and Education services, will be replicated for other key 
sectors and will support pathway planning by increasing young people’s understanding of the 
sectors, opportunities within them, and the routes in, including qualification and skills needs.    
 
Sector specific training courses have been, and at the time of writing, are being commissioned to 
ensure Aberdeen has a skilled workforce. Commissioning activities are linked to a number of 
sectors including construction, renewables, early learning and childcare, health and social care, 
and digital. 
  

Planning for the future 
Phase 3 of the Scottish Government’s No One Left Behind strategy will come into effect on 1 April 
2024, placing an increasing focus on employability support for people with disabilities and long term 
health challenges, alongside those currently supported and parents experiencing poverty. This will 
result in a significant increase in the amount of employability support provided by the Council and 
contracted providers. Planning for that is ongoing, and a series of test and learn pilot projects are 
being commissioned meantime for delivery in the final quarter of 2023/24 ahead of the introduction 
of phase 3. 
  
Of the 121 parents registered for support with ABZWorks since April 2023:  

• 24 have secured employment, 13 of whom we know are being paid Real Living Wage, 
though we believe the actual number to be higher;  

• Six have accessed seed funds to set up their own business and are now self-employed, with 
a further six in the business development stage. 

 

Page 108



   

 

33 
 

The recent engagement work to help shape the refresh of the LOIP showed us that our citizens 
acknowledge that training opportunities, volunteering opportunities and availability of jobs was 
good. Suggestions for improvement included improving the type and range of job opportunities 
available, in particular through having “more jobs around the area [as] usually have to travel far just 
for a part time job” and by having “more decent jobs” and “less reliance on service industries such 
as nail bars, and betting shops.”  
 
Improving employment support, especially locally, was stated, so too was increasing opportunities 
for those with a criminal record, or by providing “more help for people with disabilities” or providing 
“job clubs for young school leavers [with] help to do CV’s and apply for jobs.”  
 
Increasing volunteering opportunities and also communication around volunteering opportunities 
were stated as other main suggestions of improvement.  These suggestions will be considered as 
part of the LOIP refresh. 
 

Scottish Attainment Challenge funding supporting pupil and family wellbeing.  
For 2023-24, Strategic Equity funding of £638,079 has allowed the continued provision of youth 
workers, family learning workers and Financial Inclusion Team support to schools across the city.  
 
With a clear remit for early intervention and targeting those children, young people and families 
most at risk of disengaging from education, this resource is helping to prevent escalation of need. 
Collaborating with school staff in a multi-agency approach, focus areas include; improving 
attendance, reducing exclusions, increasing engagement and raising attainment and 
achievement.   Transition has been a significant focus and there are many examples of effective 
transition programmes to support primary-secondary transition, providing young people 
opportunities for social development through meeting up with peers from different schools while 
developing their skills in various activities and building confidence in working with new people. 
  
The Family Learning Team works in partnership with schools, local community groups and other 
agencies. The primary focus is to engage with parents, carers and their children to deliver 
learning activities that positively impact the whole family, such as outdoor learning, cooking 
classes, parenting workshops and to foster and nurture positive attitudes to lifelong learning.  
Individual and targeted support can also be provided for support with behaviour, school 
attendance or additional support needs.  The team has developed strong relationships with a 
wide variety of partner agencies with the goal of ensuring that families access the right support at 
the right time.  
  
Families are signposted to the Financial Inclusion Team who can provide a range of confidential 
services including benefit checks, help to claim benefits or challenge decisions; provide debt 
management advice and speak to creditors on behalf of clients.  Next steps around Scottish 
Attainment Challenge funding will be detailed in the Education National Improvement Framework 
Plan for 2024/25. 
 
Youth Work achievements  

Since the Scottish Attainment Challenge funding for youth work was made available in August 

2021, a total of 893 activities have been delivered to 2,246 participants, a total of 22.626 learner 

hours.  Most of the referrals are for one to one or small group work with a focus on improving 

confidence and resilience. Bespoke support for children in P7 making the transition to S1 is also 

part of the youth work team’s offer.  

 

Page 109



   

 

34 
 

There has been an increase in the number of wider achievement awards being offered to children 
and young people, in particular the Hi5 award. Awareness raising of these awards has led some 
partners such as Children 1st and Craigelea also offering them to the young people they work with. 
 
The CLD Youth Work team continues to change its approach to Youth Participation, moving away 
from more formal structures to a more inclusive and young people-friendly way of engagement. 
Aberdeen Youth Movement (AYM) has been invited to take part in a number of local and national 
events to offer a young person’s perspective on issues that affect them and a schedule of meetings 
with Partnership Leaders is now underway.  
 
AYM also acts as the Youth Activities Funding group and since 2022 they have assessed and 
approved over £91,000 of funding for activities that help young people develop skills, improve their 
confidence and access opportunities that can be life changing. Over financial year 2023/24, 1409 
young people have benefitted from a Youth Activities Grant.  
   
Removal of the costs of the school day  
Schools have removed all curriculum costs to families. There is clear 
evidence that this has resulted in children taking decisions on courses 
which are not influenced by the associated costs. There is evidence 
that increasing numbers of young people from areas of deprivation are 
now accessing free instrumental music instruction from The Aberdeen 
City Music Service. Uptake across Associated Schools Groups in 2020 
varied from 1% (in areas of deprivation) to 25% (in more affluent 
areas). The range currently sits at between 5.3% and 13.8% and is 
more balanced across areas.  
 
Data will continue to be closely monitored as we continue to address the equity agenda. 
 

Request for Assistance 
Work to develop a Family Support Model Following analysis of the effectiveness of Additional 
Support Need (ASN) and Outreach services, the education service began transforming the 
management and delivery models around 3 years ago. A generic request for assistance form was 
developed to function as a single access point for all  services including the School Nursing Service, 
Children’s Social Work, Autism Outreach, and the virtual school. The data is used at three levels; 
at whole system level to help us determine the success of our current approaches, at category of 
need level to help shape approaches and at individual pupil level to help inform individual planning 
for children and young people. This approach is proving helpful in identifying emerging risks. This 
live data helps us target groups more easily to help mitigate risk.  
 
The system has helped transform working practices, resource allocation and our commissioning of 
internal services and is now being extended to include all services for children as we design our 
model of Family Support.  Version 2 of the Request for Assistance system will be launched soon. 
 

Wider achievement in schools  
Since the end of COVID-19 related restrictions in 2022, schools have very quickly reintroduced 

all aspects of wider achievement awards. 

Day visits, which include all curricular and outdoor activities have returned to pre-pandemic 

levels, however there is now less reliance on privately booked coach travel due to increased 

costs.   P7 residentials continue to have to be planned and booked well in advance due to 

increased demand and the closure of some outdoor centres.  

Page 110



   

 

35 
 

The numbers of pupils participating in the Duke of Edinburgh’s award programme has seen an 

increase in numbers compared to pre pandemic levels, this is due to delayed completions still 

being undertaken along with increased interest from new groups including Orchard Brae, the 

Virtual School and Oldmachar Academy.  The Aberdeen Open Award Centre which offers DofE 

opportunities to any young people in the City is now based at Northfield Academy. There are 

currently 1040 young people active in DofE across the city, this is nearly 50 more than last year.. 

Aberdeen City has the 3rd highest level of pupils in Scotland achieving a John Muir Award with 

443 young people achieving the award with 83 of these being inclusion awards.  Other awards 

being undertaken in the city are: Saltire awards, Dynamic youth awards, Hi5 awards and Youth 

achievement awards.  An Automotive project based at Northfield Academy is now delivering 

Automotive courses to Northfield Academy pupils and their peers from across the city.  

The Evolve system for the approval and management of educational visits, sports fixtures, and 

extracurricular activities is now established and has been running for 1 year. It has been praised 

by staff who prefer the web based digital system.  Training and familiarisation sessions are 

regularly offered to new teachers along with the Youth Work Team who have also been 

introduced to the platform.  

Within the first year of using Evolve there was: 

• 2287 active users 

• 3505 Visits recorded 

• 57,367 participant days recorded. 
 

Access to Health Services 

Tackling child poverty is a priority within NHS Grampian Health Inequalities Action Plan. In addition to the 

integrated pathways described above, health services are mitigating the cost of attending appointments or 

hospital stays by designing a cash first approach to food and travel subsidies for patients and parents or 

carers. Families have told us that they have missed appointments because they cannot afford the cost of 

travel and being able to claim costs back after the effect is not a solution. There is a new work stream 

underway to poverty proof discharge processes. This will include routine financial enquiry and onward 

referral where appropriate.  

So, what next? 

Considerable work continues to increase income from employment with our ABZWorks team 

achieving national recognition for their work.  This work will continue.  The ABZWorks team will 

take account of the Regional Economic Strategy and associated Skills Plan when published and 

reflect next steps within the refreshed LOIP. 

 

Page 111



   

 

36 
 

Costs of living 

The wider challenges created by the current Cost of Living crisis 
around fuel costs and high levels of inflation create a greater risk 
of families falling into poverty.  Levels of fuel poverty in the city are 
currently far higher than the national average and 10 out of 32 for 
fuel poverty which places the Local Authority area in the top third 
of all Local Authority areas. 
 
 

Free period products 
Access to Free period products has continued to improve with a 
focus on the promotion and availability of reusable products, as we 
begin to see the impact of the refreshed marketing campaign: Free 
products for all. Period.   
 
This has included the pilot introduction of period pants of which 276 
units have been provided, requested mainly by primary schools. In 
our academies, workshops by Unicorn Cup took place in 
November to develop understanding of menstruation and the use 
of reusable cups. Staff reported that ‘The feedback from young 
people has been incredibly positive. They have really enjoyed 
taking home the products to try and very much enjoyed the delivery 
of the workshop.’  
 
215 boxes of menstrual cups have also been provided since April 2023. When combined with re-
usable pads and disposable products 1291 boxes have been provided to schools between April 
2023 and November 2023.  
 
 

Aberdeen Gift Card 
Households entitled to Council Tax Reduction (CTR) as of 21 June 2022, were awarded Scotland 

Loves Local Aberdeen Gift Card by the Council with £125 of credit on each card. Between 

07/12/22 and 15/09/2023 total Aberdeen Gift Card spend was £1,385,492.39 (out of £1,788,250 

of activated card) and 14,306 cards had been issued. Over 50,000 transactions have been made. 

After March 2024, any unspent funds from activated cards and inactivated ones will come back to 

ACC to be re-purposed. 

 
 

Addressing food insecurity 
The Fairer Aberdeen Fund supported the distribution of 554 tonnes of free food (the equivalent of 
1.3M meals), and 1306 food bank users were referred to other support services. 3 Community 
Pantries and 21 Community Food Outlets were supported as a more dignified and sustainable 
alternative to emergency food provision.  Updated data will be available from June 2024. 
 
4651 people received money and income maximisation advice, with 1230 of them receiving a total 
financial gain of £2,323,811 the equivalent of £1,889 per person.  
 
 
 
 

Page 112



   

 

37 
 

Community support  
Community Flats are supported in Cummings Park, Tillydrone and Seaton, to support people with 
a range of issues. Over the last year they supported people with welfare reform issues and have 
helped to address isolation.  
 
The Fairer Aberdeen Programme supported 444 parents and families with complex needs and 
203 young people accessed 2,033 counselling sessions.  
 
There were 590 contacts with older people to develop digital skills to help them keep in touch with 
their families and to access online services.  
 
5,099 people saved with a credit union which provided £1.9m affordable loans, helping people 
avoid pay day loans and doorstep lenders.  
 
369 households of older people and people with disabilities were supported with income 
maximisation and sourcing charitable funding, achieving a financial gain of over £440,000 and 
489 households in priority areas received assistance with repairs, adaptations, and handyman 
services. 
 
 
Access to free Early Learning and Childcare (ELC) 
Increased access to ELC is positively impacting parents and carers.  The expansion of ELC focused 
in part on making provision more accessible.  The accessibility of services and broader range of 
delivery models has helped realise a significant increase in uptake and this increase has been 
sustained.   Over 95% parents and carers who responded to the last Parent and Carer Consultation 
(June 2023) identified ELC as having a positive impact on their child’s development. We asked 
parents and carers what impact the expansion of Early Learning and Childcare (from 600 hours to 
1140 hours) has had on them and their family: 
 

• 39.8% of respondents stated that they had more time for other responsibilities as a result of 
the expansion of Early Learning and Childcare.  

• 29.2% of respondents indicated that they had more money/disposable income as a positive 
impact on their family.  

• 24.1% stated improved wellbeing /respite as a positive impact from the expansion of ELC, 
with 18.9% of respondents finding they now have more time to themselves.  

• 24.1% are now considering a return to work or study. 73% of parents and carers are aware 
that Aberdeen City Council offers Eligible 2’s ELC placements. 

 
The service continues to review demand for provision on an annual basis to ensure that the delivery 
models are designed around the needs of children and families.    
 
The Scottish Government are currently undertaking some pilots to determine how best to further 
roll out School Age Childcare.  The Authority has recently reported to Education and Children’s 
Services Committee on the National Delivery Framework for School Age Childcare and remains 
well positioned to react positively to when more detailed delivery plans are developed in 2025/26. 
This will set out what a targeted School Age Childcare offer will look like for families within 
communities and providing a clear timescale for delivery. 
 
In preparation for this, the Local Authority has managed to secure additional funding from Scottish 
Government to support preparations for the expansion.  
 

Page 113



   

 

38 
 

The purpose of the Inspiring School Age Childcare Spaces (ISACS) Fund is to improve indoor 
and outdoor spaces in school estates for the purposes of supporting provision of School Age 
Childcare.  Aberdeen City Council submitted four project funding proposals to Scottish 
Government / Scottish Futures Fund in May 2023, in relation to this Programme. We are delighted 
to confirm the projects listed below were considered to have met all the qualifying criteria at the 
time the assessment workshop took place and have been identified by Ministers to be included 
as part of ISACS Programme.  
  
Project Name:    Maximum award approved:  
Cornhill School Community Wing  £100,000  
Orchard Brae School   £56,420  
Kirkhill Primary School   £59,431  
Muirfield Primary School   £93,610   
 
Total Funding Awarded   £309,461 
 
 
Fairer Aberdeen  
Over 2022/23 the Fairer Aberdeen Programme funded 36 initiatives designed to tackle poverty and 
a total of 44,228 people have benefitted. The reach of the funding is wide with projects funded to 
support the development of pathways into work, family support, money advice and affordable loans 
and early intervention programmes designed to address gender based violence.   
 
The Fairer Aberdeen Programme supported 739 volunteers, providing 144,869 hours of 
volunteering time, with a value of £2.2m.  5 Community Projects or Flats were funded in priority 
neighbourhoods to support community capacity building as well as providing a range of services 
and support. 
 
There is now a need to ensure that the totally of offers available to families is more clearly mapped 
and aligned to ensure that we maximise the impact of all available resource. 
 
 
Provision of free breakfast clubs 
There are an increasing range of breakfast clubs/wrap around supports for families. We have a 
mixed model of Breakfast Provision in the city which can broadly be divided into the following three 
categories:  
 

1. Registered provision – A Breakfast Club registered as childcare with Care Inspectorate and 
for which a fee is paid by parents / carers. (23 primary schools)  

2. Unregistered provision – A free Breakfast service provided directly by the school. Often 
funded via Pupil Equity Funding (PEF) to give children and young people a nutritional start 
to the day. (7 primary schools & 2 secondary schools)  

3. ACC Catering service – A Breakfast service provided directly by Aberdeen City Council 
Catering Service at no or low cost to families, again to ensure children and young people 
start the day with some breakfast. (7 primary & 7 secondary schools) 

 
Nationally, there are planned developments to extend wrap around care for school age children 
and to deliver this free for low-income families. Breakfast Club provision will be considered as part 
of this programme. We await further guidance and look forward to working with partners across the 
city to deliver this. Meantime we have a good supply of Breakfast Provision to meet the different 
needs of families in the city. 

Page 114



   

 

39 
 

Provision of IT 
Children have access to IT provision, through the investments made during lock-down and 
subsequently, and we are now entering a new phase of transformation. Partnering with Microsoft 
to deploy services and devices for children across the city, investing in connectivity infrastructure 
for schools and supporting parents to gain greater insight into their child’s learning.  This 
deployment of devices and services has begun with two test of change schools, Woodside 
Primary School and St Machar Academy, with additional schools being on-boarded from August 
2024 to September 2025.  
 

This investment will ensure that almost all children and young people from P4 – S6 continue to 
have access to a digital device. The Scottish Government commitment to a device for every child 
will help increase the number of children and young people who have access to a suitable device 
from the 41% of the school population to 100%. 86% of young people recently reported that they 
are supported to know how to feel safe online with 10% stating that they didn’t know. 
 
Improvement Service data shows that 97.8% of all city properties can now access superfast 
broadband, up from 95.6% in 2022/23. 
 
 
Warm Spaces  
Warm Spaces have continued across the city, with a mix 
of Council premises and community and third sector 
organisations providing support.  
 
There are 41 venues across community centres, 
libraries, churches, and public spaces. Support provided 
through Warm Spaces includes a range of activities and 
opportunities, from offering a welcoming warm space, 
signposting to information, access to internet, a hot drink, 
hot meal, access to participate in centre programmes or specific warm space activities such a 
reading newspapers, sustainable crafting, yoga, reading corners and board games. From a 
community perspective each Warm Space developed its own unique offer. Examples of this have 
been free warm drinks, spaces to read newspapers, enjoy games or participate in community 
centre programmes.  
 
 
Provision of free bus passes  
The provision of free buses passes for children and young people has been promoted since the 
launch of the Under 22 Free Bus Travel Scheme. All 5-21 year olds resident in Scotland are eligible 
for Young Persons’ Free Bus Travel, using a National Entitlement Card with the free bus travel 
product on it. The scheme has been promoted through multiple channels nationally and locally 
including through schools in order to increase awareness and to maximise uptake. As of January 
2023, over 22,500 young people have applied for and obtained a National Entitlement Card with 
free bus travel and are benefiting from this service, by early November this figure has increased to 
29,621.   
 
 
Emergency formula 
The Best Start in Life Group has led work to ensure that appropriate infant formula is available for 
new mothers. This saw the Group work in collaboration with CFINE and Abernecessities to 
develop a formula/'cash first' approach.   

Page 115



   

 

40 
 

 
The Infant Feeding in a Crisis pathway is currently being tested, and has already began to see 
referrals to CFine through the Family Nurse Partnership, full support being given to those who 
have been referred.  The project continues to work with providers and families to raise better 
awareness of the offer. 
 
The project enhances the already established Early Years Financial Inclusion pathway. Both 
pathways have been well received by Midwives, Health Visitors, the Family Nurse Partnership 
and Allied Health Professionals. The Financial Inclusion pathway is a universal pathway that asks 
and offers all women and families if they require financial support  
 
Food vouchers for holiday periods 
Vouchers have been distributed to families who are eligible due to low income during holiday 
periods.  The voucher, with a value of £25 for each two week period, continues to be welcomed.  
  
Summer Holidays, 2023 – 4925 learners 
Autumn Holiday, 2023 – 5154 learners  
Winter Holiday, 2023 – 5153 learners 
 
Best Start Food Grant 
The number of Best Start and Best Start Foods grant applications received from city residents as 
at September 2023 was 3,145, compared to 2,735 in the same period the prior year. This 
represents an increase in the proportion of all applications from 3% to 4% of Scotland level 
awards and could partially indicate that families are now better aware of supports available.  
 
School Clothing Grants 
As of November 2023, 4500 free school clothing grants have been approved over the year. This 
equates to grants for 3008 Primary pupils and 1,498 secondary pupils and constitutes an increase 
of over 1100 grants being awarded compared to the last reporting period. 
 
Access to Out of School Care (SAC) 
549 parents and carers responded to the 2023 consultation on School Age Childcare in the city. 
Responses were gleaned from all 11 of the Aberdeen City’s ASGs from parents and carers 
accessing School Age Childcare through all available services. Local Authority and private 
providers, both registered and unregistered. 
  
The consultation findings demonstrate that 43% of all respondents who currently access School 
Age Childcare do so to support the working day with only 3% to enable them to attend College or 
University. 10% of all respondents use School Age Childcare to enable their children to play 
and/or socialise with other children, with only 1 (0.18%) respondent sighting respite as reason to 
access childcare.   
 
The majority, 36% of all respondents currently require the services of an After School Club, with 
22.8% requiring a Breakfast Club term time. Of those respondents accessing term time care, 16% 
required both a Breakfast and After School provision. There was also an increase from 2021 of 
8% to our 2021 of service users accessing childcare for In-service days during 2023.  
 
Various registered and unregistered holiday childcare services are currently available across the 
city during the Spring, Summer and Autumn school holidays with 37.89% of respondents 
requiring care during all three holiday periods. Interestingly there was 10% more respondent’s 
children attended an unregistered Sports/Activity Camp compared to those accessing a 

Page 116



   

 

41 
 

registered Holiday Club. A fifth of respondents of all respondents (20.03%) accessed both 
registered Holiday Clubs and unregistered Sports/Activity Camps. 10.93% of respondents 
accessed the Spring/Summer/Autumn ‘In the City’ programme 2023 with 25% of those 
respondents accessing a mix of registered, unregistered and In The City programme services. 
Evidence suggests that many parents and carers are currently accessing a mixed model of child 
care during the holidays to meet their needs.  
 
While we have good coverage of  SAC in Aberdeen there is still a demand for more places. 
Therefore it is important that we work with our partners to continually assess supply and demand 
across the city, and when and where possible either expand on existing provisions and/or create 
new services. As SAC is a paid for service, it is important that any new services are viable and 
sustainable. Expansion also has to take account of space available and the maximum number of 
registered places according to Care Inspectorate registration. 
  
With almost a quarter of respondents (24%) saying they will require School Age Childcare for 
their preschool children currently attending an ELC nursery and/or childminder it is important that 
we also look ahead and consider future coverage. Therefore we must continue to facilitate 
communication between parents, carers currently accessing ELC Nursery provisions and 
childminders and all SAC providers regarding future supply and demand.  
 
Affordability continues to be a concern for many families with almost 17% saying they do not 
access SAC due to cost.  We are also increasingly aware that cost can be an ongoing concern for 
many families who are currently in work but facing cost of living challenges. 46% of families 
saying they were not aware of any available financial support and only 28% of respondents 
currently receiving support it is essential that this information is made more readily available. We 
will work with the Financial Inclusion Team and all SAC providers to ensure that all parents and 
carers are made aware of what financial support is potentially available to assist with the costs of 
SAC. We will also link with the Scottish Out of School Care Network (SOSCN) to ensure that all 
information shared is current and in line with their of their existing drive to promote potentially 
available childcare financial support and benefits.  
 
In order to respond positively to the findings of this survey, the Early Years team will now: 

• establish a focus group with our School Age Childcare partners to help develop and inform 
the refresh of the Aberdeen City School Age Childcare Policy; 

• engage and communicate with parents, and carers whose children are currently attending 
ELC nursery and childminder settings to monitor future projections of potential supply and 
demand. At this time we will also communicate the importance of planning ahead with 
regards to wrap around care once children transition to primary school; 

• continue to promote the availability of potential financial support and benefits available to 
assist in the cost of childcare; and  

• develop a more detailed understanding of our own SAC services we will continue to 
consult and engage with Aberdeen City Council service users directly to ensure that we 
are continuing to meet their needs within our services.  

 

So, what next? 

There is considerable work being undertaken in this area and this will continue in line with current 
plans.  The education service remains ready to progress an expansion of out of school care in line 
with national policy when known. 
  

Page 117



   

 

42 
 

Income from social security and benefits in kind 
 
Money Advisors in schools  
The Council has attached Money Advisors to schools to help support families within their own 
communities through Scottish Attainment Challenge funding.  
 
As the Advisors have become established they have become more familiar with the scenarios 
facing families and as awareness of the service has grown the added value has increased. The 
reduction in gains made as a result of attaching Money Advisors to schools suggests that more 
families are now making use of the On-line calculator or accessing the Financial Inclusion Service 
through alternative routes.  This should be considered carefully as the use of Scottish Attainment 
Challenge funding is considered for 2024/25. 
 
Over the last year the 2 Money Advisors who are attached to the Financial Inclusion Services have 
helped families achieve:  

• Financial Gains of £273,159.16 

• Assisted/Assisting 56 households with debt issues. 

• Helping with total debts of £256,688.75 

• 108 households were given full benefit checks. 

• Assisted 39 households to claim benefits. 

• Assisting 8 households to challenge being turned down for benefits.  
 
Families who have accessed the Financial Inclusion Service independently of the school Money 
Advisors have been helped to achieve further: 

• Financial Gains - £360,894.71 

• Assisted/assisting 120 household with debt issues  

• Helping with debts of £908,660.99  

• 207 households given full benefit checks. 

• Assisted 38 households to claim benefits.  

• Assisted 6 households to challenge being turned down for benefits.  
 
 

Data from the online benefits calculator shows that 894 families have used the online benefit 
calculator. Of the completed calculation, 679 families had £194,046.60** per week of new benefits 
identified.  
**This does not confirm if they went onto claim the benefit as this is anonymised and could be people doing several 
calculations.    

 
 
Maximising the update of benefits 
We continue to work on maximising the uptake of benefits. There has been a proactive promotion 
of new benefit entitlements including promotion of the increased child payment through the 
universal services and through social media channels. We have been distributing the Support for 
Families booklet which gives information on entitlement at different life stages of children (Early 
Years, Primary School, Secondary School and staying on at School) which commenced in 2021 
and is updated each year. We continue to monitor to help determine the effectiveness of 
approaches. Targeted communications to those in priority groups have been tested over the last 
year. Cost of Living support continues to support household costs with additional funding for 
Scottish Welfare Fund to support medium priority applications. This also includes provision of 
benefit and financial advice, as well as further support to ensure the provision of adequate 

Page 118



   

 

43 
 

emergency food.  
 
In addition, support is being provided through the Lone Parent support fund to help lone parents 
with the costs if transitioning to employment. There has been an increase in the number of 
discretionary housing payments awarded and effective systems are in place to allocate community 
care and crisis grants to those who need them. 
 
 
Scottish Child Payment  
The Scottish Child Payment was fully rolled out to all 
children aged under 16 from the 14 Nov 2022.  Data 
up to 30 September 2023 shows that since its’ 
introduction in February 2021, there have been 
11,885 applications made, with 9,510 applications 
approved. 
  

This new benefit has provided an additional 
£14,745,270 of new money into Aberdeen City for 
families. 
 
 
Child Poverty Practice Accelerator Fund 
The Council applied for funding from Scottish Government and was successful in a bid to work 
with a preferred partner organisation to create a dashboard which will allow Aberdeen City 
Council to identify families who would benefit financially from targeted pro-active engagement, for 
vulnerable families in crisis, or those at risk of falling into crisis. This would enable the Council to 
do targeted prevention work rather than reacting to people who contact us. The dashboard is 
created by bringing together indicators of poverty from data held by Aberdeen City Council, The 
Department for Works Pension and other publicly available data.  
 
By combining data sources, we will be able to identify levels of financial exclusion and risk at an 

individual and household level, allowing us to follow up on those experiencing childhood poverty 

of the following priority families. 

• Minority ethnic families 

• Lone parent families 

• Families with a disabled person 

• Families with three or more children 

• Families with children under one 

• Families with mothers aged 25 or under 

 
 
Family Wellbeing Fund  
The Family Wellbeing Fund approach was developed by the Financial Inclusion Team (FIT) to 
support families affected by the DWP two child limit, through the development of a support plan 
linked to topics such as money advice, fuel payments and employability. The plan was to provide 
an initial payment of £100 to the household, with a second payment of £150 as an incentive to 
engage with services to maximise their income, with the aim being to support 100 families by March 
2023 with a cost of £25,000. 
 

Page 119



   

 

44 
 

While the overall number of families affected in Aberdeen is known to be around 1200, engaging 
with them has proved to be very difficult. Work has been undertaken with key agencies supporting 
families to try and increase referrals, with a session with providers taking place on 20 June 2023 
involving Citizen’s Advice, Homestart, Children 1st, CFINE advice team and ACC Children’s and 
Families service. While there was recognition of the value of the approach due to low level of uptake 
it was agreed that this funding would change to provide fuel vouchers to continue the provision due 
to likely demand due to the cost-of-living crisis. 
 
Based on data up to 31 Dec 2023, 979 households have received fuel vouchers to the value of 
£9953. 
 
Free school meals 
Free school meal registrations have increased but uptake is too low. When looking at the number 
of children (including those who are now automatically entitled in P1-P5), the number of children 
registered for free school meals is 3617 based on low income and 9569 based on P1-5 entitlement. 
The increase in entitlement makes annual comparison difficult and entitlement is expected to be 
extended to P6 and P7, within the lifetime of the current parliament.  
 
While there have been increases at schools in priority neighbourhoods, increases have been seen 
across schools in the city, including those in areas outwith priority neighbourhoods.  
 
Uptake of free school meals varies considerably from school to school and the school catering 
service are working with local schools to better understand the factors guiding children and young 
people to not take up their entitlement. According to the most recent data from the Healthy Living 
Survey, the percentage uptake in Primary schools currently sits at 72.3% and 56.5% in secondary 
schools. Work is in progress to establish a food hub at St Machar Academy to test an alternative 
approach. The food hub will be outwith the main school building and provide ‘grab and go’ food 
provision, allowing pupils to be outwith school to meet their friends but still uptake their free school 
meal entitlement. The installation of the pod is expected in early 2024, coinciding with other works 
taking place in the school playground including external dining facilities. Learning from this trial will 
be used to determine next steps.  
 
Data taken from the annual Healthy Living Survey saw free school meal uptake in Primary Schools rise from 69.6% in 2022 to 

72.3% in 2023. Uptake in Secondary Schools also rose from 47.7% in 2022, to 56.5% in 2023. 

 
Update of Early Learning and Childcare for Eligible 2s 
183 Eligible 2 year old children were placed in ELC in 2022/23, representing approximately 
31.66% of the eligible population.  The introduction of a new Data Pipeline Project with the DWP 
will help increase this percentage through better targeting of those who are eligible for school 
session 2023/24. The team continue to work to increase uptake further. 
 
 
In the City Programmes 
In line with the aims of the previous ‘In the City’ holiday programmes, the main focus remains to 
encourage participation and to maximise the positive opportunities available to young people and 
their families with a particular focus on those within the Tackling Child Poverty Plan priority 
groupings.   
  

Page 120



   

 

45 
 

The programme continues to engage 
with the widest demographics, 
providing free opportunities for both 
priority families and those who do not 
identify as part of a priority group to 
take part. The programme targets the 
5-14 years age group with some 
activities still being made available for 
those not in this age range. Bookable 
opportunities for priority families have 
taken the form of short, family, half-day 
and full-day sessions.   
  
Since summer 2021, the programmes 
have provided more than 49,000 
bookable opportunities, including 
weeklong/ multiday camps and 
childcare camps, day long and short 
activities being offered, as well as 
numerous drop-in activities in parks, 
museums, galleries and local 
communities and bespoke 
programmes for those with complex 
additional support needs.  
  
The enjoyability rating as provided by children and young people for the Summer 2023 programme 
was 9.6 out of 10. This rating was consistent with the previous programme. 
 
On-going funding of the programme will be considered as part of the Council budget setting 
process.   

 
So, what next? 

In addition to the work already in place and being progressed through the Children’s Services Plan, 
the Council and its Community Planning Partners remain committed to using all available tools to 
enable young people and families to access financial support and the benefits for which they are 
eligible. This includes the development of intelligence led insights from the Child Poverty Practice 
Accelerator Fund project detailed above.  The Childrens Services Board will collaborate with 
Community Planning Aberdeen’s Anti-Poverty Outcome Improvement Group to prioritise use cases 
from this insight. 
 
Having delivered significant improvement in benefits uptake, Community Planning Aberdeen have 
reset targets for the city to increase this by a further 10% by 2025.  

Page 121



   

 

46 
 

 

Central to the work of the Children’s Services Board is delivery of The Promise.   

The Children’s Services Board reviewed progress in delivering Plan 21-24 in October 2023.  The 

evaluation highlighted that good progress is being made in a number of areas but that the 

partnership is not on track to fully deliver on all areas of Plan 21-24.  This position is reflected 

nationally.  

This draft evaluation framework has been developed to help us measure our progress towards 
delivery of an effective Family Support model aligned to the Promise.   It is anticipated that this 
framework will have to be revisited when the next Promise Plan and associated evaluation 
framework is published in June 2024.  The final evaluation framework will be used to monitor the 
impact of our Family Support Model on a yearly basis and over time.  Readers should note that in 
looking at trend data, quite different groups of children and young people are often being compared 
and these differences need to be taken into consideration. 
 
5 year trend data (where available) has been aligned to the actions in Plan 21-24 that can be 
measured locally, the RAG rating reflects the evaluated position outlined in our October evaluation.  

 

Plan 21-24 
action  

RAG 
rating 

5 year trend 

Priority 1 – A Good Childhood 
 

Support   Increasing trend in the no. of Care Experienced Young People 
(CEYP) engaging in Active Schools activity. 
 
Increasing trend in the no. of CEYP accessing free leisure from 294 in 
2019 to 647 in 2024 (the number includes adult members who enable 
engagement) 
 
Decreasing trend in the percentage of young people who started 
treatment in CAMHS within 18 weeks of referral from 93% in 2018 to 
46% in 2023  
 
Increasing trend in the no. of families accessing financial support from 
295 in 2018 to 1040 in 2022/23 
 
Stable trend in the no. of children and young people supported 
universally by the Educational Psychology (EP) Service (407 over 
2022/23) 
 

Page 122

http://councilcommittees/documents/s151130/Progress%20towards%20delivering%20The%20Promise%20Plan%2021.pdf


   

 

47 
 

Increasing trend in the no. of children and young people who were 
supported through specialist Educational Psychology involvement or 
assessment throughout the year (206 in 2022/23). 
 
Stable trend in the no. children and young people looked after in  
residential care from 10% (51) in 2018/19 to 12% (67) in 2022/23. 
 

A right to 
education  

  
Improving trend in reducing levels of unauthorised school absence 
from 6.93% in 2017/18 to 4.35% in 2021/2022 for all Looked After 
Children and Young People. 
 
Stable trend in the attendance rates of Looked After Children and Young 
People from 86.91% in 2017/2018 to 86.59% in 2021/22. 
 
Improving trend in reducing the exclusion rates of Looked After 
Children and Young People from 174 temporary exclusions in 2017/2018 
to 55 in 2021/22. 
 
Stable trend in the attainment of Looked After Children and Young 
People in Curriculum for Excellence (CfE) (combined P1,4 and 7). 
 
Improving trend in the % of Looked After Children and Young People 
achieving Early Level Numeracy by the end of P1 from 61.54% in 
2017/18 to 77.27% in 2021/22. 
 
Improving trend in the % of Looked After Children and Young People 
achieving First Level Numeracy by the end of P4 from 30% in 2017/18 
to 50% in 2021/22.  
 
Stable trend in the % of Looked After Children and Young People 
achieving Second Level Numeracy by the end of P7 from 33.33% in 
2017/18 to 33.33% in 2021/22. 
 
Stable trend in the % of Looked After Children and Young People 
achieving Third Level or better Numeracy by the end of S3 from 56.25% 
in 2017/18 to 52.63% in 2021/22. 
 
Improving trend in the % of Looked After Children with 1 or more 
qualification at SCQF Level 3 from 81.82% in 2018/2019 to 88.24% in 
2021/2022. 
 
Stable trend in the % of Looked After Children with 1 or more 
qualification at SCQF level 4 from 72.73% in 2018/2019 to 70.59% in 
2021/2022. 
 
Decreasing trend in the % of Looked After Children achieving a literacy 
qualification at Level 4 from 72.73% in 2018/2019 to 64.71% in 
2021/2022. 
 
 

Page 123



   

 

48 
 

Increasing gap between % of Looked After Children leavers and the 
local authority average attaining a Level 4 qualification in literacy from 
19.4% in 2018/2019 and 29.44% in 2021/2022. 
 
Increasing gap between % of Looked After Children leavers and the 
local authority average attaining a Level 4 qualification in numeracy from 
20.26% in 2018/2019 to 36.75% in 2021/2022. 
 
Decreasing trend in the % of Looked After Children achieving a literacy 
qualification at Level 5 from 36.36% in 2018/2019 to 17.65% in 
2021/2022. 
 
Decreasing trend in the % of Looked After Children with 1 or more 
qualification at SCQF Level 5 or better from 40.91% in 2018/2019 to 
29.41% in 2021/2022. 
 
Decreasing trend in the % of Percentage of Looked After Children with 
1 or more qualification at SCQF Level 6 or better from 18.18% in 
2018/2019 to 11.76% in 2021/2022. 
 
Decreasing trend in the % of Looked After Children with 1 or more 
qualification at SCQF Level 7 or better from 4.55% in 2018/2019 to 0% 
in 2021/2022. 
 
Decreasing trend in the average tariff points achieved by Looked After 
Children and increasing gap between those who have experienced 
care and their peers. 
 

Stable trend in the % of school leavers who were Looked After away 
from home in positive initial destinations from 81.82% in 2018/2019 to 
80% in 2021/22. 
 
Decreasing trend in the % of school leavers who were Looked After at 
home in positive initial destinations from 63.64% in 2018/19 to 57.14% 
in 2021/2022. 
 
Increasing trend in the % of Looked After Children and Young People 
considered for a Coordinated Support Plan from 3% in 2019 to 49% in 
2023 in the city. 
 
Increasing trend in the staying on rates of those who are cared for 
compared to their peers for S4, S5 and S6 
 

S4/S5 Staying on Rates 

  2016/17 2022/23 

All 83.34% 87.02% 

All Looked After 44.8% 62.5% 

  

 

Page 124



   

 

49 
 

S5/S6 Staying on Rates 

  2016/17 2022/23 

All 65.54% 62.43% 

All Looked After 14.3% 30% 
 

Relationships    
We will commence annual reporting of the no. of children who were not 
placed with their brothers and sisters at the point of placement start date  
 
Decreasing trend in the no. of children placed with ACC Foster Carers 
from 15% (81) in 2018/19, to 14% (73) in 2022/23. 
 

Brothers and 
sisters 

 87% (467) of looked after children and young people are placed with 
siblings (2023 new measure) 
 
13% of looked after children and young people are separated from a 
sibling (2023 new measure) 
 
Stable trend in the no. of foster carers who take sibling placements 
 
Improving trend in the no. of Kinship Carers receiving multi-agency 
support  
 

Youth justice   Decreasing trend in the no. and % of young people in secure 
accommodation due to criminality (2023: 1/<1%) 
 
Increasing trend in the no. and % of complex young people in secure 
accommodation due to SCRA decisions 
 
Improving trend in the no. of offences linked to young people in local 
children’s homes (nil over reporting period) 
 
Improving trend in the % of young people charged with an offence  
 

Advocacy    
Increasing trend in the % of CEYP accessing independent advocacy 
 
Increasing trend in the no. of children and young people accessing 
Young Person’s Rights Service who are:  

• Care experienced (Jun 2023: 14) 

• Involved in child protection processes (Jun 2023, Legal Status = 
Promotion of welfare of children in need: 4) 

 

Moving on   Improving trend in the no. of CEYP working with a mentor from 0 in 
2019 to 52 meeting mentors (MCR) and 4 supported by the Pathways 
Co-Ordinator (MCR) in Jan 2024. 
 
Consistently high trend in the no. of care leavers with a pathway plan 
from 100% in 2018/19 to 100% in 2021/22.  
 
Increasing trend in the no. of young people in continuing care 

Page 125



   

 

50 
 

placements from 16 in 2018/19 to 31 in 2022/23. 
 
Stable trend in the provision of pathway plans.  92% of all young people 
eligible for a pathway plan have one (2023) 
  
Decreasing trend in the no. of youth homelessness applications from 
care leavers (0 in 2023) 
 
Increasing trend in the no. of young people not paying Council Tax up 
to 26 years due to Council decisions 
 

Physical 
intervention 

 Reducing trend in the no. of restraints used in local children’s homes (1 
in 2023) 
 
Reducing trend in the no. of restraints used in education 
 
CSW will implement guidance on recording of the use of restraint for all 
CEYP placed in out of authority placements and other community 
settings in 2024.  
 

Priority 2 – Whole Family Support 
 

Family 
Support  

 Stable trend in the no. of care experienced 2–5-year-olds attending 
ELC: 
 
2020/21 - 74 (31 – 3-5s and 49 Eligible 2’s) 
2021/22 - 70 (25 – 3-5s and 45 Eligible 2’s) 
2022/23 - 42 (19 – 3-5s and 29 Eligible 2’s) 
2023/24 - 26 (19 – 3-5s and 6 Eligible 2’s to date – January 2024) 
 
Stable trend in the no. of care experienced parents applying for Eligible 
2’s ELC place for their child(ren): 
2021/22 - 2 
2022/23 - 4 
2023/24 - 2 
 
Stable trend in the no. of % of care experienced parents engaging with 
the Family Nurse Partnership 
 
Improving trend in the no. of CEYP living with Foster Carers on 

continuing care arrangement from 8 in 2018 to 24 in 2023. 

Stable trend in the no. of families accessing the Fit Like Family 
Wellbeing Service (585 referrals in 2022 of these 335 (57%) new families 
accessed support; 599 in 2023 of these 378 (63%) new families 
accessed support.  
 
Stable trend in the number of families who identified that their 
circumstances/risks had improved as a result of support provided by 
Includem - 15 in 2022, 12 in 2023.  
 

Page 126



   

 

51 
 

Increasing trend in the number of kinship care breakdowns from 4 in 
2018/19 to 8 in 2022/23  
 
Increasing trend in the No. of kinship carers accessing multi-agency 
support.  
 
Stable trend in the recruitment of new foster carers with a steady 
average of around 10 per year (in 202312 new foster carers were 
approved from 6 households).  
 
Stable trend in the no. of kinship care assessments undertaken, the  
average for the preceding three years is 22 kinship assessments per 
year.  
 
Increasing trend in the no of families supported through the Links Hub. 
In Year 1 of Links Hub opening, 2022/23, 33 families were identified as 
in need of intensive support, and 45 families are currently being 
supported in Year 2, 2023/24.  Issues include poverty, domestic violence 
and alcohol and drug misuse. 
 

Peer and 
community 
support  

 Increasing trend  in the no. of families being support by Community 
Learning 
 
Increasing trend in the no. of families the Family Learning Team are 
engaging with from 236 in 2017/19 to 621 in 2022/23.  
 
Increasing trend in the impact of Family Learning.  In 2018/2019 88% 
of respondents reported an improvement in confidence and 90% 
improvement in skills & knowledge. In 2022/2023 91% of respondents 
reported an improvement in confidence and 98% an improvement in 
knowledge & skills. 
 
Stable trend in the no. of families being supported by Barnardo’s young 
carers service. (2022 - 144 young people/123 families; 2023 152 young 
people/131 families). 
 
The average length of engagement with the Young Carers Service is 
stable at 2-3 years.  
 
444 parents and families with complex needs were supported by 
organisations accessing grants from the Fairer Aberdeen Fund. 70% of 
families agreed risk had been reduced and 4 families no longer required 
Social Work support. 
 

Service 
integration  

 Evidence from multi-agency thematic audits undertaken highlight a 
positive and stable trend.  In 2022  63% of cases audited were 
evaluated as good or better in 2023 this was 80%. (Not directly 
comparable due to audit sample, focus and questions.)  
 
Increasing trend in the no. of shared services delivered (7 on-going 
collaborations with Children’s Social Work)  

Page 127



   

 

52 
 

Family 
therapies 
 

 Stable trend in the length of engagement with the Fit Like Family 
Wellbeing Service: less than 6 months 24%; 6-12 months 28%; 12-
18months 19% and 18+ months 18%.    
 
Stable trend in those moving on from the Fit Like Service.  In 2023 of 
the 113 families who moved on from the Fit Like Wellbeing Service 76% 
were supported by universal services; 12% were supported by CSW and 
11% were supported by CAMHS.   
 
Stable trend in the no. of families accessing support from Includem. In 
2022 Includem engaged with 42 young people, in 2023 this was 45.  
 
Stable trend in the average length of engagement Includem had with 
young people. 49 weeks in 2022, 43 weeks in 2023.  
 
 

Priority 3 – Supporting the Workforce 
 

Workforce 
values  

 Increasing trend in the % of the children’s workforce, chief officers, 
elected members and all corporate parents who complete Corporate 
Parenting training aligned to The Promise  
 

Trauma 
informed  

 Increasing trend in the % of children’s workforce has undertaken 
trauma awareness training (100% for ACC),  80% of frontline children’s 
social work practitioners have completed the 4 TURAS Trauma Skills 
modules 
 

On-going 
relationships  

 There are no local policies which prevent on-going relationships 

Workforce 
support  

 Increasing availability of staff wellbeing supports.  

Priority 4 - Planning 

Planning    
A reducing trend in the % of care experienced children with 3 or more 
placements from 6% in 2017/18 to 5% in 2021/22  
 
A reducing trend in the % of care experienced children with more than 
1 placement in the past year from 21.7% in 2017/18 to 18.8% in 2021/22. 
  

Investment   An increasing trend in the number of households experiencing poverty 
(1 in 5 children now live in poverty)  
 
An increasing trend in the number of families supported to claim all 
benefit entitlements  
 

Information 
sharing  

 A stable trend in the number of IRDs held from 417 in 2018/19 to 350 
in  2021/22. 
 
A declining trend in the % of IRD leading to Child Protection Planning 
Meetings from 64% in 2018/19 to 24% in 2022/23 

Page 128



   

 

53 
 

 
Evidence from multi-agency thematic audits undertaken highlight a 
positive and stable trend in relation to information sharing to protect 
children from harm. In 2022 80% of cases audited were evaluated as 
good or better in 2023 this was 75%. (Not directly comparable due to 
audit sample and focus.)  

Priority 5 – Building Capacity 

Legislation    

Children’s 
Hearing 
System 

  

Inspection 
and regulation  

  

Policy 
coherence  

 Improved alignment of national policy (local arrangements) 

Data mapping 
and collection 

 Improved access to data through D365 

Governance 
structures 

 Sound local governance arrangements 

 

The evaluation framework will be revisited when the second Promise Plan is published.  
Thereafter data trends will be reported annually through this Annual Report. 

 

Whole Family Wellbeing Funding  

The Whole Family Wellbeing Funding (WFWF) is a £500 million investment over the current 
Scottish Parliament (2022 to 2026). As part of Element 1, £32 million has been provided in each 
of the financial years 2022 to 2023 and 2023 to 2024 to support Children’s Services Planning 
Partnerships across Scotland to scale up and drive the delivery of whole family support services 
in their areas and build capacity for transformational change.  

In Aberdeen City we have invested our WFWF in a variety of areas to support our children, young 
people and their families to improve our holistic whole family wellbeing offer, including: 

 
Scaling up Youth and Family Support 
Scaling up our investment in Youth Workers, Family Learning and Financial Inclusion attached to 
schools to ensure that children, young people and families can access support more readily.   
 
Request for Assistance  
Developing the second version of our Request for Assistance system in order to create a single 
pathway for families to access support services.  
 
Co-Located Multidisciplinary Teams 
Piloting co-located multidisciplinary teams in Northfield and Lochside Academies to ensure more 
effective and holistic planning for the children and families most in need of our support.   
 
Supporting Kinship Carers  
Building the capacity of kinship carers to enable them to feel better supported and have their own 
needs recognised more effectively.  

Page 129

https://www.gov.scot/policies/girfec/whole-family-wellbeing-funding/


   

 

54 
 

 
Scottish Child Interview Model (SCIM) 

Rolling out SCIM in order to ensure that every child who has experienced abuse or neglect has 

access to a Bairn’s Hoose model of support including access to a trauma recovery service.  

 

Place2Be 

Supporting the development the Place2Be project, focussing on the mental health of children 

under the age of 10.  

 

Parent Support – Children with Disabilities  

Improving the peer and community support available for children with disabilities within Aberdeen 

City.   

 

This Annual report, and current discussions around the resourcing of our Bairn’s Hoose, are 

helping to inform our use of the fund.  

Page 130

https://www.gov.scot/publications/bairns-hoose-scottish-barnahus-vision-values-and-approach/


   

 

55 
 

 
The working arrangements of the Children’s Services Board 

The Children’s Services Board has invested time in considering how best to track progress 

against our ambitious plan.  This has led to the implementation of an agreed tracker to help 

improve transparent tracking of progress.  Taking this approach is helping to highlight emerging 

risks and issues.  This greater visibility is enabling the Board to take swifter action when required.  

These changes are helping to build a culture of collective responsibility and candour amongst 

Board members. 

 

In addition to providing leadership to our Sub Groups, the Children’s Services Board has 

collaborated to evaluate progress on a number of key policies.  This has included evaluating our 

approach to the development of our Plan to ensure that we are well prepared to undertake the 

next wholescale review in 2026, development of our Child Poverty Action Report in June 2023 

and our evaluation of progress towards delivery of Plan 21-24 in October 2023.  Our discipline of 

on-going evaluation on key policies is helping improve our collective understanding of the 

challenges facing our children and families and helping us take a more holistic and agile 

approach.  As we move forward, all of our annual reports will be built into the Children’s Services 

Plan Annual Report so that the connections across different policies are fully taken into account. 

The quality of our evaluation is improving.  The finalisation of a robust evaluation framework 

aligned to The Promise will help us assess the strength of all three tiers of our Tiered Intervention 

Framework and help us facilitate the shift of resources towards preventative and early 

intervention.  The framework will be finalised when the second national Promise Plan and 

associated evaluation framework are published in 2024.  We continue to benefit from close 

collaboration with our local Health Determinates Research Collaborative (HDRC) and have 

commissioned a long term study on the impact of expanded ELC provision to inform next steps in 

our developing model of Family Support.  The HDRC have also committed to working in 

collaboration with the University of Edinburgh to help us evaluate the impact of our local Bairn’s 

Hoose. 

The Board has benefited from closer working with the Child Protection Committee (CPC) this 

year and now works in collaboration to deliver shared audits and quality assurance activity.  This 

has seen the Board review the effectiveness of arrangements to support children and young 

people who have experienced harmful sexual behaviour and to review the circumstances which 

trigger a referral to services under the category of physical abuse.  The Board also collaborated 

with the CPC to plan delivery of our Bairns Hoose as part of a national pathfinder.  We look 

forward to working with the national Bairns Hoose team over the coming year as the capital 

works get underway and the team starts to be established. 

HOW WELL HAS THE CHILDREN’S 

SERVICES BOARD WORKED TO 

HELP REALISE IMPROVED 

OUTCOMES FOR CHILDREN AND 

FAMILIES OVER THE LAST YEAR? 

EVALUATING THE IMPACT OF THE 

CHILDREN’S SERVICES BOARD 

What do we need to change in the 

second year of the Plan? 

Page 131

http://councilcommittees/documents/s146285/Child%20Poverty%20Action%20Report%20v5%20Final.pdf
http://councilcommittees/documents/s151130/Progress%20towards%20delivering%20The%20Promise%20Plan%2021.pdf


   

 

56 
 

A refreshed Request for Assistance (RfA) process has been developed and will soon be delivered 

to help us monitor demand and the impact of services in real time.  This second version of the 

system will enable us to look at how effectively different interventions support the mitigation of 

risk and help inform our future commissioning.   

As well as commissioning Children 1st to deliver a Bairns Hoose Trauma Recovery Service 

aligned to our Fit Like Hubs, we have recommissioned Family Support Services that fully embed 

the 10 principles of Family Support outlined in The Promise.  We hope that our Bairns Hoose will 

provide opportunities to work regionally and with the Island Local Authorities. 

We recognise that there is more to do to improve the quality of data collection, matching and 

processing to enable more accurate and timely analysis of needs by group and at community 

level.  A recent successful bid to the Child Poverty Action fund is helping us move this work 

forward further. 

Those represented on the Board continue to support a high proportion of displaced children and 

young people including those fleeing conflict and unaccompanied asylum seeking children.  After 

Glasgow, the city welcomes the highest proportion of displaced people and services continue to 

respond with agility although this has placed considerable pressure on local services.  Mitigating 

the risk to service provision will require our on-going attention. 

The Board successfully implemented updated GIRFEC Operational Guidance over the reporting 

period.  Unfortunately there was no appetite to develop a more regional approach to support 

colleagues working across the health board.  Work is ongoing to secure greater alignment 

between GIRFEC and GIRFE for those who have a disability but this work requires to be 

accelerated.  Revisions have been proposed to our agreed Child’s Planning format based on 

feedback from children and young people and this feedback will be retained as we await an 

updated national position. 

Over the course of the year, the impact of poverty on children and families has become more 

evident.  The Children’s Services Board has agreed content for a child poverty training course.  

SHMU has been commissioned to develop the training film by using local voices and case 

studies.  Taking this approach will ensure that our workforce access consistent messaging and 

understanding of the issues facing the families we collectively serve. 

Considerable time has been invested by our Sub groups in the development of Improvement 

Project Charters with examples of on-going work shown in the appendices.  Taking this approach 

has supported new groups of staff from across the Community Planning Partnership to join forces 

on shared projects aligned with our Plan.  The progress of each charter is routinely reported to 

the Community Planning Aberdeen Board.  A total of 34 Improvement Projects have been agreed 

and all are now making good progress. 

 

Best Start in life Group Projects 

The focus this year has been on supporting infants and their families in a number of key areas of 

early health, including working with staff throughout the partnership to help build their confidence 

in recognising early signs of neglect and poverty to ensure we can support the needs of those 

children and their families at the earliest possible opportunity. As a result, the Group has worked 

closely with partners such as Women’s Aid and Alcohol and Drugs Action to offer opportunities to 

support families who may otherwise have been referred to Children’s Social Work.     

 

Page 132



   

 

57 
 

Over the course of the year we have been working to expand our Peep offer by establishing a 

number of new groups including at Tullos, Muirfield and Greyhope among others and have also 

worked with Childsmile, ELC settings and Aberdeen Health and Social Care Partnership to 

promote whole family dental health support at these sessions. Links with local dental practices 

have been strengthened to further promote dental health to children and families.  

 

The Group has made significant progress in establishing a ‘Cash First’ approach to offering 

financial support to those who need it as well as improved emergency access to infant formula in 

collaboration with Cfine and Aberneccesities.  This is showing important signs of success to date 

with all those referred currently receiving full support. Further details of this work can be found in 

the case studies in the appendices  

 

Mental Health and Wellbeing Group Projects 

The Mental Health and Wellbeing Collaborative Subgroup have focused this year on developing 

a number of projects tackling various aspects of support for Children and Young People.   

 

The Group is working to reduce demand on CAMHS by improving the way we refer to the 

service.  This has involved raising awareness among staff across the partnership of the various 

tier 2 supports available as well as working to expand the Tier 2 offer of support.  We now plan to 

refine the referral process to make sure that children and young people can be referred to the 

right service and so that once they have, they can receive that service as soon as possible. 

 

The group continues to prioritise the mental health and health care needs of Care Experienced 

young people and are working to make sure that 100% of children who leave care receive mental 

health support within 4 weeks of being referred.   

 

In our communities, particularly in our priority areas, we are working with our children and young 

people to make them feel safe in their communities and we are now seeing an increase in 

confidence reported by young people.  This work is on-going. 

 

Corporate Parenting Sub Group 

The Corporate Parenting Subgroup continues to lead our focus on supporting our Care 

Experienced Children, Young People and their Families. Driven through our Aberdeen City 

Corporate Parenting Plan and providing a leading role in ensuring our Partnership Keeps the 

Promise. The improvement projects being led by the Group reflect this focus. 

 

The Group are working to maximise the number of our eligible Care Experienced young people 

receiving multiagency/throughcare support, and linking to the related project from the Mental 

Health and Wellbeing Collaborative, ensuring that all Care Leavers are offered a comprehensive 

health needs assessment.  

 

In to 2023 we have seen a 6% rise in the number of young people receiving multiagency/ 

throughcare support with good indications that this has further increased into 2024.  We have 

significant success in supporting our Kinship Carers. Our programme of support has expanded 

significantly, with a 900% increase in the number of partners offering supports and we have 

doubled the number of carers we now support. Further information can be found in the case 

studies below.     

Page 133



   

 

58 
 

 

Working upstream we also have projects focussing on supporting Care Experienced young 

people to be confident parents and providing improved holistic whole family support to reduce the 

number of children entering the care system.   

 

The Group are considering how best to implement the recommendations for Corporate Parents 

from the Secure Care Pathways report: 

➢ A clear plan for the provision of consistent mental and emotional health support for 
young people in and on the edges of secure care  

➢ Health boards should lead work with other corporate parents to ensure that young 
people receive consistent support to address emotional distress including self-harm 
and suicide risks 

➢ Work with community-based services and secure care providers to ensure the 
suitable provision of substance misuse support for young people in and on the 
edges of secure care 

➢ Ensure that young people who have left secure care don't experience a drop off in 
support and that all relevant multi-agency partners are involved in the planning and 
delivery of support at this stage 

 

Attainment and Transitions to Adulthood Sub Group 

This subgroup ensures that we take a partnership approach to supporting our children and young 

people to have the best possible educational experience and improve post school opportunities 

into further/higher education, employment and training.  

 

This year we have worked to expand our curriculum offer through the delivery of ABZ Campus 

which made a further 37 courses available to our young people.  We have responded positively 

to future growth sectors, such as digital, by increasing the number of pupils undertaking digital 

and technology courses.  A similar approach has been taken to volume sectors, such as 

healthcare, with increased opportunities for young people to secure a qualification.   On-going 

work on ABZ campus has increased the rate of those completing National Progression 

Awards/Foundation Apprenticeships and HNC courses.  More information can be found in the 

appendices. 

The group works closely with colleagues in the ASN/Disabilities and Corporate Parenting 

Subgroups to support our more vulnerable children and young people to achieve. For instance 

introducing  and embedding a Pathways Advocate into each secondary school to support those 

who are care experienced and creating a consistent template for monitoring, tracking and 

supporting care experienced or vulnerable young people.  

The Group are in the process of testing a training tool to support staff to recognise and feel 

confident when responding to signs of harm in our children, young people and their families. 

  

Youth Justice Sub Group 

The Youth Justice Subgroup supports those young people experiencing or at risk of entering the 

justice system. The Group are keenly aware that this cohort of young people will have a number 

of needs and may have been impacted upon by adverse childhood experiences.  As a result, 

improvement projects take a trauma informed approach. 

Page 134



   

 

59 
 

 

This year the group has been working closely with partners to provide comprehensive trauma 

training, with a view to destigmatising relationships between young people and key agencies 

such as Police and Children Social Work.   

Another key focus has been early work to establish youth clubs and working in communities to 

reduce instances of Anti-Social behaviour.  As of December 2023 there has been a 50% 

reduction in recorded instances of ASB. 

The number of Looked After and Accommodated Children cautioned and charged with an offence 

has now reduced to 0.  We are now seeking to expand this success to the wider care 

experienced cohort as well as other young people at risk of entering the justice system by 

supporting our police and community services to take a more trauma informed approach to 

cautioning and charging young people; expanding opportunity to divert them from prosecution 

and ensuring that their community support needs can be met.  

 

Additional Support needs and disabilities Sub Group 

The ASN & Disabilities Subgroup projects reflect our need to give the best possible opportunities 

for our young people with additional support needs and disabilities to achieve positive outcomes.   

 

A number of partnership improvement projects have been progressed to provide community, peer 

and educational support for this cohort in order to help ensure that children and young people 

with ASN remain in full time education and are well supported when transitioning into post school 

education employment and training. 

This year we have successfully piloted a  Neurodevelopmental Pathway model aimed at 

increasing the number of families of children with a neurodevelopmental concern or awaiting 

diagnosis accessing support prior to diagnosis. The pilot has shown a promising increase in the 

number of families accessing support, and we are now looking to expand this offer. 

We have also been successfully supporting our young carers, We have increased the total 

number of registered young carers accessing support by 14% since April 2023 from 116 -135, 

more information about this particular project can be found in our case studies section below.  

This Group is currently without a formal Chair and work is on-going to address this. 

  

What next for the Children’s Services Board? 

Reviewing our progress has confirmed the suitability of the Children’s Services Plan 2023-2026.  

As a result,  we propose to continue to deliver on our agreed Plan for 2023-26 but to also invest 

our time and energy in some additional areas: 

• Develop further our use of data to be able to access more granular data at 
community/group level to enable a more bespoke response based on community need.  
There will be a need for this work to be closely aligned to Locality Plans as we move 
forwards.  Time will also be invested in more fully understanding and tracking the 
outcomes for those living in SIMD1. 
 

Page 135



   

 

60 
 

• Linked to the first, is the need to review how services engage with our most vulnerable in 
SIMD1 given the clear evidence that current arrangements are not realising improved 
outcomes.  Taking an approach that promotes human rights and is family led will be 
important. 
 

• There is a need to look at how to prevent childhood obesity through a coordinated 
preventative strategy that is not limited to children 
 

• Respond positively to the Statutory Guidance on the UNCRC when published. 
 

• Implement the recommendations for Corporate Parents from the Secure Care Pathways 
report: 

➢ A clear plan for the provision of consistent mental and emotional health support for 
young people in and on the edges of secure care  

➢ Health boards should lead work with other corporate parents to ensure that young 
people receive consistent support to address emotional distress including self-harm 
and suicide risks 

➢ Work with community-based services and secure care providers to ensure the 
suitable provision of substance misuse support for young people in and on the 
edges of secure care 

➢ Ensure that young people who have left secure care don't experience a drop off in 
support and that all relevant multi-agency partners are involved in the planning and 
delivery of support at this stage 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 136



   

 

61 
 

Appendix 1.  Financial Support to Families in Need: Infant Feeding in a Crisis  

 

What are we trying to achieve? 

To create a universal Early Years Financial Inclusion 

Pathway (EYFIP) to prevent pregnant women and 

families with children under 5 years falling into 

financial crisis 

And to create a targeted Infant Feeding in a Crisis 

Pathway (IFCP) to ensure that mothers and families 

with children aged under 5 years at risk of food 

insecurity, have access to first stage formula and 

income maximisation support  

How are we doing this? 

We are testing the pathway with priority 

neighbourhoods health professionals and CFINE 

initially with the potential to expand throughout other 

charity food providers. 

• Adapt the “Pathways to Support” live 

document to include an infant feeding early 

years section where urgent first stage formula 

support, nutritional support and early years 

income maximisation can be added 

• Establish a pathway where health 

professionals & emergency food providers can 

access a cash first approach  

• for urgent first stage formula for the baby, 

nutritional support for the whole family and 

income maximisation support 

• Develop a reporting system that collates 

amount of referrals and repeat referrals for 

emergency first stage formula and nutritional 

support 

 

 

What have we achieved? 

Working in partnership with CFine & their SAFE team to 

support families, through our Early Years Financial 

Inclusion Pathway we have: 

• Developed a universal pathway that asks all 

pregnant women and families if they require 

financial health checks. 

 

• Ensured a feedback loop to the HCPs from the 

Service Provider are supporting the family 

 

And for the Infant Feeding in a Crisis Pathway we have: 

• Built on a pathway being tested in 

Aberdeenshire, developing an Aberdeen City 

specific IFC Pathway. 

 

• We have created a multiagency team to work 

on the pathway and test the Cash-First 

Approach 

 

• IFCP training has been provided to Aberdeen 

City based Family Nurses. Who began testing 

the pathway in November  

What impact have we had? 

The project is still in its early stages of development 

but our early testing has already began to see 

referrals to CFine through our testing with the Family 

Nurse Partnership, full support being given to those 

who have been referred   

 

What do we plan to do next?  

• We will continue to meet regularly as a multi-

agency working group to monitor both 

pathways, continuing to collect data and 

feedback on the referral process and number 

of families that have benefited   

 

• We will continue to test the  IFCP for four 

months with Family Nurse Partnership 

 

• In early 2024 we will expand IFCP to Health 

Visitors  

 

• We intend to further expand this to 

Midwifery services by Spring/summer 2024 

 

• We will continue ongoing awareness 

raising/training on the pathways with 

relevant staff.  To ensure both staff and 

families potentially in need of support are 

better aware of the offer  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 137



   

 

62 
 

Appendix 2.  Supporting Our Kinship Carers: Improving our Partnership Offer  
 

What are we trying to achieve? 

To ensure that we can provide holistic family support 

tailored to the needs of our are Kinship Carers we aim 

to increase the number of partners supporting kinship 

carers by 100% Conscious that their diversity of need 

cannot be provided by social work alone, this will help 

both expand the offer and number of Kinship Carers 

that can be supported  

 

How are we doing this? 

Through our multi agency project we have: 

• Established a number of information events 

for Kinship Carers. Inviting carers and our 

Partners to connect and provide details of 

services and supports available to them. 

 

• Developed a comprehensive directory of 

supports for those seeking to refer Kinship 

Carers. Our most current guidance can be 

found here  

 

• Improved and expanded knowledge of our 

referral processes  

 

• Employing a Community Development Worker 

to support and promote kinship support within 

Family Learning, Fit Like Hubs and wider 

agencies pertinent to kinship family support. 

 

What have we achieved? 

• To date the project has achieved a 900% 

increase in the number of partners supporting 

Kinship Carers. 

 

• We have more than doubled  the number of 

Kinship Carers receiving specific support an 

89% from 83- 169 supported  

 

 

We have formalised links now made with a 

number of key support agencies including:  

• CAHMS;  

• Family Learning; 

• Kinship Blether;  

• Fit Like Hubs; 

• Families Outside;  

• Be-friend A Child;  

• Grec;  

• Financial Inclusion Team;  

• Housing Team;  

• Adoption Team. 

 

83

157 161 163
171 169

50

100

150

200

2022 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23

Number of carers receiving specific support 

What impact have we had?  

Feedback from our Kinship Carers and Partners has 

been very positive.  They have highlighted a number of 

areas where they feel the project has made a key 

difference including:  

The increased support and links with different agencies 

The improved communication about changes affecting 

them  

The opportunity to capture the positive momentum  

The improved recognition of role of Kinship Carers 

among partners 

Increased participation from partners in the provision 

of services and supports  

 

 

 

 

 

What do we plan to do next?  

We will review our support directory to ensure 
that we have clear referral pathways highlighted 

Continue to link with partners to extend our offer  

Planning further engagement events for Kinship 
Carers   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 138

https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/12/Kinship-Support-Guide.pdf


   

 

63 
 

Appendix 3.  Breadth of Courses: Expanding our Curricular Offer 

What are we trying to achieve? 

To increase by 10% the rate of completion of National 

Progression Awards (NPA)/Foundation Apprenticeships 

(FA)/Higher National Certificate (HNC) courses 

available to young people across the city by 2026, by 

increasing the breaths and quality of courses available 

to our Senior Phase Secondary pupils.  

How are we doing this? 

• By developing and introduce Phase 1 of 

ABZ Campus, increasing the number of 

collectively offered courses (including NPA, 

FA and HNC) compared to the City Campus 

offer in 2022-23 to young people in 

Aberdeen City. 

 

• Creating a termly professional learning 

offer for staff in curriculum development 

to encourage a continuation in the 

broadening of pathway options for young 

people in Aberdeen City. 

 

• Developing  and offer programme of 

support (informed by young people) 

(including induction) for young people 

taking ABZ Campus courses that will 

enhance their experience and reduce 

withdrawals. 

 

 

What have we achieved? 

In Academic Year 2023/24  to date, there have been 65 
participants in Curriculum Development Sessions  
 
Between 2020/21 and 2023/24 the number of 
completions of Level 7 HNC courses has increased from 
0 -17 
 
The number of completion of foundation 
apprenticeships has increased from 124 -208 between 
2022/23 and 2023/24 
 
The total number of completions of NPA/SCQF Courses 
is at its highest in the 4 years recorded with a 53% 
increase from 2022 -2023  

 
No. Completions of NPA/SCQF Courses 

 

700

900

1100

1300

1500

1700

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

What impact have we had? 

Training Sessions on Timetabling, Pathway and 

Curriculum Development have  had very positive  

feedback with a significant proportion of participants 

indicating that the training had been ‘invaluable in 

helping my thinking’ 

 

What do we plan to do next?  

•  Attainment reviews have taken place in 

schools to identify where courses offered 

could be widened for session 24/25 

 

• ABZ Campus will continue to be delivered 

across multiple sites and a range of different 

SCQF courses. 

 

• Further training sessions will be undertaken  

 

• Feedback from Focus Groups on views of the 

ABZ campus will be collected, analysed and 

used to inform changes to the curriculum 

offer   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 139



   

 

64 
 

What are we trying to achieve? 

We aim to decrease the number of 13 to 15 year olds 

who have reported using substances in Aberdeen to 

below the national average by 2023, through 

curriculum delivery and a whole population approach.  

 

How are we doing this? 

• Developing a new procedure for reporting 
substance use incidences in school, 
streamlining and improving the processes for 
accessing information, support and referral   
 

• Development of a Programme of Substance 
Use Resources to ensure that all children and 
young people are offered consistent support 
and appropriate interventions in relation to 
their understanding of and use of substances 

 

• Pilot test event and programme 2023 in 
conjunction with the Daniel Spargo Mabbs 
foundation on substance use prevention and 
harm reduction for pupils 

 

• Deliver a Substance awareness workshop for 
parents/carers of P5-S6 pupils 

 

 

 

What have we achieved? 

There has been a 5% decrease from 28% to 23% of 13-

15year having had a drink and a 0.9% decrease from 

4.6% to 3.7% of 13-15year old who have tried drugs 

between academic years 21/22 and 22/23. When 

compared to the closest available national data, this 

shows that Aberdeen is 5.9% lower  than the national 

average.  

There was a 24% reduction (31 to 25) in 2022 for 

requests for assistance for children and young people 

with factors relating to substance misuse. 

Increased access to counselling for substance use has 

seen a rise of 29% in 2022 compared to 2021  and by 

200% when comparing Jan-June 2023 and Jan-June. 

Positive impact was also seen from the substance 

awareness workshop for parents/carers. 151 parents 

expressed interest in attending the workshop held in 

September 2023, although only 59 attended in live time. 

In the feedback survey 88% of attendees stated they 

were somewhat or extremely confident in discussing 

substance use with their child after attending the event 

One Parent commented : ‘Excellent workshop. Even as a 

former youth worker I feel it was such a valuable 

workshop to refresh my memory and as a reminder to 

remain vigilant. We like to think it will never be our 

children but I think being informed can only be a good 

thing either way in case the worse happens’ 

What impact have we had?  

Feedback on the new reporting procedure and 

resources has been very positive:  

‘We found the DUST tool really helpful in determining 

the threshold for referral and sourcing the right 

support…’ 

What do we plan to do next?  

• The substances use guidance for schools will 

be revised every 3 years to ensure it is 

providing the best support for schools.  

• Quality improvement visits by education 

officers will continue to monitor the impact 

of the curriculum. 

• Data for the overall aim, as well as the 

requests for assistance will continue to 

collected on annual basis and reported to the 

Alcohol and Drugs Partnership. 

• The ongoing test of the year-long education 

programme on substance use prevention and 

harm reduction in three schools will be 

reviewed at the end of the year and impact 

reported on accordingly. 

Whilst we are comfortable that improvement will 

continue there is a proposal for more targeted 

improvement activity to reduce cannabis and 

polydrug use in 13-15 years olds within the LOIP 

being refreshed for 2024. 

 

Appendix 4.  Reducing Alcohol and Substance Use: Supporting our Curriculum  

 

P
age 140



   

 

65 
 

Appendix 5.  Registered Young Carers: Providing Improved Support   

 

What are we trying to achieve? 

Young carers are one of the biggest single groups of 

children in need. Estimates suggest that in a city the 

size of Aberdeen, there may be up to 2,000 children 

and young people aged between 5 to 18 years who 

undertake caring responsibilities. We aim to increase 

by 20% the number of registered young carers 

accessing support from the Young Carers service by 

2025 

How are we doing this? 

• Developing a direct referral route from key 
agencies such as CAMHS/ADA/Charlies 
House/Roxburgh House, Fit Like Hub   

• Co-design with young carers information 
provided at drop-in sessions, PSE classes and 
assemblies for young people to raise their 
awareness for young carers to self-refer 

• Co-design/ co-deliver with young carers and  
communities/third and private sector groups a 
wider range of choice/opportunities that meet 
our young carers interests 

• Developing a promotional campaign to raise 

awareness of the opportunity to 

volunteer/befriend young carers 

• Developing a directory of partnership/ 

community-based groups/support (e.g. 1-1 

sessions), to be promoted to young carers to 

increase the choice of support available 

 

 

What have we achieved? 

The total number of registered young carers accessing 

support has increased by 14% since April 2023 from 116 

-135   

 

The number of you carers receiving  group based support 

has increased from 75 – 98 

 

No. Young Carers Receiving Support  

 

80 staff have now been trained and feel confident that 

they are fully aware of the young carers support referral 

process  

We have seen a significant increase of 7– 71  referrals 

from education   

 

 

 

 

 

30

50

70

90

110

Group Individual

What impact have we had?  

Feedback from young carers, families and staff:  

“[They] had a fantastic time on the residential trip 

and it was good for her confidence. Barnardos are the 

best!” 

“Her confidence within young carers has grown so 

much and she's really quite involved now and has 

made some really good friends. It's been so nice 

seeing her with the groups because outside of young 

carers she struggles so much.” 

“As a former young carer [I found the training] really 

beneficial for understanding what makes someone a 

young carer and the different areas that are affected 

(that I experienced and didn’t even realise are likely 

due to being a former young carer), I will 100% be 

sharing this information with others AND the youths 

we work with. Thank you so much!” 

What do we plan to do next?  

Working in partnership with SHMU radio and our 

young carers to write, develop and deliver a short 

film to raise awareness of young carers/ their needs 

and challenges 

Providing further multi agency training and 

awareness raising with staff, children and young 

people  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 141



   

 

66 
 

What are we trying to achieve? 

Aberdeen City Council Education team have partnered 

with a network of professionals to develop a Physical 

Education, Physical Activity and Sport (PEPAS) team to 

increase opportunities for children and young people 

to engage in physical activity and sport. 

Representatives from Sport Aberdeen, Aberdeen 

Football Club Community Trust (AFCCT), Russel 

Anderson Development School (RADS), Grampian 

Disability Trust, Sport Scotland and Club Scotland were 

keen to support this area of development.  

How are we doing this? 

Through our multi agency project we have: 

• Developed and supported priority areas for the 

city across PEPAS, such as positive mental 

health and outdoor activity  

• Utilised city-wide Data to inform decisions, 

including full engagement with all stakeholders 

• Inputted into discussions on future PE Delivery 

/ Staffing Structure in Aberdeen (linking PE 

delivery across Primary and Secondary) 

• Developed and supported stronger links 

between PE and community sport  

• Engaged with partner organisations / National 

Governing Bodies to further the PEPAS agenda     

 

 

 

 

 

What have we achieved? 

All  of our children and young people now have access 

to free physical activity increasing the number of 

schools offering this from 82% to 100%  

All schools now have Active Schools Assistants one day 

per week increasing physical activity throughout break 

times, to work with staff, increasing confidence of 

engagement in physical activity and supporting targeted 

groups of children, using physical activity to improve 

outcomes, including mental health and wellbeing. 

 

 

Our Extracurricular programme now has:  

• 180 clubs city wide involved  

• Over 250 volunteers delivering the activities  

• Over 2,500 children participating 

 

 

 

What do we plan to do next?  

Increase the percentage of young people 

participating in physical activity outwith the 

curriculum from 22% in 2022 to 35% in 2026.  

Increase the range of accessible options for 

children and young people with sensory and 

physical impairments.  

Ensure a more equal distribution of gender 

participation in physical activity.  

Ensure that priority is given to meeting the 

physical wellbeing needs of CEYP in a manner 

compliant with the United Nations Convention 

on the Rights of the Child (Incorporation) 

(Scotland) Bill (as enacted).  

Develop a culture of body positivity/ positive 

self-esteem through PEPAS opportunities  

Develop an inclusive and strategic approach to 

Active Travel 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 6. Improving Health and Wellbeing : Increasing Opportunity for Physical Activity   

 

P
age 142



   

 

67 
 

Our LOIP Projects 

Stretch Outcome 3: 95% of all children will reach their expected developmental milestones 
by their 27-30 month review by 2026 

Reduce by 5% the no. of children aged 0-4 who are referred to Children’s Social Work as a result 
of neglect arising from parental mental health, addiction and domestic abuse 2026. 

Increase by 40% the number of Peep programmes delivered by multi-agency partners by 2025. 

100% of urgent requests for first stage infant formula and nutritional support for pre-school 
children are met by 2024. 

Increase by 10% the no. of parents with children under 5 who are completing a full benefits check 
by 2024. 

Improve dental health at primary 1 to the national average by reducing the levels of dental health 
in areas of deprivation to 50% by 2025. 

Stretch Outcome 4: 90% of children and young people report they feel listened to all of the 
time by 2026 

Reduce demand on Tier 3 services by 5% by 2026. 

Reduce waiting time for interventions starting, by each tier 2/3 service by 5% by 2026. 

100% of children leaving care are referred to services that can meet assessed mental health 
needs within 4 weeks of the health assessment being completed by 2024. 

Increase by 5% the number of S1-S6 pupils who report that they feel confident by 2025. 

Increase by 10% the % of children living in areas of deprivation who feel safe in their communities 
by 2025. 

Stretch Outcome 5: By meeting the health and emotional wellbeing needs of our care 
experienced children and young people they will have the same levels of attainment in 
education and positive destinations as their peers by 2026 

Reduce by 5% the number of children entering the care system by 2024. 

100% of children and young people leaving care are offered a health assessment to identify gaps 
in their health provision and needs by 2024. 

Increase the number of care experienced young people by 10% receiving multiagency 
throughcare/aftercare support by 2024. 

80% of care experienced parents will report that they believed they were sufficiently prepared for 
parenthood by 2026. 

80% of the identified multi-agency workforce successfully complete Corporate Parenting training 
aligned to the Promise by 2025. 

Stretch Outcome 6: 95% of all our children, including those living in our priority 
neighbourhoods (Quintiles 1 & 2), will sustain a positive destination upon leaving school 
by 2026 

75% of identified multi-agency staff reporting confidence in identifying and taking action on harm 
by 2026.   

Increase to 3 the delivery of co-located and delivered services by health and education by 2024. 

Increase by 10% the rate of completion of NPA/FA/HNC courses available to young people across 
the city by June 2024. 

Increase the % of learners entering a positive and sustained destination to be ahead of the Virtual 
Comparator for all groups by 2025. 

Increase by 20% the number of young people completing courses aligned to support the digital 
and tech sector by 2026. 

Increase to 50 the no. of people completing more integrated health and care courses by 2025. 

Stretch Outcome 7: 83.5% fewer young people (under 18) charged with an offence by 2026. 

Reduce by 20% the number of care experienced young people charged with an offence by 2025. 

Page 143

https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/4.1-Access-to-emergency-formula-and-nutritional-support-.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/4.1-Access-to-emergency-formula-and-nutritional-support-.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/4.2-Early-Years-Income-maximisation-030523.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/08/4.3-Peep-Project-Charter.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/08/4.3-Peep-Project-Charter.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/08/4.4-Dental-Health-Project-Charter.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/08/4.4-Dental-Health-Project-Charter.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/4.5-Early-Intervention-for-Parenting-and-Family-Support-Draft-Charter.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/4.5-Early-Intervention-for-Parenting-and-Family-Support-Draft-Charter.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/5.5-Reducing-demand-on-Tier-3-Mental-Health-Services-Draft-Charter.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/5.4-Reducing-Waiting-Times-for-Teir-2-and-3-Services-Draft-Charter.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/5.1-SO5-health-assessments-mental-health-Draft.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/5.1-SO5-health-assessments-mental-health-Draft.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/08/5.2-CYP-Confidence-Project-Charter.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/08/5.3-CYP-Feeling-Safe-Project-Charter.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/08/5.3-CYP-Feeling-Safe-Project-Charter.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/08/6.5-Balance-of-Care-Project-Charter.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/6.2-health-assessments-Draft.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/6.2-health-assessments-Draft.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/6.1-CEYP-Receiving-Multi-agency-support-.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/6.1-CEYP-Receiving-Multi-agency-support-.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/6.6-Supporting-Care-Experienced-Young-Parents-Draft-Project-Charter.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/6.6-Supporting-Care-Experienced-Young-Parents-Draft-Project-Charter.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/08/6.4-Cor-Par-Training-Project-Charter.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/08/6.4-Cor-Par-Training-Project-Charter.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/7.5-Identifying-Taking-Action-on-Harm-Draft-Charter.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/7.5-Identifying-Taking-Action-on-Harm-Draft-Charter.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/7.2-Co-located-delivery.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/7.3-Breadth-of-Courses-.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/7.3-Breadth-of-Courses-.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/05/7.1-Positive-Destinations-.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/05/7.1-Positive-Destinations-.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/7.6-Digital-Sector-Courses-Draft-Charter.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/7.6-Digital-Sector-Courses-Draft-Charter.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/08/7.4-Integrated-Care-Courses-Project-Charter.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/8.5-Reduce-CEYP-CC-Draft-Charter.pdf


   

 

68 
 

Reduce by 15% the number of care experienced young people reported missing from Children’s 
homes to Police Scotland by 2024. 

90% of 16/17 year olds appearing at Sherriff Court in relation to Lord Advocate’s guidance will 
have had an assessment of their community support needs by 2025. 

Increase by 5% the no. of 16/17 year olds who are diverted from prosecution by 2025. 

Reduce by 15% the number of instances of youth anti-social behaviour calls to Police Scotland by 
2025.   

Stretch Outcome 8: 100% of our children with Additional Support Needs/ Disabilities will 
experience a positive destination by 2026. 

Increase by 10%, the percentage of children and young people with additional support needs 
(ASN) and/or a disability accessing full time education by 2026. 

Increase by 5%, the percentage of young people with additional support needs/disability entering 
a positive destination by 2025. 

Increase by 20% the number of registered young carers accessing support from the Young Carers 
service by 2025. 

By 2025, 90% of families with children with an additional support need or disability will indicate 
that they have access to peer and community support that meets their needs. 

90% of identified multi-agency staff working with children and young people with disabilities will 
report confidence in identifying and taking action on how harm presents in children with additional 
support needs/disabilities by 2026. 

Increase by 20% the number of families of children with autism or awaiting diagnosis accessing 
support prior to diagnosis and reduce the interval between referral and diagnosis by 2024. 

 
 

 
  

Page 144

https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/8.2-Reduce-CEYP-MP-.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/8.2-Reduce-CEYP-MP-.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/08/8.3-16-and17-Year-Olds-Court-CNA-Project-Charter.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/08/8.3-16-and17-Year-Olds-Court-CNA-Project-Charter.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/08/8.4-1617-Year-Olds-Diverted-From-Prosecution-Project-Charter.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/05/8.1-ASB-Revised-.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/05/8.1-ASB-Revised-.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/9.5-CYP-with-ASN-Disabilities-Accessing-Fulltime-Education-Draft-Charter-1.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/9.5-CYP-with-ASN-Disabilities-Accessing-Fulltime-Education-Draft-Charter-1.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/08/9.3-Disabilities-Destination-Project-Charter.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/08/9.3-Disabilities-Destination-Project-Charter.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/9.1-young-carers-020523.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/9.1-young-carers-020523.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/08/9.4-Children-With-Disabilities-Project-Charter.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/08/9.4-Children-With-Disabilities-Project-Charter.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/11/9.6-Identifying-Taking-Action-on-Harm-Disabilities-and-ASN-Draft-Charter-Updated.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/11/9.6-Identifying-Taking-Action-on-Harm-Disabilities-and-ASN-Draft-Charter-Updated.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/11/9.6-Identifying-Taking-Action-on-Harm-Disabilities-and-ASN-Draft-Charter-Updated.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/9.2-Neurodevelopmental-Pathway-v2.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/9.2-Neurodevelopmental-Pathway-v2.pdf


   

 

69 
 

 

Strategic Stretch Outcomes 

Increase the 
number of 0-5s 
who meet 
developmental 
milestones by 2026 

Improve the mental 
health and wellbeing 
of children and 
families by 2026 

Improve the 
attainment, health 
and wellbeing and 
positive destinations 
of our care 
experienced by 2026 

Improve the 
attainment and 
positive destinations 
of our children and 
young people by 
2026 

Reduce the 
number of young 
people charged 
with an SCRA by 
2026 

Increase the 
number of children 
with ASN or 
disability who 
secure a positive 
destination by 2026 

Strategic Priorities 

➢ Improve the 
health outcomes 
of expectant and 
new mothers 

➢ Improve uptake 
of benefits 

➢ Improve access 
to emergency 
formula and food 
for infants 

➢ Address early 
speech and 
language needs  

➢ Increase the 
uptake of 
immunisations 

➢ Improve the 
quality of ELC 
provision and 
maintain uptake 

➢ Focus on 
prevention and 
early intervention 

 
➢ Provide access to 

joined up services 
and bereavement 
support  

 

• Respond quickly 
in a stigma free, 
needs and rights 
led way  

 

• Increase levels of  
physical activity  

 

• Increase the 
provision of child 
friendly 
environments 
within local 
communities 

 

• Deliver a Bairns 
Hoose 

• Delivery The 
Promise  

• Increase the 
provision of health 
assessments for 
the care 
experienced 

• Continue to close 
the gap between 
those who have 
care experience 
and their peers 

• Increase the no. of 
foster carers 
available locally 

• Keep brothers and 
sisters together 

• Ensure adequate 
provision of legal 
advice and 
advocacy 

• Implement the 
recommendations 
of the Secure Care 
Review 

➢ Implement 
refreshed 
guidance on the 
use of restraint 

➢ Better track those 
who are in or on 
the edge of the 
care system  

➢ Improve learning 
transitions from P7 
to S1 

➢ Deliver ABZ 
Campus to widen 
the range of 
courses 

➢ Deliver Aberdeen 
Computing 
Collaborative to 
ensure long term 
employability 

➢ Delivery of Tier 2 
services to close 
the gap through 
SAC funding 

➢ Continue to 
address the cost of 
the school day and 
child poverty in 
schools 

➢ Reduce levels of 
anti-social 
behaviour 

➢ Deliver Mentors 
in Violence 
Prevention 
across all 
secondary 
schools 

➢ Delivery of 
neurodevelopme
ntal pathway  

➢ Establish better 
assurance 
systems  

➢ Increase the 
number of Young 
Carers receiving 
support 

➢ Improve 
transition 
planning from 
child to adult 
services 

➢ Ensure that the 
voices of children 
(including those 
who use 
alternative 
communication 
systems) are 
central to 
processes and 
Plans 

➢ Decrease the 
number of 
children not 
accessing full 
time education 

Enabling Priorities 

Access to services Increase integration Reduce risks Commissioning  Data 

 

Workforce 

➢ Implement a 
single Request 
for Assistance 
process 

➢ reduce the 
number of 
access points to 
information and 
services 

 

➢ Build on the 
integration models 
including that at 
ELC Links 

➢ Establish an 
assurance system 
to test the strength 
of the system 

➢ Improve alignment 
between children 
and adult services 

➢ Develop a Target 
Operating Model 
for children 

➢ Better 
understand why 
children are 
placed OOA 

➢ Understand the 
long term impact 
of ELC on 
outcomes for 
families 

➢ Agree and 
implement a 
whole system 
approach to 
addressing 
obesity 

➢ Aligned to the 10 
principles of 
family support 

➢ Jointly respond 
to the needs of 
those displaced 

➢ Evaluate 
readiness for 
implementation 
of the UNCRC 

➢ Improve 
knowledge of 
the 6 groups 
by co-
designing with 
service users 
and children  

➢ Improve data 
matching 

➢ Improve the 
tracking of the 
outcomes of 
those most 
vulnerable 

➢ Increase 
knowledge 
poverty agenda 
and of benefits 

 

➢ Increase 
knowledge of 
trauma and risk  

 

➢ Develop ways of 
working (SIMD1) 
to better support 
the provision of 
rights 

 

Page 145



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 146



 ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 

COMMITTEE Anti-Poverty and Inequality Committee 

DATE 20 March 2024 

EXEMPT No 

CONFIDENTIAL No 

REPORT TITLE Aberdeen Cyrenians Visit 

REPORT NUMBER CUS/24/085 

DIRECTOR Andy MacDonald 

CHIEF OFFICER Jacqui McKenzie 

REPORT AUTHOR Paul Tytler 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 1.1 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To provide the Committee with a report following the Committee visit to Aberdeen 

Cyrenians on 31 January 2024.  
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

That the Committee:- 
 

2.1 Notes this report with information provided by Aberdeen Cyrenians; and 
 
2.2  Thank all those at Aberdeen Cyrenians, including the many staff and volunteers, 

who welcomed the Committee and provided an informative and interesting visit.  
 

3. CURRENT SITUATION 
 

3.1 On 31 January 2024, the Anti-Poverty and Inequality Committee visited Aberdeen 
Cyrenians as part of the programme of visits to key organisations. Information 
provided by the Cyrenians following the visit includes:  

 

• Information on services offered 
 

• 2022/23 annual report 
 

• The presentation shared with the committee during the visit 
 

 
 
 

Page 147

Agenda Item 9.4

https://www.weareac.org/care-services
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/610cfa1cfb3b2159276af48b/t/65798b7940e06170413c0e41/1702464383447/Aberdeen+Cyrenians+-+Annual+Report+2023.pdf
https://www.weareac.org/2024-presentation


 

 
 

 
 

Photo: Norman Adams - Aberdeen City Council 

 
3.2 A number of issues were raised during the visit and a follow-up session with the 

Committee took place on 12 March 2024. The following actions have been 
undertaken as a result of the visit and follow-up session: 

 

• The Cyrenians Digital and Financial Inclusion team have been introduced to 
the Council’s Financial Inclusion Team (FIT), to ensure effective contacts and 
referrals, and consider possible support that can be provided by the FIT team. 

 

• Connection has been made with the Health Determinants Research 
Collaborative and Food Poverty Action Aberdeen, to ensure that Aberdeen 
Cyrenian’s food insecurity data is included in the research work to explore 
improvements to City-wide food poverty data. 

 

• To support the Cyrenians expansion of their growing spaces, a link will be made 
with the Council’s environmental services team. 

 

• The data shared by Aberdeen Cyrenians during the presentation highlighted 
the issues of in-work poverty, and the high proportion of males seeking cost of 
living support. The external advisers to the committee have been asked to 

Page 148



 

 
 

consider this data and advise on what further work is required to address these 
issues.  

 

• To explore their property options, a meeting is being arranged with the 
Corporate Landlord team. 

 
 

4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from the recommendation in this 
report. 

 
 
5.  LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
5.1 There are no direct legal implications arising from the recommendations in this 

report. 
 
 
6.   ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

6.1  There are no direct environmental implications arising from the recommendation 
in this report. 

 
 
7. RISK 
 

Category Risks Primary Controls/Control 
Actions to achieve  
Target Risk Level  

*Target 
Risk Level 
(L, M or H) 

 
*taking into 

account 
controls/control 

actions 

 

*Does 
Target Risk 
Level Match 

Appetite 
Set? 

Strategic 
Risk 

None None L Yes 

Compliance None None L Yes 

Operational None None L Yes 

Financial None None L Yes 

Reputational None None L Yes 
Environment 

/ Climate 
None None L Yes 

 
 
 

Page 149



 

 
 

8.  OUTCOMES 

COUNCIL DELIVERY PLAN 2022-2023 
 

 Impact of Report 

Aberdeen City Council 
Policy Statement 

 
Working in Partnership for 

Aberdeen 

There is no proposal in this report 

 

Aberdeen City Local Outcome Improvement Plan 2016-26 
 

Prosperous Economy 
Stretch Outcomes 

There is no proposal in this report 

Prosperous People Stretch 
Outcomes 

There is no proposal in this report 

Prosperous Place Stretch 
Outcomes 

There is no proposal in this report 

 

Regional and City 
Strategies 

 

There is no proposal in this report 

 
 
9. IMPACT ASSESSMENTS 
 

Assessment Outcome 
 

Integrated Impact 
Assessment 

 

No assessment required. I confirm this has been 
discussed and agreed with Jacqui McKenzie, Chief 
Officer Early Intervention and Community 
Empowerment, on 13 March 2024. 

Data Protection Impact 
Assessment 

Not required 
 

Other N/A 

 
 
10. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
10.1 N/A 

 
 

11. APPENDICES  
 
11.1 N/A 

Page 150

https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/documents/s129382/Council%20Delivery%20Plan.pdf
https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/documents/s134067/WorkinginPartnershipPolicyStatement.pdf
https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/documents/s134067/WorkinginPartnershipPolicyStatement.pdf
https://communityplanningaberdeen.org.uk/aberdeen-city-local-outcome-improvement-plan-2016-26/


 

 
 

12. REPORT AUTHOR CONTACT DETAILS 
 

Name Paul Tytler 

Title Locality Inclusion Manager 

Email Address ptytler@aberdeencity.gov.uk 

Tel 01224 067879 

 
 

Page 151



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 152


	Agenda
	5.1 Minute of previous meeting of 31 January 2024
	6.1 Committee Business Planner
	9.1 Six monthly update on the Memorandum of Understanding with the Department of Work and Pensions - CUS/24/077
	9.2 Fairer Aberdeen Fund Annual Report  - CUS/24/003
	Appendix 1 Fairer-Aberdeen-Fund-Annual-Report-2022-23
	Appendix 2 Fairer-Aberdeen-Fund-Impact-Measures-2022-23

	9.3 Integrated Children's Services Plan - Annual Update - CFS/24/042
	CSBAnnualReport2024-compressed

	9.4 Report on Committee Visit to Aberdeen Cyrenians on 31 January 2024 - CUS/24/085

